
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services Officer, 
Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422522

E-mail: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 6 June 2016

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 15 JUNE 2016 AT 6.30 PM

THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY

Members of the Committee:
Robert Sharp (Chairman)
Eric Batts
Roger Cox
Stuart Davenport
Jenny Hannaby

Anthony Hayward
Bob Johnston
Sandy Lovatt (Vice-
Chairman)

Chris McCarthy
Janet Shelley
Catherine Webber

Substitutes Councillors
All other councillors trained in planning matters

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.



2

1. Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters.

2. Notification of substitutes and apologies for absence  

To record the attendance of substitute members, if any, who have been authorised 
to attend in accordance with the provisions of standing order 17(1), with notification 
having been given to the proper officer before the start of the meeting and to receive 
apologies for absence.

3. Declarations of pecuniary interests and other declarations  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, and other 
declarations, in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.   

4. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.

5. Statements and petitions from the public on planning 
applications  

Any statements and/or petitions from members of the public under standing order 
33, relating to planning applications, will be made or presented at the meeting.

6. Statements, petitions and questions from the public on other 
matters  

Any statements and/or petitions from the public under standing order 32 will be 
made or presented at the meeting.

7. Materials  

To consider any materials submitted prior to the meeting of the Committee.

Any such materials will be on display at the meeting.



3

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.

Summary index of applications

Parish Site 
Address

Proposal Application No Page 
No.

8. P16/V0246/FUL 
- Botley Centre, 
West Way, 
Botley, Oxford  

Demolition and redevelopment of 
existing shopping centre and adjacent 
buildings (but excluding Elms Parade) 
for new retail development (Use 
Classes A1-A5) at ground floor level, 
with development above comprising 
140 residential units (C3), 123 
bedroom hotel (C1) and 261 units of 
academic residential accommodation 
for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building 
(incorporating library) and 
replacement Baptist church (D1), 
small flexible office space (B1). 
Associated car parking and 
landscaping and altered vehicular 
accesses from West Way, 
Westminster Way and Arthray Road.

P16/V0246/FUL 4 - 156

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

APPLICATION NO. P16/V0246/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 18.2.2016
PARISH NORTH HINKSEY
WARD MEMBER(S) Debby Hallett

Emily Smith
APPLICANT Mace Group
SITE Botley Centre, West Way, Botley, Oxford
PROPOSAL Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping 

centre and adjacent buildings (but excluding Elms 
Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes 
A1-A5) at ground floor level, with development 
above comprising 140 residential units (C3), 123 
bedroom hotel (C1) and 261 units of academic 
residential accommodation for university staff and 
students (sui generis). New community building 
(incorporating library) and replacement Baptist 
church (D1), small flexible office space (B1). 
Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster 
Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by drawings 
and information accompanying agents letter dated 
10 May 2016)

GRID REFERENCE 448583/206086
OFFICER Stuart Walker

SUMMARY

The planning application, seeks consent for the demolition and redevelopment of the existing 
shopping centre and adjacent buildings (excluding Elms Parade) for a new retail development 
(Use Classes A1-A5) at ground floor level, with development above comprising; 140 
residential units (C3), 123 bedroom hotel (C1) and 261 units of academic residential 
accommodation for university staff and students (sui generis), a new community building 
(incorporating library), replacement Baptist church (D1) and small flexible office space (B1). 
The scheme includes associated car parking, landscaping and altered vehicular accesses 
from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.

It was submitted on 29 January 2016 and validated 18 February 2016. It is an alternative 
scheme to one refused in December 2014.

The scale of development requires an Environmental Impact Assessment and the application 
is accompanied by a detailed Environmental Statement.

The majority of the application site is identified in the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2011 as a local shopping centre, where proposals for retail development will be permitted.  It 
is identified under Core Policy 11 in the emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 1 as a local service 
centre suitable for retail led redevelopment. Limited weight is afforded to both the existing 
policy as it is not fully consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework and similarly 
the new policy due to its status in an emerging Local Plan.  Thus greater weight should be 
applied to the National Planning Policy Framework in considering the application.

Page 4

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V0246/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Since its submission, officers have assessed the proposal and negotiated amendments, 
which have been subject to the appropriate consultations.

This report seeks to assess the planning application details against the national and local 
planning policy framework where relevant and all other material planning considerations.

The application comes to planning committee due to the significant amount of public interest 
and as the council has an interest as land owner, for part of the site.

The application is presented with a recommendation to approve the development.

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application seeks consent for the demolition and redevelopment of the existing 

shopping centre with a mixed use development.  It is an alternative proposal prepared 
in response to a previously refused scheme in December 2014.

1.2 The previous application was refused for the following four reasons:

1. In the opinion of the local planning authority, the proposed development is not 
considered a sustainable development as it would result in a visually harmful and 
unneighbourly scheme, which is not compatible with or sympathetic to the character 
of the surrounding residential area by reason of the size, bulk, scale, height and 
massing of the proposed buildings.  Furthermore the proposed development would 
adversely impact on views into and out of Oxford City by reason of its size, bulk, 
scale, height and massing.  As such the proposal is contrary to policies DC1, DC9, 
NE8 and S1 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 and to core 
policies 11, 28, 32, 37 and 44 of the emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and to advice 
contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.

2. The proposed development would be harmful to highway safety and operation due 
to its associated traffic generation, and inadequate on-site parking. In the opinion of 
the local planning authority, the local highway network cannot accommodate the 
additional vehicles without causing safety, congestion and environmental problems.  
As such, the proposal is contrary to Policies S1, DC5 and TR5 of the adopted Vale 
of White Horse Local Plan 2011 and to core policies 11, 28, 33 and 37 of the 
emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and to advice contained in National Planning 
Policy Framework.

3. The proposed development would result in the loss of open market housing and 
older person's supported accommodation, which would have an impact on the local 
authority's supply of deliverable housing land.  Therefore, the proposal is contrary to 
advice contained in National Planning Policy Framework, which seeks to boost the 
supply of housing.

4. Without the secured financial contributions to mitigate the impacts of the proposed 
development, the proposal would result in a detrimental impact on existing services 
and social infrastructure. Thus, the proposal is contrary to Policy DC8 of the 
adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 and core policy 7 of the emerging 
Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and advice contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

1.3 The application site lies approximately 2km west of Oxford city centre and is the focal 
point for the wider predominantly residential suburb.  The majority of the application 
site is identified in the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 as a local 
shopping centre, where proposals for retail development will be permitted, and the 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

whole application site is identified under Core Policy 11 in the emerging Local Plan 
2031 Part 1 as a local service centre suitable for retail led redevelopment.

1.4 Following the refusal of planning permission in December 2014, the council has 
produced a supplementary planning document (SPD) for the site which was formally 
adopted in January 2016.  The Botley SPD “creates a flexible strategy to guide 
development that supports the existing and future local community and attracts 
investment to serve the wider district and meet local regeneration aspirations” and 
seeks to ensure development on the site enhances the centre’s offering “to better 
reflect its status as a local service centre in a key location on the western edge of 
Oxford”.

1.5 The application comes to planning committee due to the significant amount of public 
interest and as the council has an interest as land owner, for part of the site.

2.0 THE APPLICATION SITE AND CONTEXT
2.1 The application site lies within the administrative boundary of North Hinksey parish 

and is approximately 2.48 hectares in area.  Its western and southern boundaries are 
delineated by residential garden boundaries of adjoining two storey dwellings.  
Properties along the southern boundary front onto Arthray Road. Along the north 
boundary with West Way the site steps in around the existing St Peter and St Paul 
Church.  The raised section of the A34 trunk road runs parallel to the east boundary of 
the site, alongside Westminster Way, and the Botley interchange is approximately 
650m from the site.

2.2 The site currently comprises a range of uses and facilities and is seen as the 
commercial/shopping centre for Botley.  The redevelopment area consists of the main 
shopping centre (West Way shopping centre & West Way House), offices, a 
community hall, a library, Botley Baptist Church, and two public car parks (Chapel 
Way and Church Way).

2.3 West Way Shopping centre is located along the southern boundary of the site, with 
approximately 5,000sqm of retail space.   The centre is anchored by a Co-op food 
store, with other national retailers including for example; Iceland, Tesco, and Lloyds 
Chemist.  It also contains ten flats, located above the retail units and approximately 
1300sqm of office space in the four storey block known as West Way House, located 
above the Tesco store.

2.4 Elms Court comprises approximately 1,300sqm of office space over four floors, two 
flats, with 325sqm of retail space and a 140sqm local library, on the ground floor. 
Immediately adjacent is the local Seacourt Community Hall and the Grant Thornton 
building, which is a three storey 1980s building with approximately 1,700sqm of office 
space over the upper two floors with under croft parking at ground level.

2.5 The previous application site included the vicarage of St Peter & St Paul, Field House 
and Vale House (to the west) and Elms Parade (a typical 1930s parade of shops 
located to the north).  These are no longer part of the redevelopment proposal and will 
be retained.

2.6 The application site topography falls from the south west corner to the junction of 
West Way / Westminster Way with an overall level change of around 4m between 
these two points.

2.7 The townscape of Botley is principally a residential suburb.  The wider area 
surrounding the site is essentially characterised by 1920s /1930s houses, which are 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

predominantly two storeys. The majority of buildings are detached or semi-detached 
houses interspersed with more modern infill, including some three and four storey 
developments.

2.8 A location plan is attached at appendix 1.

3.0 THE APPLICATION PROPOSAL
3.1 The application was submitted on 29 January 2016 and validated 18 February 2016.  

The application was formally amended on 10 May 2016 in response to comments 
received in the initial round of consultation and the following relates to the amended 
proposals.

3.2 The proposal is a comprehensive redevelopment of the existing shopping centre and 
adjacent land comprising 20 retail units and a food store with other commercial uses 
supporting the retail offer.  A range of community and leisure uses are also proposed 
including a 123 bed hotel, replacement library, replacement community hall and 
replacement Baptist Church.

3.3 The proposal will also provide new residential uses.  A total of 140 general market 
apartments are proposed comprising of 55 x one bed, 80 x two bed and five x three bed 
units.  In addition, there will be 261 student rooms comprising of 225 rooms, 24 studio 
rooms, nine x one bed flats and three x two bed flats along with five flats for exclusive 
use by the Baptist Church.

3.4 The breakdown of the proposed uses and respective floor space is as follows:

Town centre element Land Use Floor space (GEA)
Food store A1 – Food store 1,270.3m2 
Retail units A1 – A5 Class uses 4,102m2

Hotel C1 – Hotel 5,167.7m2 

Residential C3 - residential 12,774.98m2

Student accommodation Sui Generis 10,550.5m2

Community Hall D1 – Community centre 753.2m2

Library D1 – Library 380.2m2

Business space B1 – Office 380.2m2

Baptist Church and hall D1 – Place of worship 595.8m²
Church accommodation D1 – Place of worship 170.9m2

3.5 The development essentially comprises six mixed use blocks of varying size arranged 
around a central public space and aims to provide a sustainable, well designed 
development to rejuvenate the centre of Botley with an integrated and complementary 
mix of uses that provide active frontages at street level with residential, student and 
hotel accommodation on upper floors.

3.6 Building A is located to north east corner of the site along West Way and Westminster 
Way and is a mixed use building comprising eight ground floor retail units of varying 
size fronting West Way, Elms Parade and the new street from Westminster Way with 
residential accommodation above (120 units in a mix of studio, one, two and three bed 
apartments), the local energy centre and parking spaces.  The upper floors are 
arranged in C shape with stepped massing around a first floor level private communal 
garden for use by Building A residents.  A smaller communal terrace is proposed on 
level seven.  Access to the residential floors is taken from the corner of West Way / 
Westminster Way with a secondary entrance on the south side of the building.  The 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

block is approximately 45m wide and 60m deep with a varying height of between 20.6m 
to 24m with a tall projection on Westminster Way of 29.2m high.  The building will be 
constructed in brick, with metal clad balconies, mesh panels and slate roof tiles.

3.7 Building B occupies the space to the south east and comprises a medium sized food 
store and energy centre at ground level, with accommodation above arranged in two 
linear blocks separated with terrace garden space in between.  The block fronting 
Westminster Way is a new 123 bed hotel, with access off the north corner of the 
building.  The second block provides 118 student rooms with access from the western 
side.  The building is approximately 47m wide, 53m deep with a varying height between 
15m and 18m with tall projections at 25.6m (student block) and 27m (hotel block).  The 
building will be constructed in a mixture of tile and brick, metal panels and glass.

3.8 Buildings C and D are situated on the south side of the new public space.  Building C 
provides 89 student rooms above two retail units and is approximately 15m wide, 10m 
deep with a height of 21.5m.  Building D provides 54 student rooms above four retail 
units.  Both blocks have external garden space for student use and external balconies 
and will be constructed in brick and render with recessed windows. 

3.9 Block E is a three storey building located on the north side of the new public space, 
comprising of six ground floor retail units and 20 apartments above.  It has been 
designed to act as a transition between Elms Parade and the new development, with a 
mirrored footprint creating a mews between to simplify servicing and facilities for both 
buildings.  The block is approximately 76m long, 17m deep with a height of 13m and 
will be constructed in metal cladding, with recessed windows and curved balconies, the 
latter in reference to the area’s suburban influences.

3.10 Block F is the community building located on the western side of the site.  It comprises 
a community hall and lounge, the new library and business space, together with the 
replacement Baptist Church facilities.  Following amendment, it also provides new 
public WCs.  The three storey building will be constructed in brick and is 34m long, 22m 
wide and 14.6m high at its tallest point.

3.11 The site currently has access from Arthray Road, Westminster Way and West Way.  It 
is proposed to stop up the existing Westminster Way access and create two new 
junctions to provide access to car parks.  The existing accesses from Arthray Road and 
West Way will remain with the addition of a left in, in only, junction on West Way for 
service vehicles.  A range of off-site highway works (as detailed in the county highway 
response) will also be undertaken.

3.12 There is provision for 321 car parking spaces, 5% of which will be accessible spaces 
and electric charging points will be provided at various locations throughout the site.  
The parking provision is not specifically allocated to any particular land use, and a car 
park management plan is proposed to efficiently manage parking spaces based on an 
initial two hours free and payment on departure for over stays, monitored with an 
automatic number plate recognition system (more detail is available to view online in 
the technical note 2 - parking management strategy document).  In addition, the student 
accommodation is proposed to be car free and controlled through a tenancy agreement 
to legally bind occupants not to bring cars to the site and not to park in the adjacent 
streets (more detail is available in the technical note 3 - student management and the 
student management plan update).  124 external cycle parking spaces will be provided 
throughout the development with further secure cycle storage facilities (412 spaces) for 
new residents and students.

3.13 The proposed landscaping and public realm aims to provide public space at ground 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

level that is pedestrianised, primarily through a central street activated by the 
community building to the west and the retail space throughout the site. Where vehicle 
access crosses the public space, the intention is for the space to be shared.  In addition 
it is proposed to provide new tree planting within the site and along West Way / 
Westminster Way together with new paving around Elms Parade.  A new pedestrian 
crossing on West Way is also proposed that will be straight in design to replace the 
existing dog leg crossing.

3.14 The development is forecast to create approximately 55 new full time equivalent (FTE) 
jobs over a three year period during its construction with an additional 248 permanent 
(FTE) opportunities following completion.

3.15 The scale of development requires an Environmental Impact Assessment and the 
application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES), a Regulation 22 
update statement together with drawings and the following documents:

 Planning statement and letter update
 Design and access statement (DAS) and addendum
 Transport assessment (TA), addendum plus technical notes
 Statement of community involvement
 Landscape statement and addendum
 Student demand assessment
 Student management report and plan update
 Daylight / sunlight assessment and shadow study (in DAS addendum)
 Retail impact assessment
 Energy and sustainability report
 Service and delivery management plan
 Affordable housing viability statement and addendum
 Wind microclimate statement
 Tree survey
 Phase II geotechnical assessment
 Accommodation schedule

3.16 The Environmental Statement (ES) and Regulation 22 update statement, describes the 
development and includes consideration of alternatives, phasing, construction and 
implementation and methodology assumptions and limitations on which the 
development has been assessed. It also sets out the policy context for the proposal.  In 
terms of the assessment itself, the following areas of potential impact have been 
addressed: landscape and visual impact; transport; historic environment; ecology and 
nature conservation; water resources and flood risk; noise; air quality; socio-economic 
impacts; cumulative effects and residual effects and mitigation. A non-technical 
summary has been provided.

3.17 The Design and Access Statement (DAS) and its addendum sets out the design 
considerations for the development. It provides a review of the site’s immediate and 
wider context and explains the design evolution process that has led to the current 
development scheme under consideration.  The vision for the development is to deliver 
a comprehensive redevelopment to provide ‘a rejuvenated heart for the local 
community with extensive public space between a series of varied buildings’.  The DAS 
provides details on how the area is intended to be developed; the location of land uses; 
heights massing and scale; materials, landscape concepts; along with working 
strategies for sustainability; access and movement; deliveries and waste management 
and phasing.

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

3.18 Extracts of the application plans are attached at appendix 2.  All detailed plans and 
supporting technical documents accompanying the application are available to view 
online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

4.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
4.1 This section of the report provides an outline of the consultation/notification undertaken 

and a summary of comments received on the application.  Copies of all responses are 
available to view online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.  Where appropriate, more 
detailed / full comments are attached as appendices to the report.

4.2 The application has been advertised as a major development, development not in 
accordance with the development plan and as EIA development.  All the appropriate 
consultations/notifications have been undertaken on the original submission and 
amendments. The latest consultation/notification on further amendments expired 2 
June 2016.  Below is a summary of the received responses.

4.3 North Hinksey 
Parish Council

No objection.  A copy of their latest representation is 
attached at appendix 3.

Cumnor Parish 
Council

Objection. Their concerns can be summarised as follows:

 Scale of the proposal - grossly over-dominant in this 
location, and causing loss of amenity to neighbouring 
properties

 Traffic congestion – the scheme if allowed, would 
cause greatly increased congestion with all the 
attendant problems of noise and pollution

 Parking – inadequate to meet the needs of the 
proposal

 Cycle parking – difficult to assess provision
 Delivery vehicles – inadequate parking for delivery 

vehicles, particularly regarding articulated servicing, 
together with envisaged problems regarding the route 
exiting the site

 Noise pollution – it is unjustifiable to place student 
accommodation so close to noise pollution arising 
from the A34

 Air pollution – there are serious concerns about the 
impact of increased traffic on levels of NO2, and 
particulate matter (PM 2.5 and PM10), so close to 
student accommodation

 Residential units – no clear statement is made 
regarding whether this accommodation involves 
affordable homes or suitability for the elderly

 Academic residential accommodation – concerns 
regarding the location of this accommodation, 
particularly as no demand is recognised

 Hotel – not considered viable without dedicated 
parking

 Foul waste – there are serious concerns about the 
capacity of the foul sewage system to cope with a 
development on this scale

Comments on amended plans

Page 10

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
file:///C:/home$/Downloads/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

 Council acknowledges that amendments have been 
made to the height of some of the buildings, the cycle 
provision is better and some of the balconies have 
been glazed in recognition of the Environmental 
Health concerns relating to noise. These amendments 
are not sufficient to fully address issues and concerns 
raised when commenting on the original planning 
application which still stand.

 It is still unclear whether the residential units would be 
‘to buy or let’ or how many of the units would be 
affordable homes/disability housing, and Council 
would welcome detail of the number of these units.

 Details regarding car parking spaces are still confusing 
and the figures do not add up.

 Entry/exit arrangements of vehicles larger than 5m in 
length making deliveries between 18.00 and 10.00 are 
still unsatisfactory.

 Concerns regarding foul water have not been 
addressed.

Representations 
from Local 
Residents

A total of 376 third party representations have been received 
in response to the initial round of consultation.  349 raise 
objection, 20 support the application.  The objections are 
made of the following summarised grounds:

 Scale and character
 Traffic generation
 Parking
 Student accommodation
 Air pollution / environmental problems
 Noise
 Impact / loss of existing shops
 Contrary to local plan / town centre status
 Overdevelopment 
 Design
 Impact on residential amenity
 Impact on St Peters & St Pauls church
 Hotel
 Viability of scheme / not sustainable
 Does not meet local needs of residents
 Access issues for pedestrians / cyclists
 Flood risk / drainage
 Construction phasing
 Impact on community facilities
 Lack of housing for elderly
 Retail Impact on Oxford
 Impact on potential future investment by leaseholders
 Lack of public conveniences
 Contrary to Botley SPD

A total of 117 third party representations have been received 
in response to the amended proposal consultation.  114 raise 
objection, three support the application. The majority of 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

objections reiterated previous concerns (listed above) but the 
following issues were also raised:

 Lack of affordable housing
 Public spaces are too narrow
 Contrary to design guide principles
 Reduction in height is not sufficient to overcome 

previous concerns on scale and character
 Development should be no more than five storeys
 The reconfiguration of building B will cause even more 

overshadowing of Arthray Road
 The development has a residential emphasis rather 

than a retail one
 Insufficient parking provision
 No clear traffic management strategy is provided
 No clear waste management strategy is provided
 No clear site management plan is provided

West Way 
Community Concern

Objection, raising the following issues:

 Excessive height and massing
 Contrary to local plan policies and SPD
 Too dense
 Inadequate parking arrangements
 Traffic circulation safety issues
 Impact on residential amenity
 Overshadowing of public realm
 No 3D model has been provided

Their latest response is attached at appendix 4.

North Hinskey 
Neighbourhood Plan 
group

Objection, raising the following issues:

 Height
 Scale and character
 Massing

North Hinksey 
Parochial Church 
Council

Objection, raising the following issues:

 Height
 Scale and character
 Massing

Councillor Debby 
Hallett

Objection raising the following issues:

 Inappropriate development for the site
 Intended uses contravene local plan policy
 The proposals in this planning application are neither 

compliant with our saved policies, nor the Botley SPD, 
nor with our Design Guide, nor the NPPF.

The councillor’s latest comments are attached at appendix 5.

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Councillor Emily 
Smith

Objection raising the following issues:

I welcome the reduction in height that Mace have proposed 
and the addition of public toilets in their amended scheme. 

However my original comments about the application still 
stand:

 Excessive building height
 Loss of sunlight and quality of public and amenity 

spaces
 Insufficient parking provision
 Traffic and road safety
 Proposed uses of the site
 Poor quality of the student accommodation
 Sustainability 

The councillor’s latest comments are attached at appendix 6.

Councillor Dudley 
Hoddinott

Objection raising the following issues:

 Excessive height and scale
 Car parking
 Cycle parking locations
 Loss of light / overshadowing
 Lack of public conveniences

The councillor’s latest comments are attached at appendix 7.

Councillor Judy 
Roberts

Objection raising the following issues:

 Scale and massing
 Wind micro-climate
 Daylight impact
 Servicing and delivery times and conflict with 

pedestrian users
 Noise and air pollution
 Car parking
 Phasing of construction
 Cycle parking locations

The councillor’s latest comments are attached at appendix 8.

County Councillor 
Janet Godden 
(North Hinksey 
Division)

Objection, raising the following issues:

 Size and scale of development
 Air, noise and light pollution
 Enforcing car free student accommodation
 Traffic generation, congestion and highway safety
 Parking
 Drainage
 Open space
 Construction phasing

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Oxford City Council Objection, raising the following issues:

 Scale and massing
 Adverse visual impact on the setting of Oxford
 Lack of model to assess proposal
 Traffic generation

A copy of their latest response is attached at appendix 9.

Oxfordshire County 
Council

No objection. The latest response is attached at appendix 10

Transport
 No objection, subject to conditions and contributions 

towards 

Archaeology
 No objection, subject to conditions.

Economy and Skills
 No objection, subject to preparation and 

implementation of a community employment plan.

Education
 No objection, subject to contributions for primary 

school and secondary school expansion.

Property
 Support, subject to provision of replacement library.

Ecology
 No objection.

Highways England Holding objection, pending a review of traffic analysis data to 
assess the traffic impact on the A34.

Oxford Preservation 
Trust

Objection.

 Scale of proposal will have a serious negative impact 
on views of the city and the character of Oxford.

 The proposal does not overcome the first reason for 
refusal and the current scheme would have a similar 
impact resulting in a visually harmful and 
unneighbourly scheme.

 The scheme will impact on protected views from South 
Park – as set out in the Assessment of the Oxford 
View Cones, and on views from Oxford’s publically 
accessible towers.

 Proposal is contrary to the Botley SPD.
 The scheme will impact on the setting of important 

Oxford heritage assets and the city conservation area.
 The scheme will harm the character of Botley and its 

historic interest and impact local views within North 
Hinskey.

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Thames Water No objection.

Drainage Engineer No objection, subject to conditions.

Historic England We have no comment to make in this instance.

Conservation Officer No objection.

Urban Design 
Officer

Support, subject to conditions.  

The officer’s comments are attached at appendix 11.

South East Design 
(review panel)

The detailed comments from the panel in relation to the initial 
plans are attached at appendix 12.

Tree Officer No objection, subject to conditions.

Landscape Officer No objection, subject to conditions.

Natural England Standing advice applies.

Countryside Officer No objection.

Housing 
Development Team

No objection.

Health & Housing 
Food Safety

No objection.

Health & Housing
Contaminated Land

No objection, subject to conditions.

Health & Housing
Air Quality

No objection, subject to conditions.

Health & Housing
Protection team

No objection, subject to conditions.

Equalities Officer No objection.

Young Person 
Coordinator

Support.

Waste Management 
Team

No objection, but raise concern the proposed development 
does not have sufficient bin store space to accommodate the 
required bin capacity to satisfy DC7 for a waste and recycling 
service provided by the district council. The bin store space 
needed for residential properties throughout the proposed site 
has been greatly underestimated.

Leisure Team No objection, contributions requested.

National Planning No comments received.

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Casework Service

5.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
5.1 Planning applications

The site is large and covers many planning units.  As such the history of the site is 
extensive but mainly involves retail and service related developments, and adverts.  
The most relevant applications in relation to this application are:

P13/V2733/FUL - Refused (05/12/2014)
Demolition of a mix of existing buildings and the erection of mixed use development 
comprising retail, restaurants and cafes, offices/business starter units, hotel, student 
accommodation and ancillary facilities, 50no. apartments, library, place of worship 
(Baptist Church), community hall, crèche, cinema, gymnasium, covered car parking and 
access, public square, landscaping and associated works, supported by an 
Environmental Impact Assessment, amended plans and further information submitted 
on 5th September 2014 & 6th November 2014.

P14/V1687/PDO – Works confirmed as permitted development (12/09/2014)
Change of use from office to 14 residential units including cycle storage and 24 parking 
spaces.

P10/V1327 - Approved (07/04/2011)
Demolition of existing buildings. Redevelopment of site to provide new Baptist Church 
and associated facilities including community rooms, and cafe (Phase 1); two upper 
storey flats and student accommodation (16 units) (Phase 2). (Re-submission)

5.2 Pre-application advice
The applicant undertook pre-application discussions with officers in December 2015 
and January 2016.  The key matters discussed included:

 Planning policy context;
 Urban design principles and master planning;
 Height and massing;
 Landscape and visual impact;
 Access, highways and parking;
 Residential amenity;
 Proposed public realm and integration of Elms Parade

6.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
6.1 Vale of White Horse District Council Local Plan 2011

The development plan for this area comprises the adopted Vale of White Horse local 
plan 2011.  The following local plan policies relevant to this application were ‘saved’ by 
direction on 1 July 2009.

GS1 - Developments in Existing Settlements 
S1 - New Retail Provision
S12 - Policies for local shopping centres
DC1 - Design
DC3 - Design against crime
DC4 - Public Art
DC5 - Access
DC6 - Landscaping
DC7 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DC8 - The Provision of Infrastructure and Services

Page 16

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V2733/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V1687/PDO
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P10/V1327


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC10 - The Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Development
DC16 - Illuminated Advertisements
DC20 - External Lighting
CF1 - Protection of Existing Services and Facilities
CF2 - Provision of New Community Services and Facilities
NE8 - Landscape setting of Oxford
H10 - Development in the Five Main Settlements
H17 - Affordable housing
H19 - Special Housing Needs
T1 - New tourist related development
TR5 - The National Cycle Network
TR6 - Public Car Parking In the Main Settlements

6.2 Emerging Local Plan 2031 – Part 1
The draft local plan part 1 is not currently adopted policy.  Paragraph 216 of the NPPF 
allows for weight to be given to relevant policies in emerging plans, unless other 
material considerations indicate otherwise, and only subject to the stage of preparation 
of the plan, the extent of unresolved objections and the degree of consistency of the 
relevant emerging policies with the NPPF.  Whilst the plan has been through 
Examination the Inspector’s report has not been received and objections to the plan 
remain unresolved. At present it is officers' opinion that the emerging Local Plan 
policies carry limited weight for decision making.  The relevant policies are as follows:-

1 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development
3 – Settlement hierarchy
4 – Meeting our housing need
6 – Meeting business and employment needs
7 – Providing supporting infrastructure and services
8 – Spatial strategy for the Abingdon on Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
11 – Botley Central Area
22 – Housing mix
23 – Housing density
24 – Affordable housing
26 – Accommodating current and future needs of the ageing population
28 – New employment development on unallocated sites
30 – Further and higher education
31 – Development to support the visitor economy
32 – Retail development and other main town centre uses
33 – Promoting sustainable transport and accessibility
34 – A34 Strategy
35 – Promoting public transport, cycling and walking
36 – Electronic communications
37 – Design and local distinctiveness
38 – Design strategies for strategic and major development sites
39 – The historic environment
40 – Sustainable design and construction
41 – Renewable energy
42 – Flood risk
43 – Natural resources
44 – Landscape
45 – Green Infrastructure
46 – Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
47 – Delivery and Contingency

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

6.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents
The following are considered relevant to this proposal:

 Botley Centre – January 2016
 Design Guide – March 2015
 South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse Hotel Needs Assessment – July 2014
 Section 106 interim guidance 2014
 Retail and Town Centre Study – March 2013
 Open space, sport and recreation future provision – July 2008
 Affordable Housing – July 2006
 Flood Maps and Flood Risk – July 2006
 Planning and Public Art – July 2006
 Oxfordshire Local Transport Plan (LPT4) – September 2015

6.4 Botley Centre SPD – January 2016
This SPD creates a flexible strategy to guide development that ‘supports the existing 
and future local community and attracts investment to serve the wider district and meet 
local regeneration aspirations’.  It sets out context, issues and opportunities, a local 
vision for Botley centre underpinned by the following nine objectives:

- Deliverable improvements
- Respect the character and identity of Botley
- Create a distinctive place
- Appropriate scale and massing
- Strengthen the retail centre
- Transform the public realm
- Improve access, permeability and parking
- Enhance community facilities
- Provide a vibrant mix of use

These nine objectives translate into a development framework with key development 
principles which can be summarised as:

- Development should support Botley’s role as a local service centre.
- Provide a mix of appropriate uses which may include, retail units, food stores, 

business and office space, variety of residential units including on site affordable 
housing, student accommodation, accommodation for older people, a nursery, 
new community hub, leisure uses, cafes and restaurants and places of worship.

- Focus land uses with higher levels of activity to the east of the site.
- Improving pedestrian permeability through clearly defined north / south and east 

/ west connections between West Way and Arthray Road and Westminster Way 
with movement along key retail routes.

- Improve the cycle environment on West Way and provide convenient cycle 
parking facilities.

- Sharing of parking between land uses through active site management and site 
planning.

- Dedicated service delivery access from Westminster Way and provision of a 
service and delivery plan.

- Alignment of pedestrian routes and bus stops with convenient road crossings.
- Improve quality of bus stop facilities.
- Robust assessment of traffic impact.
- Vehicle accesses minimised to a number and scale to those currently in use 

with access to car parking and service areas via West Way and Westminster 
Way.

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

- Provision of a series of public open spaces varied in character delineated with 
active frontages and uses at ground level, proportioned to relate to context, be 
human in scale with formal / informal seating and orientated to avoid 
overshadowing.

- Improving the setting of and relationship of Elms Parade.
- Retaining trees where possible and enhancing green infrastructure.
- Respond to existing scale and massing, through a framework for heights with 

higher buildings towards the east part of the site (up to eight storeys).
- Careful consideration of density to avoid over development and use of a mix of 

building forms to break up massing.
- Buildings fronting Westminster Way designed to limit level of noise and air 

pollution entering the area from the A34.
- Use of high quality materials and finishes for buildings and public realm.

6.5 Design Guide – March 2015
The following sections of the Design Guide are particularly relevant to this application:-

Responding to Site and Setting 
- Character Study (DG6), site context (DG7 ) and Site appraisal (DG9) 

Establishing the Framework
- Existing natural resources, sustainability and heritage(DG10-13, 15, 19) 
- Landscape and SUDS (DG14, 16-18, 20) 
- Movement Framework and street hierarchy (DG21-24) 
- Uses and Density (DG25-26) 
- Urban Structure (blocks, frontages, nodes etc) (DG27-30) 

Layout 
- Streets and Spaces (DG31-43)
- Parking (DG44-50) 

Built Form 
- Scale, form, massing and position (DG51-54) 
- Boundary treatments (DG55) 
- Building Design (DG56-62) 
- Amenity, privacy and overlooking (DG63-64)
- Refuse and services (DG67-68)
- Apartments (DG69-75)
- Building performance (DG83-87, DG89)
- Mixed use centres (DG90-93)

6.6 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

6.7 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.8 Neighbourhood Plan
Paragraph 216 of the NPPF allows for weight to be given to relevant policies in 
emerging plans, unless other material considerations indicate otherwise, and only 
subject to the stage of preparation of the plan, the extent of unresolved objections and 
the degree of consistency of the relevant emerging policies with the NPPF.

6.9 A neighbourhood plan area was designated 19 June 2015 and includes the application 
site. Although the neighbourhood plan is developing, it has not been submitted to the 
Council for Examination.  Consequently very limited weight can be given to any policies 
that may be emerging in the draft neighbourhood plan.

6.10 Environmental Impact
This is EIA development.  The application is accompanied by an Environmental 

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Statement (ES) and Regulation 22 update statement, and the following areas of 
potential impact have been addressed: landscape and visual impact; transport; historic 
environment; ecology and nature conservation; water resources and flood risk; noise; 
air quality; socio-economic impacts; cumulative effects and residual effects and 
mitigation.

6.11 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 
 Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 
 Equality Act 2010 
 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 
 The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 
 Localism Act (including New Homes Bonus)

6.12 Human Rights Act 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

6.13 Equalities 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

7.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
7.1 The relevant planning considerations in the determination of this application are:

1. National policy and the principle of development
2. Employment & economy
3. Sequential test for town centre uses
4. Retail impact
5. Hotel need
6. Student accommodation
7. Residential accommodation
8. Affordable housing & viability of development
9. Design

o Site, setting and framework
o Spatial layout
o Height, scale and massing
o Public space and streets
o Design quality

10. Landscape and Visual Impact
11. Landscaping
12. Residential Amenity
13. Relationship with St Peter & St Paul Church
14. Heritage assets
15. Flood Risk & Surface/Foul Drainage
16. Ecology & Biodiversity
17. Air quality
18. Noise & vibration
19. Contaminated land
20. Traffic, parking and highway safety

o Access
o Traffic generation

Page 20



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

o Car parking
o Cycling and public transport
o Servicing and deliveries
o Off-site highway works

21. Local finance considerations
22. Phasing
23. Process – referral to Secretary of State
24. Contributions

7.2 National policy and the principle of development 
Section 38(6) of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning 
applications be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicated otherwise.  Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 provides that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions 
of the development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 
considerations.  

7.3 The development plan currently comprises the saved policies of the Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2011.  Other material planning considerations include the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), emerging Vale 
of White Horse Local Plan: Part 1 Strategic Sites and Policies and its supporting 
evidence base, and the adopted Botley Centre SPD (under Local Plan 2011).

7.4 The current Local Plan 2011 has some relevant saved policies (listed in section 6) that 
are partly or fully consistent with the NPPF.  In assessing this proposal greater weight 
should be applied to the more up to date NPPF, supported by the PPG and SPD.

7.5 At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which 
should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan making and decision 
taking.  For decision taking this means (unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise) approving development proposals that accord with the development plan 
without delay, and where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant polices are 
out of date, granting permission unless: any adverse impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the 
policies in the Framework taken as a whole; or specific policies in the Framework 
indicate development should be restricted (NPPF, paragraph 14 refers).

7.6 Under paragraph 216 of the NPPF, decision-takers may also give weight to relevant 
policies in emerging plans from their day of publication.  Emerging planning policy in the 
draft Local Plan 2031 Part 1 supports the intensification of use on the application site.  
In particular, proposed Core Policy 11 supports “comprehensive retail-led 
redevelopment and upgrading of Botley central area” providing that certain criteria are 
met.  In addition, Core Policy 4 concerning meeting our housing needs, Core Policy 31 
concerning development to support the visitor economy, and Core Policy 32 concerning 
retail development and other main town centre uses, support such development in 
designated town centre areas or local service centres.

7.7 Whilst the draft Local Plan 2031 Part 1 is not currently adopted policy, proposed Core 
Policy 11 does reflect a longstanding aim of the council to support comprehensive 
redevelopment of the West Way shopping centre and Elms Parade which was first 
identified in the 2009 Core Strategy Preferred Options document.  However, due to the 
high level of objections, which presently remain unresolved with respect to this 
emerging policy and its supporting text, the policy has limited weight as per paragraph 
216 of the NPPF.  Greater regard therefore is to be given to the NPPF in line with 
paragraph 14 and where relevant, the saved policies where they are consistent with the 

Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

NPPF contained within the existing Local Plan 2011.

7.8 Although Policy S1 (Local Plan 2011) defines the town centre hierarchy of the district 
and supports proposals for new retail development within the designated local shopping 
centre at Botley consistent with the NPPF, part of the policy is not consistent as it is 
negatively worded (will not permit) and does not reflect the importance that needs for 
retail, leisure, office and other main town centre uses are met in full and are not 
compromised by limited site availability (NPPF, paragraph 23).  Greater regard 
therefore must be given to the NPPF, which is the more up to date policy.

7.9 The NPPF states that the Government is committed to securing economic growth in 
order to create jobs and prosperity, and ensuring that the planning system does 
everything it can to support sustainable economic growth.  Therefore significant weight 
should be placed on the need to support such growth through the planning system.  
The NPPF also recognises town centres as the heart of the community, with positive 
planning policies to support their viability and vitality, to promote competitive town 
centres that provide customer choice and a diverse retail offer and that it is important 
that needs for retail, leisure, office and other main town centre uses are met in full and 
are not compromised by limited site availability.

7.10 The NPPF defines areas specified on local plan proposals maps (i.e. policy S1 – 
designated shopping centre), including primary shopping areas and predominantly 
main town centre uses within or adjacent to the primary shopping area, as ’town 
centre’.  The NPPF excludes small parades of shops under this term.  Thus Botley, in 
the context of the NPPF, is a ‘town centre’.  As such the proposal to locate a 
development incorporating a wide mix of uses, on a previously developed site in this 
location is, in principle, consistent with the NPPF.

7.11 Employment & Economy
As a result of the redevelopment of this site several existing businesses will be affected.  
However the proposal is for a mixed used scheme and a number of the proposed uses 
on the site will create new jobs both during the construction and operational phase of 
the development.  The redevelopment of this site is also considered to support the 
economy of the town centre and will encourage people visiting the town to spend 
money within it.

7.12 Sequential test for town centre uses
Paragraph 24 of the NPPF states that “local planning authorities should apply a 
sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses that are not in an 
existing centre and are not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan. They should 
require applications for main town centre uses to be located in town centres then in 
edge of centre locations... When considering edge of centre proposals, preference 
should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to the town centre.  
Applicants and local planning authorities should demonstrate flexibility on issues such 
as format and scale”.  

7.13 Part of the application site (the current Baptist Church premises) lies outside the 
defined town centre area of Policy S1.  The ‘town centre’ uses proposed on this part of 
the site are the hotel and approximately half of the floor space for the new food store.  
Officers consider this part of the development is a minor incursion beyond the current 
designated town centre of policy S1 and the development either as a whole or 
disaggregated could not be accommodated elsewhere on an alternative town centre 
site in Botley.  The site itself is accessible, well connected to the current existing town 
centre and is in a highly sustainable location.  As such it is considered these uses fall 
within edge of town centre and officers accept there are no suitable alternative 

Page 22



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

locations to accommodate the uses any closer to the existing shopping centre.  Thus 
the requirement of the sequential test has been met.

7.14 Retail Impact
The council’s retail and town centre study March 2013 and its October 2014 addendum, 
produced as part of the evidence base for the emerging local plan, provides the most 
recent evidence on retail need.  This document states there is scope for new retail 
development within the district and forecasts 519sqm of additional floor space will be 
required at Botley over the plan period, based on constant market shares.  The study 
states that “Redevelopment proposals for the Westway Shopping Centre if permitted 
and implemented are likely to accommodate projected growth in Botley”.  The study 
also confirms “It is important to maintain a range of non-retail uses within centres, and 
where there are deficiencies, plan to improve the overall offer of the centre. In Wantage 
and Botley, there is a need for additional non-retail (Class A3-A5) uses, in order to 
complement the retail focus of the centres.”

7.15 The proposal will create 1,270sqm of food store space and 4,102sqm of commercial 
floor space to be used flexibly within use classes A1 – A5.  The existing buildings to be 
demolished currently provide a total of 3,874sqm, which will result in an increase of 
1,498sqm of commercial floor space on the site.

7.16 The redevelopment proposal exceeds the Botley retail capacity projection of 519sqm.  
However, the retail and town centre study confirms that, as a relatively high proportion 
of comparison goods spending is currently attracted to Abingdon, the improvements to 
the comparison offer of Botley would adjust these patterns and retain more spending in 
Botley. The proposals would also reduce the level of expenditure leaking to Oxford City.

7.17 Paragraph 26 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities should require an 
impact assessment for applications for retail, leisure and office development outside of 
town centres, which are not in accordance with an up-to-date local plan, where the 
proposed floor space is over 2,500sqm.  “This should include assessment of the impact 
of the proposal on existing, committed and planned public and private investment in a 
centre or centres in the catchment area of the proposal and the impact of the proposal 
on town centre vitality and viability, including local consumer choice and trade in the 
town centre and wider area…..”

7.18 The applicant has submitted a retail impact assessment which concludes the proposed 
development will not have any negative impact on any planned public or private sector 
investment within any defined centre in the wider area, and the proposal will not result 
in any unacceptable impacts as a result of an unsustainable level of trade diversion 
from any defined centre.  The assessment also considers the proposed development is 
commensurate (in retail terms) with the scale, role and function of Botley as a ‘town 
centre’.

7.19 Officers consider the retail impact assessment to be fair and reasonable and have no 
contrary evidence to disagree with its overall conclusion that, notwithstanding the 
proposed floor space provision, the proposed development ‘will not have a significant 
adverse impact upon the overall vitality and viability of any defined centre’.  The 
proposal addresses the projected retail needs identified in the retail study and will help 
to promote and enhance the local retail offer.  In turn, this will help increase the vitality 
and viability of Botley centre.  The retail impact of the proposal is, therefore, acceptable.

7.20 Hotel need
The NPPF seeks to focus leisure and tourism development in town centres in support 
of economic development, business growth and the expansion of the visitor economy.  

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Policy T1 of the adopted Local Plan 2011 is generally permissive of hotel development 
in the built up area of Botley.  

7.21 The Oxford Strategic Partnership has identified a need to increase in the number of 
quality hotel rooms in and around Oxford City as a key priority.  The council’s Hotel 
Needs Assessment states that “given the strength of the Oxford hotel market, the 
frequent shortages of hotel accommodation in the city and the lack of available hotel 
development sites in Oxford, there could be market potential for new hotel development 
in those parts of the Vale of White Horse that surround Oxford, given suitable hotel 
sites in these locations. This could be in terms of budget hotel development, e.g. the 
budget hotel that is proposed as part of the Botley District Centre redevelopment.”  As 
such there is no objection to the inclusion of a hotel within the redevelopment of the 
site.

7.22 Student accommodation
There has been a significant amount of objection to the provision of student accommodation.  
Students are defined in the adopted local plan as a special housing needs group under Policy 
H19.  This policy, fully consistent with the NPPF, states that in the built up area of Botley 
grouped accommodation for defined groups such as students will be permitted.  Student 
accommodation is therefore acceptable in principle.   In relation to the amount of student 
accommodation proposed, issues of scale and massing and transport impacts have 
been addressed elsewhere in this report.

7.23 Residential accommodation
One reason for refusal on the previous scheme related to the loss of existing housing 
from the site and the associated impact on the council’s supply of deliverable housing 
land.  To address this the proposed development now includes 140 apartments, which 
results in an increase of 128 units on the site.

7.24 Policy H16 of the Adopted Local Plan requires 50% of houses to have two beds or less. 
However, as stipulated in paragraph 47 of the NPPF, this policy is out of date as it is 
not based on recent assessments of housing need. The Oxfordshire Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment 2014 (SHMA) is the most recent assessment and estimates the 
following open market dwelling requirement by number of bedrooms (2011 to 2031) for 
the District:

1 bedroom 2 bedrooms 3 bedrooms 4+ bedrooms
SHMA 5.9% 21.7% 42.6% 29.8%
Expectation 8 30 60 42
Proposal 55 80 5 -

7.25 It is clear the mix departs from that which the council would normally seek.  However, 
officers consider the proposed apartment accommodation located above retail units in a 
mixed use redevelopment, is more suited to one and two bed units than family 
accommodation.  The variation from the SHMA mix also needs to be considered 
against the economic, social and environmental benefits of the proposed development 
which are considered to outweigh the limited conflict with the SHMA.  The council’s 
housing team are satisfied with the amended proposal in terms of mix.  Overall, officers 
conclude the mix is acceptable for a redevelopment proposal in a town centre and the 
previous reason for refusal on loss of residential use from the site is overcome.

7.26 Affordable housing & viability of development
Policy H17 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 requires 40% 
affordable housing on all sites where there is a net gain of fifteen or more dwellings.  

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Core Policy 24 of the emerging Local Plan Part 1, 2031 seeks 35% affordable housing 
on all sites capable of three or more dwellings.  A tenure mix of 75% social rented and 
25% intermediate housing will normally be sought.  Any change to tenure mix or the 
percentage of affordable housing will need to be supported by a viability assessment.

7.27 To comply with Policy H17 this proposal would need to provide 56 affordable units (42 
rented and 14 shared ownership).  Core Policy 24 would require 49 units (37 rented 
and 12 shared ownership).  The applicant, however, has offered 14 one bed starter 
homes (with a sales value at 80% of open market value) as an alternative on grounds 
of viability which is discussed in more detail below.

7.28 The NPPF (para 173) states that pursuing sustainable development requires careful 
attention to viability and costs in plan-making and decision taking.  Plans should be 
deliverable and sites and scale of development identified in the plan should not be 
subject to such a scale of obligations and policy burdens that their ability to be 
developed viably is threatened.  To ensure viability, the costs of any requirements likely 
to be applied to development, such as requirements for affordable housing, standards, 
infrastructure contributions or other requirements should, when taking account of the 
normal cost of development and mitigation, provide competitive returns and ensure the 
development is deliverable.

7.29 The applicant has produced a viability report to appraise the development proposal.  
The report is a residual appraisal which assumes present day values and costs, so 
reflects the viability of the development if it were built out and sold in current market 
conditions. It identifies the land assembly costs of this proposal are high due to the 
value of existing uses and indicates the developer’s return will be below competitive 
benchmark rates.  As a result the viability appraisal shows that the scheme is unable to 
be delivered if affordable housing is provided in accordance with Policy H17.
 

7.30 The viability report has been independently reviewed by an external viability consultant 
on behalf of the council (as local planning authority) who confirms the assumptions and 
inputs used are fair and reasonable, and that the existing site with a mix of commercial 
uses has a considerable existing value.  The consultant also acknowledges this is a 
large and complex scheme which carries a higher level of risk and concludes the 
applicant’s justification for replacing the affordable housing requirement with Starter 
Homes has been appropriately and robustly justified.

7.31 Notwithstanding the comments above, officers (at the time of writing the report) 
continue to challenge the applicants regarding the provision of affordable housing either 
on site or through a commuted sum for off-site provision. In this instance a commuted 
sum would be appropriate to assist with the council’s need for affordable family 
accommodation.  The proposed development consists of leasehold small units above 
shops, which would not be suitable family accommodation.  Following negotiations 
officers understand that an offer of £2,000,000, as a commuted sum towards off site 
affordable housing will be confirmed, and (if necessary) with an overage clause.  An 
update will be given on this matter at the committee meeting.

7.32 Local concern has been expressed that due to the scale of development, there is a risk 
that elements (such as the student accommodation for e.g.) could fail and thus it should 
be refused.  However, the viability appraisal demonstrates the development could be 
delivered as proposed.  Should it be the case that an alternative scheme comes 
forward, or that any future change of uses are proposed once the development has 
been completed, such matters would be subject to a fresh planning application and 
considered on its own merits.  As such it would be unreasonable to withhold permission 
on such grounds.

Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

7.33 Design
The NPPF provides that planning decisions should address the connections between 
people and places and the integration of new development into the natural, built and 
historic environment (paragraph 60).  It gives considerable weight to good design and 
acknowledges it is a key component of sustainable development.

7.34 A number of local plan policies seek to ensure high quality developments and to protect 
the amenities of neighbouring properties (Policies DC1, DC6, and DC9).  In March 2015 
the council adopted its design guide, which aims to raise the standard of design across 
the district.  Further design guidance is contained in the adopted Botley SPD and the 
assessment below is set out in sections similar to those in the design guide and SPD.

7.35 Site, Setting and Framework
The design and access statement includes a character study, context appraisal and site 
appraisal as required by principles DG6-DG9 of the design guide.  The applicant has 
identified planning designations and considered the physical aspects of the site, 
including topography, existing natural features, and access points in order to identify 
the key constraints and opportunities.  The development proposal responds to this.

7.36 Spatial Layout
The layout form is based around a central pedestrianised street activated by the 
community building to the west and the retail space throughout the site, with a focus of 
activity towards the east of the site (such as the food store and hotel).  The proposed 
layout has been derived from the principles of the Botley SPD in terms of access, 
linkages and legibility and the principles for public space and streetscape.  It is 
considered to meet the Botley SPD requirements in respect of layout and principles 
DG31, DG32 - DG36, DG38 and DG91 of the design guide, and is acceptable.

7.37 Height, scale and massing
Through Policy DC1 of the adopted Local Plan 2011 the council seeks to ensure that the 
scale, mass, height and layout of development do not harm the character and appearance of its 
surroundings.  Policy S1 of the adopted local plan supports new retail development in 
Botley, “…provided they (the proposals) are in keeping with the scale and character of 
the centre or area concerned and would not create unacceptable traffic or 
environmental problems”.  A number of principles in the design guide reference density, 
scale and mass and the Botley SPD also requires new development to relate to the 
scale and massing of the area and “create a varied and integrated roof scape, which 
contributes positively to the visual amenity, balanced with recognition and reflection of 
the existing character of Botley.”

7.38 The previous application was refused in part because it would result in a visually 
harmful development “by reason of the size, bulk, scale, height and massing of the 
proposed buildings” and it remains important to recognise that this new proposal will 
provide a step change in the scale of development which will change the character of 
this part of Botley.  As such scale, height and massing of the new development remains 
a key, if not the main, issue of concern from local residents.

7.39 A framework for heights in the Botley SPD has been established in a Scale and 
Massing Diagram. This indicates heights going up to eight storeys towards the north 
eastern corner where the corner could provide the opportunity for a visual landmark that 
“signals arrival, invites people into the area and creates a positive first impression”.  

7.40 The proposed development reflects the framework requirements of the Botley SPD in 
locating the highest buildings (eight storeys) on the Westminster Way side of the site 

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

with heights reducing further west towards Elms Parade and the residential suburb to 
the south.  However, the building strategy differs slightly from the Botley SPD as the 
tallest parts of the development are midway along Westminster Way rather than at the 
north east corner. Officers consider this differentiation is acceptable and are overall 
content with the proposed height of the development in the context of scale and 
massing.

7.41 In terms of scale and massing, the proposed development has been broken up into a 
series of blocks of varying heights which helps reduce the overall impact of the 
development and creates a more varied and interesting roof scape and building lines.  
The design review panel commented “this location in a district centre is appropriate for 
a higher density development with the scale that comes with it”. Officers consider the 
scale and massing proposed is appropriate to its context.  Notwithstanding that the 
scale and mass of the development will be apparent from public vantage points in 
surrounding streets and in views at some distance from the site, officers consider this is 
not harmful. The proposal is, in contrast to the previously refused scheme, now more 
broken up and articulated with a varied roof scape and integrated with the public realm.

7.42 Public space and streets
The Botley SPD is clear that public open spaces should be in proportion to human in 
scale and to take account of solar orientation to avoid overshadowing.  The design 
panel has commented there are some awkward relationships between buildings and 
overshadowing that needs to be assessed to establish whether the main space is a 
suitable place to sit.  Concern has also been raised that public spaces between 
buildings are too narrow.  West Way Community Concern cites the development does 
not comply with ‘height to width’ ratios between buildings and streets outlined in ‘By 
Design’ Urban design in the planning system: towards better practice.

7.43 In response to these concerns the applicant has provided an assessment of wind 
effects and a shadow study.  Whilst the potential wind effects are unlikely to exceed 
recommended criteria for pedestrian comfort, the shadow study indicates the main 
pedestrianised space will be in shade for most of the day.  The urban design officer has 
assessed the proposal and advises “I am satisfied that the close proximity of buildings 
and their heights will not result in an unacceptable sense of overbearing impact” but “it 
is clear that there will be less sunshine in the central public space as a result of this 
proposal… and this may affect the success of it and the attractiveness to people visiting 
the centre and seeking to enjoy the public spaces.  The urban design officer also 
comments “There will be however, be other locations within the site that will not be in 
the shade at the time that the central square is and these include part of the community 
square to the west, part of the passageway between Blocks A and B adjacent to 
Westminster Way and part of the front of Elm’s Parade. The site will therefore offer 
choice of spaces in and out of the shade.”  Notwithstanding the concerns raised, 
officers consider the public space between buildings and the resultant microclimate and 
shadowing within the development is acceptable when balanced against the economic 
benefits of the scheme.

7.44 Design quality
The Botley SPD is clear that building and public realm materials and finishes should be 
of the highest quality to create a cohesive environment.  It also confirms that where 
appropriate and practicable, development should seek to minimise energy consumption 
and aspire to achieve BREEAM excellent on non-residential development.

7.45 The proposed materials (as detailed in section 3) are acceptable and with careful 
control on detailing of both buildings and hard surfaces through conditions, the 
development will result in a high quality finish and public realm.  The development is 

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

proposed to achieve a 25% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of 
renewable technologies including the use of combined heat and power units and 
photovoltaic panels.

7.46 Overall the design of the proposal is acceptable.  The proposed development is in 
accordance with the development framework strategy of the adopted Botley SPD, 
relevant principles of the design guide and officers consider the proposal will result in a 
high quality development.

7.47 Landscape and visual impact
Concern has been raised again regarding the visual impact of the development in 
respect of both the local landscape and views of the historic skyline of Oxford.  A 
landscape and visual impact assessment was produced as part of the ES which 
assessed a range of viewpoints to examine the effects of the development on the 
landscape and visual amenities.  The assessment concludes that whilst there would be 
some effects arising in the construction stage and early years post completion, overall 
the development would not have a significant landscape or visual impact.  

7.48 It is clear that the proposed development has a scale height and mass that will be more 
prominent and visible in wider views from the surrounding area than the existing site.  
However it is considered that the potential economic and social benefits of the proposal 
outweigh this limited visual harm to the local landscape when assessed against the 
requirement to place significant weight on supporting economic growth in the NPPF.

7.49 With regard to the impact of the proposed development on the wider setting of Oxford, 
its historic skyline and views obtained from heritage features within the city, saved 
Policy NE8, the setting of Oxford is relevant. This policy states “The conservation of 
Oxford’s landscape setting will take priority in considering proposals for development in 
areas within view of the city”.

7.50 The site is not located within an identified view cone in the Vale’s adopted Local Plan 
2011, but officers have reviewed the landscape and visual impact assessment and the 
Oxford City Council’s document ‘Assessment of the Oxford View Cones’ 2015 – a 
document that the City Council, Oxford Preservation Trust and English Heritage have 
worked in collaboration to produce.  Existing taller buildings on the application site can 
currently be seen, but they are difficult to isolate due to the distance and they do not 
break the skyline.  Views are also predominately obtained either from an elevated 
viewing point such as a city centre tower or across the city centre from elevated ground 
such as South Park.  The nature of these views is classified as sensitive as they are 
public, viewed by people involved in recreation and the views are in relation to the 
setting of heritage assets.  However the distance, the main focus of the view, the 
expanse of the view and the location of the proposal in the background have an impact 
on the magnitude of the visual impact.  Whilst the proposals are greater in height and 
scale than existing buildings and consequently, more prominent, the magnitude of this 
impact is reduced when viewed at a distance.  Officers, therefore consider the impact 
on the wider setting of Oxford and its skyline is limited and outweighed by the potential 
economic and social benefits of the proposal.

7.51 Taking all of the above into account, officers consider this development proposal has 
overcome the first reason for refusal.

7.52 Landscaping
There are 79 individual trees on and immediately adjacent to the site.  19 of these trees 
were assessed and included within a Tree Preservation Order, served in 2013 to 

Page 28



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

ensure that not only would they be retained whilst subsequent development 
applications were considered but also to give weight to the quality of landscaping and 
tree replacement if they were to be lost as part of the re-development.

7.53 The tree officer is in broad agreement with the applicant’s assessment of the trees, in 
that their age, form and condition are variable across the site.  The better quality trees 
are those toward the east of the site, particularly at the West Way/Westminster Way 
junction and along Westminster Way such that some could have provided maturity and 
scale for the forthcoming development.  However, it is recognised that it is not possible 
to retain these trees within the site in order to allow a comprehensive and viable 
development.

7.54 The application seeks to provide a landscape scheme to mitigate this tree loss and to 
soften the visual impact of the development by enhancing the landscape within the site 
and for users and residents of the surrounding roads.  However, as currently proposed 
the landscaping scheme requires further refinement.  Whilst landscaping along West 
Way accommodates the space around Elms Parade and will allow for continuity of tree 
cover, the least effective area for landscape provision, and consequently replacement 
trees, remains the eastern boundary adjacent to Westminster Way.  There are a 
number of access points that make continuity of tree cover difficult in this location, but 
the absence of trees for a lengthy stretch along this road belies the importance of the 
contribution that the existing trees currently make to the visual amenity of the area.  The 
tree officer therefore considers the number, species type and available planting area 
will need to be improved to ensure that the landscape is enhanced on this boundary 
(visibility splays and hard surfacing notwithstanding).

7.55 In addition, the southern boundary presently relies on poor quality off-site trees from 
private gardens to soften the visual impact of the development for residents on Arthray 
Road.  To address this a new boundary planter along the south edge of the car park will 
offer ornamental planting and climbers to hang over its edge.  Whilst the planter will 
soften the edge of the development, it is considered there is not sufficient room to 
provide vegetation that will offer height and depth.  Officers consider a suitable scheme 
can be achieved within the site and further refinements to address these issues can be 
secured by condition.

7.56 Residential amenity
Adopted local plan policy DC9 seeks to prevent development that would result in a loss 
of privacy, daylight or sunlight for neighbouring properties or that would cause 
dominance or visual intrusion for neighbouring properties and the wider environment. 
Protecting amenity is a core principle of the NPPF. Design principles DG63-64 of the 
Design Guide pertain to amenity, privacy and overlooking

7.57 The development would not have any material harmful impact in terms of light pollution, 
general noise and disturbance, or loss of privacy to properties in both Arthray Road and 
West Way that adjoin the site, especially given existing day to day commercial activities 
that occur in the locality.  Servicing and delivery arrangements will be controlled by 
condition.  For nearby residents of the site, their view and outlook from their properties 
will change, however the development is not considered to have a detrimental impact 
on their amenity.  Issues of scale and massing have been addressed elsewhere in this 
report.

7.58 The applicant has undertaken an assessment of the impact of the proposed 
development upon daylight and sunlight access to the windows of surrounding 
buildings. The report is based on BRE good practice guidance and concludes that the 
majority of surrounding dwellings will still receive enough daylight and sunlight in 

Page 29



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

excess of BRE guidelines.  However, some ground floor rear windows on Elms Parade 
will receive slightly less daylight and sunlight.  These windows are already recessed 
due to the overhanging walkway.  Some secondary windows at 26 – 28 Westminster 
Way and a rear window at 6 Arthray Road will also receive slightly less daylight.  
Officers consider overall that any harm arising is limited and when balanced against the 
overall economic and social benefits of the scheme, such harm is outweighed.  The 
limited daylight / sunlight impact on some neighbouring properties is therefore 
acceptable.  Officers consider the proposal is thus acceptable in amenity terms and 
accords with policy DC9 and the NPPF.

7.59 Relationship with St Peter and St Paul Church
Concern has been raised over the impact of the development on St Peter and St Paul 
Church.  Officers consider the proposal would not have a harmful impact in terms of 
loss of light and the privacy of the memorial garden will be maintained.

7.60 Heritage Assets
The NPPF states that account should be taken of the desirability to sustain and 
enhance heritage assets and the positive contribution that conservation of such assets 
can make to sustainable communities (paragraph 131).  The setting of heritage assets 
within Oxford City has been addressed elsewhere in this report. The site and 
surrounding area are not within a conservation area and there are no listed buildings on 
site or in the immediate vicinity.  There is also no evidence that features that are 
demonstrably of equivalent importance to a schedule ancient monument are present 
within the application area.  The county archaeologist has requested an archaeological 
watching brief is imposed if permission is granted as elements of the original Elms 
Farm may survive and such features will require recording.

7.61 A significant amount of objection to the previous scheme related to the potential loss of 
Elms Parade.  This building was assessed to be of sufficient significance to be 
considered as a non-designated heritage asset meriting consideration in planning 
decisions.  The proposed development now proposes the retention of the Elms Parade 
of shops as part of the West Way frontage to the development site.  In terms of its 
setting, the conservation officer raises no objection to the proposal but considers it is 
important to ensure the proposed hard and soft landscaping around Elms Parade is 
consistent with the rest of the site to ensure that it is integrated into the whole scheme.  
The applicant proposes a continuity of shared surface finishes.  Further details on the 
hard surfacing will be controlled through conditions.

7.62 Flood Risk and Surface/Foul Drainage 
The NPPF provides that development should not increase flood risk elsewhere and 
should be appropriately flood resilient and resistant (paragraph 103).  It states that the 
planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment 
by, amongst other things, preventing both new and existing development from 
contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by 
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution (Paragraph 109).

7.63 Adopted local plan policy DC9 provides that new development will not be permitted if it 
would unacceptably harm the amenities of neighbouring properties or the wider 
environment in terms of, amongst other things, pollution and contamination. Policy 
DC12 provides that development will not be permitted if it would adversely affect the 
quality of water resources e.g. as a result of waste water discharge.

7.64 The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy 
(contained within the ES).  The site is located within flood zone 1, land with a low 
probability of flooding.  The site itself is considered large enough to deal with surface 

Page 30



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

water sustainably without causing surface water run-off problems and this could be 
controlled through a planning condition.  In respect of foul drainage, the development 
would be connected to the main sewer, which is acceptable.  The drainage engineer, 
Thames Water raise no objection subject to further constructional drainage details 
being submitted prior to commencement of development.  Subject to the suggested 
drainage conditions, the proposal is acceptable in respect of flood risk and drainage.

7.65 Ecology and Biodiversity
Paragraph 117 of the NPPF refers to the preservation, restoration and re-creation of
priority habitats, whilst Paragraph 118 sets out the basis for determination of planning
applications. Paragraph 118 states that “…if significant harm resulting from a
development cannot be avoided (through locating on an alternative site with less
harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then
planning permission should be refused…”

7.66 The applicant has assessed ecology and nature conservation within the ES and the 
surveys undertaken provide a good picture of the current ecological status of the site.  
Updated bat surveys of the buildings have been completed.  No bats were found to be 
present or roosting on the site and bat activity generally was found to be very low.  
There are no important habitats within the site and there are no other significant 
populations of protected species which are likely to be impacted by the proposed 
development. There are also no expected indirect impacts on nationally and locally 
designated sites or priority habitats arising off site as a result of the proposals. 
Overall, the proposals would not lead to a net loss in biodiversity in the local area and 
the countryside officer raises no objection to the application.

7.67 Air quality
The NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment by, for example, preventing both new and existing 
development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from pollution 
(paragraph 109).

7.68 The development site is not within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) but lies 
relatively close to an AQMA adjacent to the A34 in Botley and to the Oxford City AQMA.  
Details on air quality are covered in the ES and the regulation 22 update statement.  
The assessment has used local monitoring and modelling to predict the impact on air 
quality of the proposed development. These impacts have included impacts during both 
the construction and operational phases and the impact of the proposed CHP plant.  
The modelling has followed appropriate guidance and the authors have stated that the 
modelling results are conservative and represent a worst case situation.

7.69 The modelling indicates that none of the new proposed residential development will be 
exposed to nitrogen dioxide levels above the air quality objective.  The only predicted 
exceedances of the objective are outside the development site where at a few sites a 
slight to substantial adverse impact is predicted. It is noted that at these sites the air 
quality objective is currently already exceeded.

7.70 In terms of mitigation, measures have been included within the air quality assessment 
to offset the additional air quality impacts associated with the proposed development. 
These include the creation of a travel plan and incentives to encourage cleaner 
vehicles and/or alternative transport options, provision of electrical vehicle recharging 
points, public transport subsidies and contributions to wider schemes aimed at reducing 
emissions. 

7.71 Dust is likely to be the principle issue of concern during the construction phase 

Page 31



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

principally for demolition and moving earth and building materials.  It is considered the 
potential impact of dust can be effectively managed by adherence to recognised dust 
control methods as part of a Construction Management Plan (to be secured by 
condition).

7.72 Environmental Health has assessed the submitted information and raise no objection, 
but do query the provision of the proposed CHP plant which is predicted to have a 
negative impact on the Air Quality Management Area.  Such a plant would have 
benefits in terms of efficiency and carbon emissions but will introduce new nitrogen 
dioxide emissions into an area where nitrogen dioxide levels are already elevated.  As 
part of the air quality mitigation it is proposed to review the CHP boiler to minimise 
emission rates and impacts.  Subject to the proposed mitigation measures, as there is 
usually a technical solution (to be secured through conditions), the impact on air quality 
is acceptable.

7.73 Noise and vibration
The ES also considers the environmental impact of the construction and operation of 
the scheme in terms of noise and vibration.  The assessment concludes that effects are 
either negligible or minor adverse.  Construction effects can be reduced to an 
acceptable level with the specified mitigation and post completion effects from noise 
arising from traffic, plant and activities within the service yards can be reduced to an 
acceptable level with appropriate mitigation.  Environmental Health has assessed the 
submitted information and raises no objection subject to conditions to protect the 
amenity of nearby residents from noise as well as any future occupants of the proposed 
development.

7.74 Contaminated land
The Phase II Preliminary Geotechnical and Contaminated Land Ground Investigations 
report has not identified any significant sources of ground contamination on site.  
However, Environmental Health recommend further investigation of the site is 
undertaken as areas of the site become clear via decommissioning and demolition.  
Should planning permission be granted, a condition to ensure that any ground 
contamination identified is adequately addressed will need to be imposed to ensure the 
safety of the proposed development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable 
for the proposed use.

7.75 Traffic, Parking and Highway Safety 
Adopted local plan policy DC5 requires safe access for developments and that the road 
network can accommodate the traffic arising from the development safely.  It also 
requires that adequate and safe provision is made for the parking of vehicles, loading, 
unloading, circulation and servicing.  Policy S1 supports proposals for new retail 
development provided it would not create unacceptable traffic or environmental 
problems.

7.76 The NPPF (Paragraph 32) requires plans and decision making to take account of 
whether:-

 Opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up depending 
on the nature and location of the site, to reduce the need for major transport 
infrastructure; 

 Safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people; and
 Improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that cost 

effectively limit the significant impacts of the development.

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF goes on to state: “Development should only be prevented or 
refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development 

Page 32



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

are severe.”

7.77 Highway issues, along with parking, have again been the subject of much local 
concern. This stems from the view that the local highway network will be unable to cope 
with the extra traffic generated by the proposal and that insufficient parking space is 
proposed.  

7.78 The application is accompanied by a full transport assessment which forms part of the 
ES.  It has assessed the traffic impact arising from the proposed development including 
cumulative impact with other large development sites in the locality. Its findings and 
methodology have been assessed by OCC, as highway authority.

7.79 Access
The site will be accessed from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.  It is 
proposed to stop up the existing Westminster Way access and create two new 
junctions to provide access to car parks.  The existing accesses from Arthray Road and 
West Way will remain with the addition of a left in, in only, junction on West Way for 
service vehicles.  The proposed points of access are acceptable.

7.80 Traffic generation
Local concern has been expressed that the proposal would cause traffic congestion 
especially due to existing problems with the local road network.  The development is 
expected to generate 384 two-way movements in the morning peak hour (an increase 
of 169 above existing predictive levels), 532 two-way movements in the evening peak 
hour (an increase of 114) and 623 in the Saturday midday peak (increase of 342).  It is 
considered this level of traffic generation will have no significant impact on the highway 
network and is a level significantly less than the previous scheme.  The proposal has 
been assessed by the highway authority who raise no objection on traffic generation 
grounds stating “it is concluded that the proposed development would not result in a 
severe traffic impact at any of the junctions other that West Way/Westminster Way 
which will be mitigated”.  At the time of writing, a holding objection has been received 
from Highways England who wish to further review the traffic data in respect of the 
potential impact of the development on the A34.  It is expected, this will be resolved 
prior to the committee meeting, and subject to confirmation, this part of the previous 
reason for refusal will have been overcome.

7.81 Car parking
Concern has been raised that the proposed car park levels are inadequate to meet the 
needs of the development.  There is provision for 321 car parking spaces, 5% of which 
will be accessible spaces and electric charging points will be provided at various 
locations throughout the site.  The parking provision is not specifically allocated to any 
particular land use and a car park management plan to efficiently manage these 
parking spaces is proposed.  In addition, the student accommodation is proposed to be 
car free and controlled through a tenancy agreement to legally bind occupants not to 
bring cars to the site and not to park in the adjacent streets.

7.82 The highway authority consider that the proposals for car park management are 
acceptable and would provide a suitable level of control. The highway authority also 
consider the proposals for the management of the car-free student accommodation are 
acceptable and would provide a suitable level of control in respect of car parking.
However, the authority has expressed concern that some pressure for on-street car 
parking within the vicinity of the site could occur as a result of the on-site car-free policy 
and this could lead to the need to implement a Controlled Parking Zone within the 
neighbourhood. Accordingly the highway authority has requested a financial 
contribution be made towards the cost of designing, promoting and implementing a 

Page 33



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

Controlled Parking Zone should it be required once the development is complete. The 
Applicant has indicated a willingness to enter into such an obligation.  Officers, 
therefore consider the previous reason for refusal in relation to parking has been 
overcome.

7.83 Cycling and public transport
The proposed development provides sufficient cycle parking on site to meet the needs 
of the general public and student residents.  124 external cycle parking spaces will be 
provided throughout the development with further secure cycle storage facilities for new 
residents and students.  The highway authority considers the overall provision (536 
spaces) to be acceptable but has expressed concern regarding the high incidence of 
road traffic accidents on West Way involving cyclists and the potential for the 
development to substantially increase the number of cycle movements along West 
Way.  A financial contribution has therefore been requested towards the provision of 
safety improvement measures to enhance cyclist safety.

7.84 In respect of public transport, there are a number of bus routes that serve the site and 
West Way is an extremely important bus corridor into Oxford.  Existing bus stops are 
well used and increasingly will continue to be used by residents and users of the 
development.  OCC has therefore requested contributions to improve public transport 
infrastructure and these are agreed by the applicant to be acceptable. This can be 
secured by agreement.

7.85 Servicing & deliveries
The proposed service arrangements and location of service yards are acceptable in 
respect of highway safety and convenience.  Issues of amenity impact are addressed 
elsewhere in the report and a management plan for servicing and delivery can be 
secured by agreement.

7.86 Off-site highway works
To mitigate the impact of the development a number of off-site highway works in West 
Way and Westminster Way are proposed.  The current proposals have been assessed 
by the highway authority and require revision.  These works are off-site, in the control of 
the highway authority and can be covered under the S278 procedure.

7.87 Overall, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of its implications for 
traffic, parking and highway safety subject to conditions.  The application therefore 
accords with the expectations of Policy DC5 of the adopted local plan and the NPPF 
and the previous reason for refusal has been overcome.

7.88 Local finance considerations
Section 143 of the Localism Act 2011 amended Section 70 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 and confirms that local finance considerations can be a 
material consideration in determining planning applications.  Section 70 defines a local 
finance consideration as a grant or other financial assistance that has been, that will or 
that could be provided to a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown, or sums that a 
relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy.  The PPG states that whether or not a ‘local finance consideration’ 
is material to a particular decision will depend on whether it could help to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms and it would not be appropriate to make a 
decision on the potential for the development to raise money for a local authority or 
other Government body.  The Council’s land interest in this scheme therefore is not 
material to the consideration of the application.

7.89 Notwithstanding this, the council could currently receive New Homes Bonus on both the 

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

residential and student accommodation which is material.  However, it is considered 
that this matter carries very limited weight in this case.

7.90 Phasing
The proposed phasing of development as set out in applicant’s phasing plans is 
acceptable.  It is anticipated the development can be delivered without detriment to the 
continued trading of local businesses.  The phasing can also be controlled either by 
condition or within the S106 agreement by requiring the phasing strategy to be 
submitted and updated during the lifetime of the development.

7.91 Process – referral to Secretary of State
As the proposal exceeds 5,000sqm of retail floor space and part of it lies outside the 
designated centre identified in the current local plan, it is covered by the town and 
country planning consultation (England) direction 2009.  As such, should committee 
wish to approve the application, it must be referred to the National Casework unit who 
will consider whether the Secretary of State’s intervention is needed and if necessary, 
prepare a submission summarising the planning issues for the Secretary of State to 
decide whether to call in the planning application.

7.92 Contributions
The NPPF advises that planning obligations should only be sought where they meet all 
of the following tests (paragraph 204):

i) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
ii) Directly related to the development; and
iii) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Policy DC8 of the Adopted Local Plan provides that development will only be permitted 
where the necessary physical infrastructure and service requirements to support the 
development can be secured.

7.93 The PPG provides further guidance on how to apply the tests mentioned above  and 
notes the following:
 
1.      Planning obligations assist in mitigating the impact of development which benefits 
local communities and supports the provision of local infrastructure.
 
2.      Planning obligations should not be sought where they are clearly not necessary to 
make the development acceptable in planning terms.

3.      Planning obligations must be fully justified and evidenced. Where affordable 
housing contributions are being sought, planning obligations should not prevent 
development from going forward.

7.94 The County Council have identified that the development will increase pressure upon 
existing community infrastructure. Therefore contributions have been requested 
towards increased school places and public transport improvements.  These are 
considered to be fair and reasonable.  The County Council has also sought financial a 
contribution of £4,224 towards the expansion and improvement of Adult Day care in 
Oxford Options, based on generic costings.  No evidence has been provided to justify 
this figure and officers do not consider the request is reasonable or necessary to make 
this development acceptable.

7.95 District provision include contributions towards public art and sport pitch provision.
The additional population will increase pressure on existing sport facilities in the locality. 
It is reasonable to request contributions towards their improvement as no on site 

Page 35



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

provision is being made as part of this proposal. The sums requested are set against 
planned and costed schemes for new facilities in the locality. The amounts sought are 
proportionate to this development.  On site waste bin provision will be provided direct 
by the developer through a private refuse service.

7.96 The following contribution amounts have been requested.

Vale of White Horse District Council Proposed Contributions

Public art - £300 per residential unit £42,000

Closes Field football pitch improvements £23,757

Cumnor cricket ground pitch 
improvements

£11,619

Oxford RFC rugby pitch, pavilion and 
floodlighting improvements

£17,154

Administration and Monitoring £1,390
Total £95,920

Oxfordshire County Council Proposed Contributions
Framework travel plan monitoring £1,240
Supplementary travel plan monitoring £5,760
Amendment to traffic regulation order £1,000
New bus shelters and information units 
on West Way / Westminster Way

£52,000

Implementation of Controlled Parking 
Zone

£87,000

Signalised crossing maintenance £36,305
A420 cycle safety improvements £180,000
Expansion of Botley Primary School £228,384
Expansion of Matthew Arnold Secondary 
School

£212,424

Administration and Monitoring £3,750

Total £807,863

Overall Total £903,783

7.97 Officers consider the contributions are fair and proportionate and should be subject to a 
legal agreement should permission be granted.  However, these contributions may 
change as a result of ongoing discussions on viability and it may be necessary 
therefore to include an overage clause in any agreement. An update will be given on 
this matter at the committee meeting.

8.0 CONCLUSION
8.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning 

applications be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicated otherwise.  Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 provides that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions 
of the development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

considerations.

8.2 The application has been assessed against relevant saved policies in the adopted local 
plan, the NPPF, PPG, adopted SPD and all other material planning considerations.

8.3 The majority of the application site is identified in the adopted Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan as a local shopping centre, where proposals for retail development will be 
permitted.  It is identified under Core Policy 11 in the emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
as a local service centre suitable for retail led redevelopment. Limited weight however 
is afforded to both the existing policy as it is not fully consistent with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and the new policy due to its status in an emerging Local 
Plan.  Thus greater weight has been applied to the National Planning Policy Framework 
in considering this application.

8.4 The NPPF states that sustainable development should be permitted unless the adverse 
effects significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. The NPPF also states that 
there are social, economic and environmental dimensions to sustainability and that 
conclusions must be reached taking into account the NPPF as a whole.

8.5 The NPPF states that the Government is committed to securing economic growth in 
order to create jobs and prosperity, and ensuring that the planning system does 
everything it can to support sustainable economic growth.  Therefore significant weight 
should be placed on the need to support such growth through the planning system.  
The NPPF recognises town centres as the heart of the community, with positive 
planning policies to support their viability and vitality, to promote competitive town 
centres that provide customer choice and a diverse retail offer and it is important that 
needs for retail, leisure and other main town centre uses are met in full and are not 
compromised by limited site availability.

8.6 The proposed development for a major mixed use scheme in this location would 
perform an economic role by providing additional housing, new commercial uses and 
will help promote and enhance the existing centre.  The development is considered to 
meet the retail sequential test in the NPPF.  The scheme addresses the needs 
identified in the council’s retail and town centre study and the retail impact on other 
centres has been assessed as being acceptable.

8.7 The scheme would have a social role as it will provide additional housing and enhance 
the existing town centre.  Other social benefits will arise through the contributions to 
local infrastructure identified including towards local facilities.

8.8 The proposal will have some adverse environmental implications in terms of visual and 
landscape impact.  However these impacts are considered to be outweighed by the 
wider social and economic benefits of the development.

8.9 Overall the proposed development amounts to sustainable development and the 
previous reasons for refusal have been overcome.

9.0 RECOMMENDATION
9.1 It is recommended that authority to grant planning permission is delegated to the 

head of planning subject to:

1: Highways England confirming no objection.

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

2: Referral to National Casework Unit.

3: A Section 106 agreement to deliver the infrastructure package under the 
following broad headings:

i. Highways and transportation. 
ii. Community infrastructure.

iii. Phasing.
iv. Student management.
v. Car park management.

vi. Servicing and delivery management.
vii. Overage clause (if required).

viii. Delivery and monitoring.

4: The following key conditions (others may be added or removed):

1. Time limit.

2. Approved drawings and documents.

3. Development carried out in line with the mitigation measures in the 
Environmental Impact Assessment.

4. Schedule and sample of the materials to be used in the proposed 
development, including sample panels erected on site.

5. Building detailing and construction details.

6. Shop fronts and fascia details.

7. Hard and soft landscaping scheme for the site.

8. Landscaping scheme for roof gardens and green roofs.

9. Landscape operational management plan to be maintained for 25 years.

10. Boundary treatments.

11. Slab levels.

12. Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP).

13. Hours of construction.

14. Scheme of acoustic insulation.

15. Fixed mechanical plant.

16. Service areas delivery times.

17. Service and delivery management plan.

18. Waste management plan.

19. Details of all external plant and machinery.

Page 38



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

20. Details of external lighting.

21. Details of kitchen extract systems to be used on A3, A4 and A5 use 
premises including noise and odour control.

22. Advert and signage strategy to be submitted and approved.

23. Details of lift overshoots to buildings. 

24. Site security management plan.

25. Details of CCTV cameras and ANPR to be submitted and approved, 
including their locations, swept areas covered and design.

26. Archaeological written scheme of investigation submission.

27. Archaeological written scheme of investigation implementation, 
monitoring and reporting.

28. Site access details.

29. Vision splays.

30. Car parking laid out in accordance with approved drawings.

31. Cycle parking details.

32. Framework travel plan to be agreed prior to occupation.

33. Details of West Way bus stop improvements.

34. Details of Westminster Way bus stop improvements.

35. Details of West Way service access.

36. Drainage details (foul and surface water).

37. Sustainable drainage scheme.

38. Development carried out in line with Flood Risk Assessment.

39. Contaminated land investigation.

40. Employment and Skills Plan (ESP).

APPENDICES

1. Site location plan

2. Extracts of application drawings

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 15 June 2016

3. North Hinksey Parish Council response

4. West Way Community Concern response

5. Councillor Debby Hallett’s response

6. Councillor Emily Smith’s response

7. Councillor Dudley Hoddinott’s response

8. Councillor Judy Roberts’ response

9. Oxford City Council response

10. Oxfordshire County Council response

11. Urban Design Officer’s response

12. Comments from South East Design Panel review

Contact Officer Details

Officer: Stuart Walker
Contact number: 01235 422600
Email: stuart.walker@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 40

mailto:stuart.walker@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



P
age 44



P
age 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71



P
age 72



P
age 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



P
age 78



P
age 79



P
age 80



P
age 81



P
age 82



P
age 83



P
age 84



P
age 85



Planning
HEAD OF SERVICE: Adrian Ouffield 11Vale

of White Horse
District Council

CONSULTATION WITH
NORTH HINKSEY PARISH COUNCIL

OFFICER: Stuart Walker
CONTACT: Stuart Walker

PLEASE RETURN TO VOWH NOT LATER
THAN 12 NOON ON 2nd June 2016

registration@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel: 01235 540546

Textphone: 18001 01235 540546

135 Eastern Avenue Milton Park
ABINGDON OX14 4SB

AMENDED DETAILS

Application Reference: P16N0246/FUL (Full Application)
Application Type (see definition over) : Major
Amendment: No. 1 - dated 11th May 2016
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent
buildings (but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A 1-
AS) at ground floor level, with development above comprising 149 residential units
(C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) and 262 units of academic residential accommodation
for university staff and students (sui generis). New community building (incorporating
library) and replacement Baptist church (01), small flexible office space (B1).
Associated car parking and landscaping and altered vehicular accesses from West
Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by drawings and information
accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016)
Address: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford

NORTH HINKSEY PARISH COUNCIL:

considers that this application should be APPROVED
for the following reasons: D
~ f.\.s ....to c ~~ 1\ ~-.J.$ ~ Th i.s A{I~u C,.A-ri~ g'v)T \~ut.;
ael WilliS tlllllrlis9,pillilaticl:c @II!! lid to I!ji)I

. ' mlll:c ft 11 . g I 5 GGilG (pI&:M 9 f fI I I! Idst be gi,.,) :
1W\2:. Fc\...LOl-.j I N ~ <'oM"'" EN\~loQ~;; 1Pt1('!;'~ Ir,n~ .f\C(A7V~·

has NO STRONG VIEWS on this application
and accepts that VOWH will determine it as it considers
appropriate. (Please include any comments below)

Signed on ?'iha1f~~orth Hinksey Parish Council'& ~ o,M ~

................lj.[..~ ..e .

D

www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk D/VESTOR IN PEOPLE

Appendix 3

Page 86



NORTH HINKSEY PARISH COUNCIL
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE, HELD ON THURSDAY 2nd JUNE
2016, AT 7.45pm, IN THE SEACOURT HALL, BOTLEY.

Present: Councillors: The Chairman, Councillor A. Pritchard, and Councillors Mrs. V. Carr,
C, Church, Mrs. A. Dykes, A. Hardiman, D. Kay and C. Potter.

Others Present: Councillor L. Berrett, 3 members of the public and A. J. Stone (parish Clerk).

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor C. Potter declared non pecuniary interests in planning application P16N0246/FUL as a
Co-Chairman of West Way Concern and a member of the Seacourt Hall Management Committee.
Mrs. V. Carr declared a non-pecuniary interest in planning application P16N0982IFUL as she lives
near the property under consideration. Councillor D. Kay declared a non-pecuniary interest in planning
application P16N0246IFUL as a member of the Seacourt Hall Management Committee.

3. MINUTES
The minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 12thMay 2016, were AGREED as accurate
records.

4. PLANNlNG ISSUES
a). Applications for Consideration

North Hinksey Parish
New Plans - VWBDC
P 16N0246/FUL Amendment 1 dated 11105/2016 Demolition and redevelopment of existing

shopping centre and adjacent buildings (but excluding Elms Parade) for new
retail development (Use Classes AI-AS) at ground floor level, with
development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom
hotel (Cl) and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for
university staff and students (sui generis). New community building
(incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church (D1), small flexible
office space (B 1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road, (as
amended by drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated lOth
May 2016, see attachment): Botley Centre, West Way, North Hinksey (Botley).
Parishioner Dr. S. Parkinson addressed the committee about his concerns about the
application and some responses made by the committee to the earlier application.
He asked that the committee seriously scrutinised the revised plans including the
reduction in retail units and car parking spaces.
The Chairman, Councillor A. Pritchard then summarised the amendments/changes
that were being proposed including additional information now available in the
Design Statement which enabled wider comments to be made and led to a
number of points that now needed to be considered. He acknowledged support
for some of the changes, had issues with others, but acknowledged that MACE
had made some improvements. He was disappointed that the opportunity had not
been taken to provide a 3D model which would allow people to assess the impact
of the buildings, but accepted that MACE had proposed minor changes to the
buildings which showed they were willing to listen to concerns, but did not address
some concerns in relation to designs issues. He suggested to the committee that
the issue was how to best layout the floor space in different buildings with their
various functions.
The development lacked a 'grand entrance' partly because of its location, one side
of Westminster Way is 'greenish' embankment with the A34 on top of it, however,
the eastern entrance to the shopping mall from Westminster Way lacks a sense of
arrival and it was noted that the Design Review commented that the connection to

Page 87



the east-west route to Westminster Way "feels pinched" rather than being
welcomed. The lack of sunlight for much of the year to support green growth in
this key feature of the development is well illustrated in the Addendum to the
Design and Access Statement. Councillor C. Potter also made reference to issues
of shadowing from the height of the largest building and Councillor C. Church felt
that the mass/volume of buildings were the same as before, had not decreased and
what we now had was still unsatisfactory.
Block A
Councillor C. Potter believed it was more sensible to concentrate height on the
Westminster Way side of the development She made reference to the recently
provided sun-light study and as a result still had concerns about the mass
of the wall on the south side of this block as she believed the
building was unduly dominant and would cast a shadow over parts of the
development (see Botley Centre SPD Section 4.4: Density, Scale & Massing).
Councillor Pritchard felt that it was surprising that the highest point of the
development is not nearer the West Way/Westminster Way junction, as suggested
in the Botley Centre SPD Section 4.4, instead of which the height of building
A falls from 7 to 5 storeys. An opportunity for more "penthouse" style
accommodation overlooking Oxford City and Wytham Woods appears to have
been missed and could have provided opportunities for reducing heights elsewhere.
Councillors Potter and Kay, however, felt that moving the highest point towards
the West Way/Westminster Way junction could cause severe shadowing issues
for the flats on the northern side of West Way, and preferred that it should be
located more centrally along Westminster Way as in the current design.
Councillors expressed disappointment with the limited reduction in height of some
buildings and some councillors felt that the height massing along Westminster Way
was still unacceptable.
Accommodation units facing Westminster Way (and the A34) were most unlikely
to be able to open windows due to the noise and pollution from the A34. It was
suggested that this issue might be solved by moving the corridor to the eastern
side of the block so that the windows could then open to the west, away from the
A34. The provision of cycle spaces on the upper floors was felt to be unattractive,
and councillors suggested that more secure cycle parking spaces should be provided
at ground level.
BlockB
For a block that is supposed to be for students councillors found it surprising that: -
a). There was no communal amenity space provided on levels 2 to 4 and it was felt

that just having one space on level 5 for 118 units was totally inadequate.
b). The total absence of cycle parking is surprising and not sustainable for a group

that is most likely and able to cycle.
c). Councillors reiterated their views that any "student" accommodation should

be aimed primarily at postgraduate or post-doctoral students and University
staff rather than undergraduates. They were concerned that the accommodation
in this block appeared to be aimed primarily at undergraduates.

d). With neither University showing any apparent interest in student
accommodation on site, it would seem prudent to make the sub-division of
accommodation in this block particularly more flexible in case of the
commercial need to adapt to other uses.

BlockC
The level of amenity provided on levels 2 and 5 is low, just one space for 19 rooms
on each level (though that on level 1 is larger) and as with Block B, there is no
provision for cycle parking.
BlockD
There is no provision for cycle parking.
BlockE
It was noted that the Design Guide was positive about this block, but also
commented on the overshadowing by Block C from the south and the relative
heights of Blocks E, D and C. Since the retail frontages are the same length for
Blocks E and for Blocks C and D combined, this suggests the potential to swop

Page 88



them, giving more light to the shopping mall.
Building F
Councillors wished to thank MACE for the many meetings held to discuss layout
of the building, but expressed disappointment that the proposed location of the
public toilets was not in a more central position within the mall. It was recognised
that further detail regarding changes to the internal layout and operational
management of the Community Building would need to be agreed in ongoing direct
negotiations between MACE and other tenants, including NHPC and the County
Council.
Councillors also noted that there was a lack of detail about the provision of cycle
parking facilities throughout the site. Attention is drawn to the Botley SPD
Section 4.6.2 recommendation "Cycle parking facilities should be conveniently
sited and distributed through the site to provide parking at all key arrival points and
destinations" .
Design Guide Issues
Councillor A. Pritchard was concerned by the East-West design of the shopping
precinct as there was no sense of place in the current design plans. Councillor
C. Potter identified the need for two public spaces at each end as the current
proposals create a tight environment within the development. Some councillors
were disappointed in the quality of the proposed functional public space and felt
that it did not come up to the recommendations in the Botley SPD section 4.3
Public Space and Streetscape, and hoped it would be improved.
Councillor Mrs. V. Carr was concerned as there was no sense of safe cyclist routes
outside the development.
Car Parking
Councillors believed that there should be visible indications of vacant spaces in
both car parks to prevent unnecessary generation of traffic movements between
them along what would be a narrow road, close to a major junction and two bus
stops.
There still remains a concern about the number of available car parking spaces as it
was generally felt the proposed number was inadequate and may drive people to
park off-site on local streets.
Affordable Housing
Councillor D. Kay expressed disappointment that the plans showed no commitment
to the percentage of affordable housing that would be built and where it would be
placed. Councillors were in agreement that the percentage should be 40%, the level
quoted by the VWHDC in their local plan.
Retail Units
Some Councillors were concerned that the proposed retail units were quite large
and would reduce opportunities for small independent traders.
Lack of Mature Trees
Councillor Mrs. V. Carr raised concerns about the apparent lack of mature trees and
councillors asked the VWHDC to investigate whether any TPO's could be placed
on existing mature trees, to follow the recommendations in the Botley SPD Section
4.3.8 "Development should retain existing mature trees when possible".
RECOMMENDATION
Councillor D. Kay proposed and Councillor Mrs. A. Dykes seconded the motion
that,
, In light of the further information supplied since the committee's previous
planning meeting to discuss the proposed re-development, the committee is unable
to support the amendments until changes are made in line with the SPD and Design
Review (overall massing and layout and other issues) outlined in this and the
committee's previous response'
Councillors voted by 5 votes to 2 votes (Councillors C. Church and C. Potter) to
support the motion.
Councillors C. Church and C. Potter believed the motion agreed was an inadequate
response.

Page 89



West Way Community Concern 

Objection to planning application ref P16/V0246/FUL, including amendments. 

June 2016 

Contents 

Summary ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 1 

Basis of objection .................................................................................................................................... 2 

Urban design ........................................................................................................................................... 2 

Planning policies ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Traffic, parking, deliveries ....................................................................................................................... 5 

Student accommodation ........................................................................................................................ 7 

Retail ....................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Residential ............................................................................................................................................... 9 

Sustainability ........................................................................................................................................... 9 

Viability and risk .................................................................................................................................... 10 

Problems with the application .............................................................................................................. 11 

Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................. 11 

Annex 1: Conflicts with the Supplementary Planning Document ......................................................... 12 

Appendix 4

Page 90



1 
 

Summary 

West Way Community Concern (WWCC) ask that application ref P16/V0246/FUL be refused planning 

permission. The recent modifications have failed to address most of the concerns raised by the 

public, statutory consultees and the Design Review Panel. This submission repeats the comments 

raised in our last objection (April 2016) and provides updated comments where relevant. 

 We consider that the proposed development would cause demonstrable harm to the local 

area, by nature of its excessive height and massing. The proposed development is contrary 

to saved policies in the adopted Local Plan 2011, and the adopted Design Guide SPD and to 

the intentions of the adopted Botley Centre SPD and the draft Local Plan 2031.  

 The development is too dense, so that parking arrangements are inadequate to serve the 

users and residents. 

 The development will cause harm to the amenity of neighbouring properties, by overlooking 

and visual intrusion. The height and density of Blocks A, B, C, and D will lead to loss of light 

and significant overshadowing in the public realm. 

A more reasonable, sustainable and still viable alternative could be achieved though the reduction 

of buildings along Westminster Way to a maximum height of 20 metres (5-6 storeys), and the 

reduction of all buildings adjacent to the public realm (Blocks B, C, D and the western side of Block A) 

to heights of 3-4 storeys inclusive of retail. This reduced level of development would be compliant 

with the above policies and would mitigate or eliminate the problems with over-development 

(insufficient parking, reduced light) highlighted above. We are convinced that this would be an 

economically viable model, as the resultant uses would be of a more typical size (e.g., an 85-bed 

hotel and 139 units of student accommodation) rather than the overly dense uses currently 

proposed.  

 

Introduction 

1. West Way Community Concern is a community group, established in 2013 to assess and 

represent local residents’ views on the proposals for redevelopment at West Way, Botley.  

2. WWCC are submitting this objection to the current planning application, ref P16/0246/FUL. We 

believe that the comments in this document reflect the views of many of the local residents. 

These views have been sought via a survey in April – June 2015 (1400 respondents), informal 

feed-back following Mace’s public exhibition in December 2015 (123 respondents), a public 

meeting on 11th March 2016 (ca. 00 attendees) and comments received via email and personal 

communications. 

3. The first round of consultation produced more than 400 responses. WWCC have read all the 

comments submitted, and 332 of these were explicitly objecting to the plans, while only 20 

were in support. 

Page 91



2 
 

Basis of objection 

4. Planning permission for the plans as presented should be refused for the following reasons. 

 The design and scale of the development is out of keeping with the local area. In particular, 

the heights of the largest buildings, (Blocks A, B, and C) at 8, 7 and 6 storeys respectively,  

are taller than existing buildings on site and considerably higher than any of the surrounding 

buildings. It is contrary to policies S1, DC1, NE8, emerging Local Plan Core Policy 11, and to 

guidance given in the the Vale’s own Design Guide SPD and the Botley Centre SPD. 

 The massing of the development, with several buildings over 20m overshadowing the public 

space, is so great that the centre will feel oppressive.  This is contrary to established urban 

design principles. This point was raised by the Design Review Panel, but has not been 

addressed in the amended plans. 

 The design does not comply with urban design principles set out in the adopted Botley 

Centre Supplementary Planning Document (SPD); in particular, in terms of building heights, 

especially in the public realm, and arrangements for car parking, delivery and entrance and 

exits from the site. 

 The development introduces new uses to the existing local service centre, e.g. a large 

number of student rooms / flats, which are not naturally part of a local service centre. The 

inclusion of these new uses drives the size of the buildings and the density of the 

development, such that the total developed floor area is considerably larger than that 

proposed in the Botley Centre SPD. 

 The parking arrangements are inadequate, both in number and arrangement, due to the mix 

of uses (i.e. large numbers of residential units co-located with the retail centre).  

 The traffic flow and the arrangements for deliveries and servicing of the commercial 

properties are inadequate and potentially hazardous. Changes to the shared surface 

material will not resolve this problem. The arrangements for cyclists to pass through the 

site and for cycle storage are unsafe and inconvenient. Relocation of the cycle storage within 

the two-deck car park partially addresses the safety issue, but does not provide secure 

storage, as is expected for student accommodation. 

 The development will have an adverse impact on neighbouring properties, in terms of 

dominance and visual intrusion. Properties on the north side of Arthray Road will suffer from 

over-looking from the student Blocks C and D and the residential accommodation in Block F. 

External lighting for the buildings and the car park will affect the amenity of neighbouring 

properties. This is contrary to saved policy DC9. No changes have been made to these 

blocks in the recent amendments. 

Urban design 

5. Annex 1 of our previous comment, considered the urban design of the proposed development 

and the merits of the current application in the light of the previous reason for refusal. The 

comments made by statutory consultees raise considerable concerns about the design and 

layout of the centre. 

6. Oxford City object on the basis that “design, massing and scale are not appropriate to its 

present role and function as a local service centre”. Oxfordshire County object to the “intensity 

of development”. 

Page 92



3 
 

7. The Design Review Panel appointed by the Vale made the following comments 

“There are some aspects of the design which could benefit from further work and testing. These 

include parts of the public realm within the scheme, the architectural character and its 

relationship to suburban Botley, and the height and massing in places where it creates awkward 

relationships between buildings.” 

.  “..it could be anywhere. There is scope for further analysis of the suburban character of Botley  

… to provide a better sense of place. The architecture has a contemporary urban feel and could 

perhaps relax a little for this suburban setting.” 

“.. there are still some awkward relationships between buildings. For example the relationship 

between the parallel blocks, the potential blocking out of morning light to the raised courtyard 

in block B and the overshadowing of public space by block C. The height of block E, although 

respectful of Elms Parade, in relation to blocks D and C, with which it forms the main pedestrian 

route through the site, is out of scale with the building heights of D and C. More investigations 

and ‘shuffling’ of blocks to find an optimal form and position could reap rewards.” 

8. Mace have not addressed these concerns. The minimal changes made in the amended plans do 

not change the comments we made in our previous submission. 

9. We stress that the proposed redevelopment scheme does not comply with the adopted Botley 

Centre SPD or the provisions of the Vale’s adopted Design Guide SPD. The scheme fails to meet 

the required standards in relation to the two essential urban design issues relating to the 

quality of the public open spaces and to the height and massing of the new buildings. 

Public Spaces 

10. We raised the point in our last submission about the design of proposed public open spaces, in 

that the adjacent buildings would be over-dominating and the lack of direct sunlight reaching 

these spaces.  

This point was raised by the Design Review Panel.   “The long space running east-west needs to 

be assessed as to its overshadowing from the south in order to establish that it is a suitable 

place to sit and for trees to flourish. A study with some clear cross sections is needed to prove or 

disprove this.” 

“It would be worth exploring whether greater equality of heights of the buildings either side of 

the east-west route might feel more comfortable and allow more sunlight from the south.” 

“The east-west route works well but connection to Westminster Way seems pinched and might 

not seem very welcoming.” 

11. Mace have not addressed the suggestion that Blocks C and D need to be reduced in height. 

Instead, more information has been provided on the sunlight within the public areas in the 

developer’s amended application, in an attempt to justify the design. This study serves to 

confirm that there will be less direct sunlight within the public space overall, with the increased 

sunlight in late afternoon in the summer months not compensating for the reduced morning 

sun throughout the year, relative to the existing centre.  

Page 93



4 
 

12. Mace have, however, suggested that the trees to be planted should be those that are tolerant 

of reduced sunlight, hence the area would be also overshadowed by these trees. 

Height and massing 

13. The Botley Centre SPD provides guidance as to scale and massing which might be appropriate in 

this environment. The Applicant rejects these principles and claims that its “slightly different 

approach” including a building which was 9 storeys high was “shaped by public consultation”.  

14. The Design Review Panel commented: 

“We understand that the scale of this proposal has been a major issue in the public consultation 

and we would urge further careful consideration.” 

“The heights at the corner of West Way and Westminster Way work well but the Westminster 

Way frontage still appears too high.” 

15. Mace have now resubmitted plans with Block A reduced to 8 storeys, and Block B reduced by 

one storey at the highest point. They have compensated for this reduced height by increased 

height elsewhere, such that the blocks at 6 and 7 storeys now extend over a larger area of the 

development with increased massing. 

16. As a result, the Westminster Way frontage has been reduced at the highest point, but the 7 

storey frontage of Block B (hotel) now extends almost to the end of the building. 

17. We reiterate that, in our view, maximum building heights should be no more than 20 metres 

along Westminster Way (one storey higher than the current Elms Court and West Way House 

office blocks) and 10-14 metres (3-4 storeys) elsewhere on the site. This would allow a 

reasonable amount of intensification of the site without the material harm associated with this 

current proposal. 

18. The SPD envisaged a development which stepped up to 5 storeys towards Westminster Way. To 

be compliant with the guidance within the SPD, Blocks C and D would need to be no more than 

5 and 4 storeys respectively, not 5 and 6 as currently proposed. 

19. The previous application from Doric was rejected on the grounds that it was "a visually harmful 

and unneighbourly scheme, which is not compatible with or sympathetic to the character of the 

surrounding residential area by reason of the size, bulk, scale, height and massing of the 

proposed buildings". This new scheme should be rejected on the same grounds.  

Planning policies 

20. The proposed development does not comply with the saved policies of the adopted Local Plan 

2011. It also fails to follow the guidance of the Design Guide and the Botley Centre SPD. We 

covered the conflict with saved policies and the Design Guide in our last submission.  

21. It is now confirmed that the Botley Centre SPD is to be used to determine this planning 

application. Comparing the statements within the SPD with the plans put forward by Mace, it is 

clear that it is in conflict in a number of substantial matters; in regard to scale and massing, 

public realm, sustainability, servicing. See Annex 1, table 1.  

Page 94



5 
 

22. The SPD also propose a number of scenarios to illustrate would sort of development might 

come forward consistent with the SPD, see Annex 1, table 2. Mace’s application most closely 

resembles Scenario 3, Residential-led. It has replaced with 800m2 of office space and 3,316m2 of 

residential with 9,926m2 of students and 857m2 additional hotel space, resulting in a total GIA 

of 30,765m2 compared to 25,500m2 in the SPD scenario, excluding community buildings 

(32,632m2 compared to 26,700m2 including community buildings). If Scenario 3 represented a 

suitable density of development, then Mace’s application must represent over development.   

23. Mace attempt to justify overdevelopment on the site (face-to-face discussions between Mace 

and WWCC on 25th May) by suggesting that the quality of their buildings are such that costs are 

relatively high. We do not accept that it is not possible to have high quality design and a viable 

development providing sufficient return for developers, within the constraints set out in 

adopted policy. 

Traffic, parking, deliveries 

24. The proposed development introduces issues around parking and the traffic circulation around 

the site, and particularly the safety of the site for all users. A number of issues are identified, 

which taken together demonstrate that this centre cannot operate safely and will be likely to 

increase the probability of incidents and congestion on the adjacent highway. The centre 

therefore fails to meet planning policy requirements, or the intentions of the SPD.  The 

following comments supplement those from our previous comment, and, unless otherwise 

stated, we wish those comments to be taken forward. 

25. Oxfordshire County commented that there will be a ”substantial increase in numbers of 

pedestrians and cyclists. The highway authority require that further consideration is given, and 

would expect that improvements to the cycling and pedestrian facilities would be identified and 

implemented.” 

26. Oxford City Council commented that the “cumulative environmental impacts, particularly on 

transport and air quality, need to be taken into consideration”. 

27. Design Review Panel commented: “The edges of the scheme seem to be dominated by car 

parking and service areas, which are necessary evils, but more could be done to improve them. 

This is especially prevalent on Westminster Way where the service area/hotel drop-off and 

current bus stop all appear to overlap, thereby compromising one of the principal pedestrian 

access points to the east west pedestrian axis.” 

28. Our overall comments on the issues associated with traffic, parking and deliveries are1: 

 The estimates of cars per flat are too low. 2011 census data suggests that 90% of flats 

would have one or more cars rather than 80% claimed as a ‘very robust’ (over) estimate. 

Likely demand would be 1.2 cars per flat (as many would have more than one). One could 

expect demand for 168 vehicles from 140 flats rather than 112 implied. If the ‘one permit 

per flat’ were used the excess, 42 of these, could be parked in local roads. 

                                                           
1
 For more detail see full comment by Gordon Stokes 

Page 95



6 
 

 New estimates for likely vehicle trips to a small supermarket are a gross underestimate 

using town and city centre stores in Cambridge and Ipswich with no car parks, similar to 

Tesco in Magdelan Street, Oxford. More comparable stores imply much higher vehicle trip 

rates, with much higher parking levels implied. 

 The Framework Travel Plan is not fit for purpose. It is a generic plan designed primarily for 

workplaces with very little local detail, and without “SMART” targets (measurable etc). It 

relies on information provision rather than ‘stick’ measures, except for draconian parking 

permits and ‘free’ parking times which are unrealistic and, if implemented, would encourage 

parking outside the site, rather than reduce car modal share. 

 Road layout and design changes in response to the Design Review Panel are inadequate 

and introduce new problems. Disabled parking spaces have been removed from outside the 

Community Centre, the student cycle parking is no longer secure, and public cycle parking 

has been removed from the precincts and moved to outside the site on West Way. 

 The consultant has been selective in which comments they have responded to. Issues 

relating to traffic and delivery circulation have been ignored or bland statements of 

‘reassurance’ have been made. 

Parking 

29. We provided a detailed commentary on traffic and parking as Annex 2 to our previous 

comment. Additional documents provided with the amended plans attempt to justify the 

contention that parking is adequate, rather than address any of the issues raised. The 

arguments are not convincing.  

30. There is no increase in parking provision relative to that which is available for public use at 

present.  The expected increase in population from the residential, hotel and students who flout 

the ‘no car rule’ will add significantly to the parking needs.  

31. Oxfordshire County commented that  “The highway authority considers that it is unlikely that 

residents can be prevented from owning cars, and unplanned demand for parking will need to 

be accommodated elsewhere.” 

32. Comments within the application confirm that lack of parking is likely to be an issue, not least 

the high charges proposed for use over the 2 hour free time. The Student Management Plan 

mentions it; it is proposed that most users of the community hall will walk to the site, and that 

they should be encouraged to use public transport; it is suggested that local users will soon 

learn which of the car parks are likely to have spaces, implying that some won’t. The most 

convenient space, at the front on Elms Parade, is most likely to be over-utilised (relative to 

now), given its close proximity to the residential blocks A and E. 

Cycles 

33. Relocation to the other end of the car park is an improvement in terms of safety (but not 

convenience), but it is still in within a public car park, and is not secure, as expected or required 

within student accommodation blocks. 

Page 96



7 
 

Safety 

34. Relocated bus stops on Westminster Way are likely to cause conflict with traffic using the road. 

The relocated pedestrian crossing on West Way, 50m to the east, will require many users of the 

Oxford bound bus stop to walk an additional 100m. Many will simply cross directly across the 

central reservation (if not prevented), creating an additional risk of incidents. 

35. There are considerable issues of the safety of users of the shared surface route from Arthray 

Road to West Way. The change in surface material will not address this issue.  Mace now 

propose that this space should be used as a venue for public events, requiring closure of the 

road. This would cause further conflict between users of the centre, traffic and deliveries. 

Deliveries 

36. Deliveries to the foodstore share a parking bay with the hotel drop-off point. Smaller delivery 

vehicles will unload in the car parks. This will cause congestion and inconvenience, and again 

demonstrates the shortcomings of the design of the centre, and arises from attempting to fit 

too much on to the site. 

37. Oxfordshire County made a number of comments about the arrangement for deliveries and the 

likely conflict with other users. Given the mix of residential and retail uses, and in the absence 

of dedicated delivery areas, delivery times will conflict either with the use of the centre (in retail 

hours) or with the peace of the residents (at night).  

Student accommodation 

38. Mace assured us that their proposal responded to comments by local residents that there could 

be a call for accommodation for postgraduates and academic staff, and that the ‘student 

accommodation’ would be open to other categories of ‘university related’ personnel. 

39. A new Student Management Plan, written by CRM, has now been submitted, and it appears 

that CRM will operate the accommodation on behalf of Mace / BDCL, despite Mace’s previous 

claim of experience in this area. The resubmitted plan is largely relevant to undergraduates, and 

it appears that the main target for students is now undergraduates from Brookes University.  

40. Therefore, it still remains unclear as to what occupants are likely to be in these accommodation 

blocks, and how they are to be managed.  Until these inconsistencies are resolved, it would be 

inappropriate to make any decision as to whether permission should be granted. A properly 

constructed Student Management Plan, consistent with the types of residents expected, and 

the physical layout, should be approved prior to permission being granted. 

41. Previously, Mace confirmed that the studios are intended to be for single occupancy , and that 

this will be part of the tenancy agreement. In recent discussions between Mace and WWCC, 

they have indicated that there will be no limitation, and double occupancy of any of the units 

would be allowed. This increases the number of potential new residents on the site, over and 

above that assumed, with all the associated issues of bicycle storage, health support and 

general management within the buildings themselves. 

42. We question the statement that DVLA will provide details of cars owned by residents to the 

owners or managers of the accommodation blocks. This would be unusual. 

Page 97



8 
 

43. We are not aware of any specific arrangements being in place with Brookes University. 

 Physical layout of student blocks 

44. The nature and layout of the student rooms does not follow the usual arrangement of clusters 

of rooms with shared facilities, which would provide an appropriate social environment for 

young people, instead being an unwelcoming, unfriendly arrangement of rooms along corridors. 

The provision of amenity space and laundry facilities is insufficient for the number of occupants. 

45. Changes made to the access arrangements to Block B appear to result in a situation where there 

are no obvious exit routes in the event of fire or emergency, particularly from the accessible 

rooms, with over 100 student rooms being served by a single entrance. 

Retail 

46. We commented on retail assessment in Annex 3 of our previous comment. We repeat and 

update our comments below. 2  

47. The stated aim of the adopted and emerging local plans is to increase the variety of retail in the 

local area, and to meet the day-to-day needs of the local area. The application says very little 

about the scheme as a retail-led development, and fails to meet the objectives of the local plan. 

Retail provision is clearly a minority element of the new development, and this is, in effect, a 

residential-led development, (the Botley Centre SPD would describe it as such, especially as it 

apparently has less retail than included in the SPD ‘residential-led’ scenario). The proposed 

development does not enhance the strengths of the existing centre, or remedy its weaknesses; 

it simply replaces old buildings with new, but with rents that will almost certainly price out local 

and independent traders, which will have a negative impact on the local economy.  

48. It is apparent that the essential design of the centre does not start from a consideration of the 

essential functions of the centre, but adds these on afterwards, having determined the location 

of the buildings. This creates a plethora of problems for the safe functioning of the centre itself, 

the neighbouring roads and the safety of residents who need to pass through the centre, e.g. to 

the school or bus-stops. Recent changes to the plans have attempted to address some of the 

concerns raised, but these have been done as an after-thought, and produce issues elsewhere. 

This is an indication of a badly conceived plan. 

49. Oxfordshire County has commented that the duration of the redevelopment is excessively long. 

This conflict needs to be resolved. 

                                                           
2 See comment by Dr Stephen Parkinson for an assessment of the retail proposals. 

Page 98



9 
 

Residential 

Affordable Housing 

50. We note that the developers are not intending to include affordable housing to the number 

that policy would demand. We consider that it is very much in the public interest to be clear 

that Vale DC is making a good and transparent decision in this case. We recognise that Mace are 

expecting to make sufficient profit from this development, but we do not accept that the 

maximising of such profit should come at the expense of delivering affordable housing that is so 

desperately needed in Vale and across the county.  

51. If there are claims that providing such housing will affect the viability, then it should be made 

quite clear to the public how the viability case is constructed. We are also very aware that Vale 

has financial interests in this development. We are concerned that such interests may influence 

decisions on the affordable housing issues and on the larger issue of planning permission. For 

that reason we request transparency on the viability statement. 

52. As and when further information becomes available, we expect to be able to comment further 

on this issue. 

Demands on services 

53. Botley Centre was not identified as an area for a large number of new residential units in the 

saved local plan, or in the draft local plan. Hence, provision for residential growth in Botley has 

taken account only of the new homes already agreed. This increased numbers of residents will 

create demands on the local schools which is not planned for. 

54. Botley Medical Centre is under such pressure due to the difficulty of recruiting GPs that it is 

currently deciding whether to apply to NHS England to close its patients list. The pressure can 

only be increased by the introduction of so many new residents. 

Sustainability 

55. We consider that the proposed development would not be sustainable on a number of factors. 

Economic sustainability 

56. The development has only a small increase in retail space, with a supermarket comparable in 

size to the existing Co-op. It is not clear what uses each unit is likely to have, but it is likely that 

the rents will be unaffordable to independent businesses and service providers. 

57. The question of impact on other centres is no longer an issue. It makes it more likely that Botley 

residents will shop outside the area, particularly if the extended rebuilding programme deprives 

them of their usual retail and the parking to use it. 

Social sustainability 

58. The sustainability of residential units on this site has not been tested via the local plan process, 

and public consultation has not been able to comment on the impact or benefit of this 

development. The units are most likely to be buy-to-let accommodation for professional 

couples, of which there is already over-provision. The need within the county is clearly for 

Page 99



10 
 

affordable and social housing, but the developers have made explicit their unwillingness to 

provide the level of such housing that policy demands.  

59. The proposed development will lead to a loss of sense of place, with high, dominant buildings, 

unattractive public spaces, and conflict between uses in shared areas.  

60. The development introduces a large number of transient occupants into the residential area. 

The student accommodation proposed is not ‘resilient’ in that it is unsuitable for any other use, 

and therefore does not provide a long-term solution for the needs of the Vale.  

61. This is not sustainable, from an economic or social perspective. 

Environmental sustainability 

62. While the new development will not add traffic to the A34, it will put great strain on West Way, 

Westminster Way and Arthray Road, particularly as delivery vehicles are directed to use these 

routes. Stopping and starting traffic on Westminster Way and Arthray Road will result in 

increased emissions in these residential areas. 

63. The development will bring increased 24 hour light pollution and noise from delivery and refuse 

vehicles through all parts of the site.  

64. The scale and design of the proposed buildings are out of keeping with local character. There 

will be impact on the various historic views across Oxford. 

Meeting present and future needs 

65. Any development should meet objectively assessed need with sufficient flexibility to adapt to 

future change. Botley needs a convenient and flexible retail base to meet everyday needs. The 

retail provision is likely to be aimed at national chains, which can easily be accessed in Oxford 

City. The plans provide insufficient parking and offers no room for expansion or remodelling. 

66. The space made over to sui generis university accommodation will be difficult to repurpose for 

future needs, should it prove to be unviable as other accommodation more conveniently 

located for the universities becomes available.   

67. In combining residential and commercial accommodation in five of the six blocks, there is a 

potentially irreconcilable conflict between the needs of the different users, such as delivery 

times, waste disposal and kitchen extractors. 

Viability and risk 

68. We raised a number of issues concerning the deliverability, viability and sustainability of the 

proposed development.  

69. We note that the propose mix of class A uses is not yet determined, and will depend on the 

end-users and market demands. We understand that the actual sizes of the units themselves 

will not be determined until tenants are secured. Given the uncertainty within the ‘high street’ 

retail market, this appears to be a very risky venture.  

Page 100



11 
 

70. Vale’s own advisors referred to risks associated with the student accommodation, stating that it 

direct-let is risky for investors . New developments will be coming forward for student 

accommodation on Oxpens and Osney Mead. A large proportion of the available space within 

this development is given over to student accommodation, which as a ‘sui generis’ class and 

due to its physical design, could not be easily modified to other uses. The Vale should assure 

themselves as to the wisdom of approving this speculative development. 

Problems with the application 

71. In our previous comment we raised some issues concerning the nature of the documentation 

submitted. We don’t repeat these here, but the point we raised, particularly about the 

approach used for visual impact assessment, and wind effects still stand. There are still 

numerical errors in the Application Form. 

Conclusion 

72. For the reasons given in our previous comment and those above, we ask that permission be 

refused for this planning application. 

 

Page 101



12 
 

Annex 1: Conflicts with the Supplementary Planning Document 

The SPD was produced to assist developers to bring forward a successful planning application. The SPD does not set out any particular principles, as the 

Design Guide SPD does, but the intention of the guidance is clear. 

Mace’s proposals are in conflict with a number of statements in the SPD which describe the attributes which the development should achieve. 

Table 1: Comparison of SPD requirements and Mace’s proposals 

SPD requirement Mace proposals 

Scale and Massing  

Development proposals should seek to minimise access points with the 
main accesses via West Way and Westminster Way, with Arthray Road 
providing access for low level residential traffic only 

Arthray Road used as route for large delivery vehicles. 
Number of access points increased. One additional access point on 
Westminster Way, and additional entry only point on West Way. 

Overall maximumheight of 8 storeys and most of the centre up to 5 
storeys, stepping up towards east of site 

Buildings A, B, C and D are greater than 5 storeys, most of which the SPD 
would indicate as ‘up to 5 storeys’ 

The density of development should be carefully considered and justified to 
avoid over development which would result in excessive demands on 
infrastructure or services and/or inappropriate impact on local amenity, 
character and ‘place-making’. 

The comments from the City and County confirm that this will place 
excessive demands on infrastructure, and that the buildings make an 
inappropriate impact on local amenity and character. The density of 
development is greater than in the SPD scenarios, is not justified, and has 
an inappropriate impact on local amenity, character and place-making. 

Development should respond to the existing scale and massing of the 
study area and surrounding area, as stated in Principle DG51: Scale, of the 
Vale’s Design Guide. 

The scale and massing of the development is considerably greater than 
existing building on the site and surrounding areas. Mace admit that the 
design is ‘urban’ in character, while the surrounding area is suburban. 

Public realm  

Promotes two main spaces in the development – the Town Square and a 
social space. 

Ignores these and provides a space 16m wide, the length of the 
development, between 3 and 5 storey buildings. 

These spaces should be designed to accommodate and range of activities 
such as a market and events. 

Any public space is too narrow or cluttered, or is an access route through 
the site. 

Public spaces should be proportioned to human scale and take into 
consideration solar orientation and avoid overshadowing of spaces. 

The spaces are overshadowed for most of the day. 

P
age 102



13 
 

SPD requirement Mace proposals 

Public space should relate well in context including building height in order 
to form a sense of enclosure. (Examples given in Figure 31) 

The relationship between the building heights and the width of the public 
space is contrary to these and more general design principles. 

Sustainability  

Development should follow the design approach set out in the Vale’s 
Design Guide to ensure proposals respond to the surrounding and seek to 
deliver sustainable development  

The design approach does not follow that set out in the Vale’s Design 
Guide. 

The layout of the development and the design of buildings should be 
flexible to allow them to be adapted to accommodate different uses 
where appropriate and practicable. 

The student accommodation buildings could not readily be adapted for 
other uses.  

There is a mixture of uses, including a range of community facilities and 
businesses, however, there is an opportunity to improve the diversity of 
uses and extend activity into the evening. 

The proposed development will reduce the range of businesses, by 
removing entirely any opportunity for offices. Instead, a number of 
transient residents are introduced, in the hotel and student 
accommodation.  

Servicing  

Service vehicle traffic should be directed to a dedicated access and 
servicing facility accessed from Westminster Way, thus avoiding public 
areas and minimising service vehicle movements on residential streets. 

Service vehicles are directed through the site from West Way, and along 
Arthray Road. They use the public areas and lay-bys on Westminster Way 
for servicing and deliveries. 

 
  

P
age 103



14 
 

Density of development and uses 

Three scenarios are put forward to demonstrate the type of development which might come forward, see Table 2 below. Total floor areas (GIA) of these 
scenarios are (excluding community buildings): 
Medium mixed use: total area 26,500 m2; Residential-led: 25,500 m2; Higher level intervention (including redevelopment of the Barclays Bank building): 
28,500 m2. Mace’s application, utilising the site area of Scenarios 2 and 3 has a GIA of 30,765 m2, i.e. 16% greater than the SPD suggested area.  
 
Table 2: Comparison of suggested use areas in the SPD and Mace’s proposals 
 

Use SPD Scenario 2 
Medium mixed use 

SPD Scenario 3 
Residential led 

SPD Scenario 4 
Higher level intervention 

Vale / Mace contract Mace application 
(GIA) 

Retail, foodstore (m2) 4,100 5,900 7,000 4,000 to 5,000  4,798 (incl restaurants) 
1 

Restaurants (m2) 2,400  2,400 Yes  

Cinema (m2) 2,900  2,900 Yes  

Residential (m2) 2,600 14,900 (213 units) 1,600 Replacement 11,584 (140 units) 

Students (m2) 10,600  10,600 Yes 9,626 

Hotel (m2) 3,900 3,900 4,000 Not more than 110 
rooms 

4,757 (123 rooms) 

Offices (m2)  800    

Total (m2) 
(excl community 
buildings) 

26,500 25,500 28,500  30,765 

Community buildings 1,000 1,200 1,300 Yes 1,866.8 2 

Comment Most deliverable Deliverability 
compromised due to lack 
of leisure and students 

Attractive to developers Viability tested by 
Vale’s consultants 

 

 

1 Mace’s documentation has identical figures for NIA and GIA for retail 

2 Mace’s documentation shows NIA greater than GIA for community building 

P
age 104



15 
 

Mace’s application most closely resembles Scenario 3, but with 800m2 of office space and 3,316m2 of residential replaced by 9,626m2 of students and 

857m2 additional hotel space. If Scenario 3 represented a suitable density of development (albeit compromised in terms of deliverability), then Mace’s 

application must represent over development.  

Comparing it with Scenario 2, which is deemed the most deliverable option, it has removed the cinema and associated leisure, total area 5,300m2 (deemed 

to be critical in achieving deliverability) and replaced it with an additional 8,984m2 of residential and 857m2 of hotel.  Again, the conclusion is that this 

represents over development, and that the high volume of residential and hotel are necessary because these do not deliver the same amount of return as 

would the cinema. 

P
age 105



West Way Consultation on amendments, 2 June 2016. Cllr Debby Hallett 

Three main points:  

1. Botley SPD

2. NPPF expects a quality design

3. Affordable housing is needed and required

Botley SPD 

The Botley SPD, which contains policies to guide development in central Botley, was 

adopted by Cabinet on 18 January 2016. This Botley SPD is a material consideration. 

Mace’s planning application is dated 28 January 2016. 

Clearly there wasn’t time for the Botley SPD to have informed this application. 

NPPF expects a quality design 

7.56 of NPPF says: The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built 

environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from 

good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people. 

7.62 of NPPF says: Local planning authorities should have local design review 

arrangements in place to provide assessment and support to ensure high standards of 

design… In assessing applications, local planning authorities should have regard to the 

recommendations from the design review panel. 

The design review panel provided their report on 4 May 2016. They summarised their 

feedback: “There are some aspects of the design which could benefit from further work 

and testing. These include parts of the public realm within the scheme, the architectural 

character and its relationship to suburban Botley, and the height and massing in places 

where it creates awkward relationships between buildings.” The report contains the 

detailed recommendations. 

Mace submitted their final amendments on 10 May 2016. Clearly, with only two or three 

intervening work days, many of the deficiencies identified in the Design Panel’s feedback 

remain.   

Affordable housing is needed and required 

Vale’s policy requires 40% of the houses in this development to be affordable housing. (I 

understand the student accommodation isn’t counted in this figure.) If the policy were 

followed, this development would provide 56 affordable houses for the community. 

Instead, Mace are providing 10% starter homes. Starter homes aren’t currently counted 

within the affordable housing provision. It’s expected that the policy will change soon, but 

it isn’t policy now. 

The infamous project management triangle is the balance between cost, quality, and time. 

Good managers see they are interdependent and priorities must be set: pick two. 

In the case of this project, the priorities are 1) large capital receipt for the Vale, 2) 

attractive ROI for developer, and 3) needs of the local community for a generation or 

more. Vale has picked their two. 

Appendix 5

Page 106



APPLICATION WEB COMMENTS FORM

Information available for public inspection and available on our website

Location : Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford
Proposal : Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent
buildings (but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1-
A5) at ground floor level, with development above comprising 149 residential units
(C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) and 262 units of academic residential accommodation
for university staff and students (sui generis). New community building (incorporating
library) and replacement Baptist church (D1), small flexible office space (B1).
Associated car parking and landscaping and altered vehicular accesses from West
Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by drawings and information
accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016)
Application Reference : P16/V0246/FUL - 427

Please complete

Your name :

Your address : 2 SYCAMORE ROAD
BOTLEY
OXFORD
OX2 9EJ

Date :

Use the space below for your comments

Emily Smith

18 May 2016

I welcome the reduction in height that Mace have proposed and the addition of
Public toilets in their amended scheme. However my original comments about
the application still stand:
  Excessive building height
  Loss of sunlight and quality of public and amenity spaces
  Insufficient parking provision
  Traffic and road safety
  Proposed uses of the site
  Poor quality of the student accommodation
  Sustainability 

In relation to the public realm I am not convinced that the reduction in height will
have a significant impact on the sunlight and 'feel' of the main public space. I
think stepping back the height and changing the angles of the buildings may
have a greater impact. It is vital that this development provides a public space
that is welcoming, safe and can be used at all times of the day for various

Page 107

sharone
Typewriter
Appendix 6



community activities and to support local shops and cafes. Sunlight is key to
achieving this.

Page 108



Further Objection to the Mace Proposals for West Way 
Ref: P16/V0246/FUL 

I continue to object to the Mace design proposals for the redevelopment of West Way, Botley, 
Oxford, following the minor redesign.  My reasons are as follows. 

1. Excessive Massing and Scale
A major objection is the massing of all the buildings on the West Way site.  This is supposed to be a 
‘Local Service Centre’ serving particularly the people of Botley and Cumnor.  The massing effect 
remains after the recent redesign as, although the heights of some buildings have been reduced, the 
size of the lower floors has been increased to more than compensate. 

2. Car Parking
There is still not enough car parking on this site for all the activities.  The issue of hotel guests and 
their cars does not appear to have been resolved.  The shop workers will want to park their cars on 
site.  Consequently the present car parking spaces are too few for this site. 

3. Cycle Racks
The cycle parking still seems unsuitable for residents and shoppers. 

4. Loss of Light and Overshadowing
There has not been any remedial action to overcome the loss of light and overshadowing of St Peter 
and St Paul’s Church.  The community Block F to the south of the Church will cause overshadowing 
and loss of light in the Church.  This will be greatest in the morning when most of the services take 
place.  This block should be moved to the east to reduce the overshadowing impact on the Church. 

5. Conclusion
The present planning application from Mace for the redevelopment of West Way should be 
REFUSED. 

Dudley Hoddinott 
District Councillor for Cumnor 

Appendix 7

Page 109



APPLICATION WEB COMMENTS FORM

Information available for public inspection and available on our website

Location : Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford
Proposal : Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent
buildings (but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1-
A5) at ground floor level, with development above comprising 149 residential units
(C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) and 262 units of academic residential accommodation
for university staff and students (sui generis). New community building (incorporating
library) and replacement Baptist church (D1), small flexible office space (B1).
Associated car parking and landscaping and altered vehicular accesses from West
Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by drawings and information
accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016)
Application Reference : P16/V0246/FUL - 933

Please complete

Your name :

Your address : 1 STONE CLOSE
BOTLEY
OXFORD
OX2 9SQ

Date :

Use the space below for your comments

Judy Roberts

02 June 2016

West Way shops P16/V0246/FUL
My objection to the amended plans of the above application still stands.
1) Scale and Mass   I welcome the reduction in height of Block A to 8 storeys
plus a mezzanine but the Design Guide states 3-4 for a mixed residential
development and Oxford City Council still find the scale and mass inappropriate
for the Botley area as a Local Service Centre. The Landscape architect is
unhappy with the possible overlooking and noise issues with the properties in
Arthray road from the south side of the roof garden. Block C at 6 storeys  will
prevent daylight from entering the public space until the afternoon which may
make the surfaces slippery and difficult for the landscaping to grow.
2) The access route for lorries of greater than 5 metre uses the main car and
pedestrian  shared surfaces . To reduce the risk of accidents, The Transport
Statement has the lorry access through the site from West Way out into Arthray
Road and left into Westminster Way and suggests this should take place
between 18:00 to 10:00 hours. I agree with the Health and Housing team that
these hours should be altered to between 07:00 and 19:00 Monday to Friday;

Page 110

sharone_1
Typewriter
Appendix 8



07:00 to 13:00 Saturdays with no deliveries on Sundays or bank holidays. I also
agree that a condition should be added to make sure the lighting of the site
does not impact on the amenities of the adjoining residential occupiers 
3) Noise and Air pollution   I approve of the added glazing to some of the
balconies to protect their amenity space from the traffic noise levels of greater
than 55 but fear that this has not brought all outside spaces to within this level.
4) Car Parking and Cycle provision   I agree with Oxfordshire County Council
that points that still need to be addressed are
   Details of the analysis assessing the level of parking provision in relation to
demand and details of the uses in relation to their individual needs for car
parking
   Improvements to cycling and pedestrian facilities.
   Amendments to proposals for servicing.
The shared use of the car parking  for hotel, food store and residents is likely to
exceed the provision on site which will lead to the need for CPZ s to cope with
the overspill parking  Cumnor Parish does not have the provision for
implementing CPZ s. 
I welcome the improvements in the cycle parking provision but would like to see
a shared bike use scheme in place for both the student and hotel use.

Page 111



www.oxford.gov.uk 

City Development  St Aldate’s Chambers 

Direct Line: 01865 252847 109-113 St Aldate’s 

Fax 01865 252144 Oxford, OX1 1DS 

E-mail: planningpolicy@oxford.gov.uk 

Central Number: 01865 249811 

Planning Policy  

Vale of White Horse District Council 

27th May 2016 

Your ref:   Consultation P16/V0246/FUL - 319 

Our ref:     Response to Amended Plans 

  Dear Stuart 

  Consultation on Amended Plans (P16/V0246/FUL)  for the demolition and 

redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings (but excluding Elms 

Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1-A5) at ground floor level, with 

development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) and 

262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (Sui 

Generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist 

church (D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping 

and altered vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road (as 

amended by drawings and information accompanying agents letter 10th May 2016) 

Botley Centre, West Way, Botley Oxford 

 The City Council note that these proposed amendments seek mainly to reduce the 

overall height of particular buildings within this development, which is to be welcomed. 

However the Council still remain very concerned about the overall scale, massing and 

design of this development.  

  The Botley Centre, West Way site lies very close to Oxford City Council’s administrative 

boundary and whatever development takes place will act as a ‘gateway’ into Oxford, 

since it lies near to one of the main arterial roads into the City. It is therefore important 

that the proposed development in terms of its scale does properly respect its setting 

and is of a high standard of architectural design. Notwithstanding the reductions in 

height being proposed to some of these blocks the City Council still consider this 

development to be too large and therefore not appropriate to the role and function of 

its proposed position within the hierarchy as a ‘Local Service Centre.’ As such it is 

considered likely to have a potentially adverse impact on the visual appearance of this 

site on the edge of the city and impact both on the views from Oxford out to the 

surrounding rural landscape and secondly the views into the city.  

Appendix 9

Page 112



  

 

 

www.oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

  Although the latest scheme was designed to meet the principles set out in the now 

adopted West Way, Botley Centre Design Guide, Supplementary Planning Document 

(SPD) it was then reviewed by the South East Design Panel who shared the concerns of 

the City Council and other objections made about its scale, height, massing and 

design. In assessing the scheme in April 2016 the Panel considered that the ‘absence of 

a model made it difficult to assess the impact of the buildings on the surrounding public 

space and longer views’ and therefore they ‘urged one to be commissioned’.  

 

  The Panel in considering the submitted scheme took the view that the ‘West Way and 

Westminster Way frontage still appears to be too high.’ The amendments do include a 

reduction in the height of this building by one storey, but it still rises to eight storeys, 

which is considered to be unduly prominent for its suburban setting and in the context 

of the longer views from Oxford.   

 

In the absence of such a model it is suggested one is commissioned and the scheme as 

amended should be resubmitted to the Panel for further additional comments to be 

made. Given the close relationship of the site to Oxford it is regrettable that no views 

were sought from the Oxford Design Review Panel, who with their local knowledge and 

expertise is well placed to offer independent advice and guidance on major new 

developments that are likely to impact on Oxford.  

 

  The adopted Botley Centre SPD proposed the development of a ‘landmark’ building 

and sought a high standard of design for any redevelopment of this site. In relation to 

the design and architecture of this development the Panel considered that ‘while on 

the whole the architecture is polite and respects its context we feel as though it could 

be anywhere.’ Its architecture is recognised by the Panel to have a ‘contemporary 

urban feel’ but they consider that it ‘could relax a little for this suburban setting.’ The 

amended scheme comprises some changes to the heights of particular blocks together 

with some minor additions to the design, but the City Council still feel that a more 

radical approach is required to significantly reduce the overall scale and massing of this 

development to respect its suburban setting; together with a new design approach that 

will result in a new development of the highest possible standards which will make a 

significant contribution to its setting as one of the principal ‘gateways’ to Oxford.    

 

Given the close relationship of this proposed development to Oxford together with the 

number of academic students and staff (262) and residential units (149) being created it 

is considered to be highly likely that cycling will be an important means of travelling to 

and from the site, with significant movements to Oxford. In these circumstances it is 

suggested that a detailed cycle strategy is developed in association with the Local 

Highway Authority and cycle organisations to ensure that appropriate safe and 

convenient cycle routes are proposed for junctions and links to major roads.  

 

This approach would help to promote sustainable travel and integrate the new 

development with the surrounding road network. The implementation of the strategy 

should seek to ensure that cycling and pedestrian movement, including shared-space, 

and cycle parking / storage is provided to an exemplar standard. A cycling strategy 

would also respond positively to the County Council’s proposals for the creation of the 

‘Botley Road Corridor’ as part of the Oxford Transport Strategy (OTS), which includes 

provision for a super-cycle highway.       

 

 

   

Page 113



  

 

 

www.oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

 

Conclusion 

 

For the additional reasons set out in this letter together with those already put forward in 

our previous letter the City Council feel strongly that this planning application should be 

refused.   

 

 

Yours sincerely, 
 

Patsy Dell 

  Patsy Dell 

  Head of Planning and Regulatory Services 

 

Page 114



Page 1 of 26 

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO 
CONSULTATION ON THE FOLLOWING DEVELOPMENT 

PROPOSAL 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 

Purpose of document 

This report sets out Oxfordshire County Council’s view on the proposal. 

This report contains officer advice in the form of a strategic localities response and 
technical team response(s). Where local member have responded these have been 
attached by OCCs Major Planning Applications Team 
(planningconsultations@oxfordshire.gov.uk).  

Appendix 10

Page 115

mailto:planningconsultations@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 2 of 26 
 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 

Strategic Comments 
 
 
Comments: 
 
 
The application has been amended. Previously, an objection was raised as changes were 
required to address several transport matters. Following discussion and correspondence, we 
are now satisfied that no objection need be raised, subject to appropriate contributions and 
conditions being agreed as set out in the attached detailed comments. 
 
This application is for a major change to the shopping centre at West Way, Botley.  A 
previous planning application for development on the site, P13/V2733/FUL, was refused, but 
this application is for a less intense scheme.   
 
A summary of the S106 contributions sought is as follows: 
 

 Requirement Note Index Amount 

Transport Monitoring of 
Framework Travel 
Plan 

 Not index 
linked 

£1,240 

 Monitoring of 
Supplementary Travel 
Plans 

 Not index 
linked 

£5,760 

 Traffic Regulation 
Order change 

If required RPIX Index, 
base Apr 2016 

£1,000 

 Bus shelters + 
poles/flags + 
commuted 
maintenance 

2 x £15,000 
2 x £11,000 

BCIS Index, 
base Apr 2016 

£52,000 

 Controlled Parking 
Zone set up costs 

 BCIS Index, 
base Apr 2016 

£87,000 

 Signalised crossing 
maintenance 

 BCIS Index, 
base Apr 2016 

£36,305.66 

 A420 cycle safety 
improvements 

 BCIS Index, 
base Apr 2016 

£180,000 

Education Botley Primary School 18 places PUBSEC 
Index 3Q 2015 

£228,384 

 Matthew Arnold School 10 places + 
1 sixth form 

PUBSEC 
Index 3Q 2015 

£212,424 

Page 116



Page 3 of 26 
 

Property Library Mitigated by 
provision of 
new library 
facility 

 Temporary 
accommodation 

until re-
provided 

 Adult Day Care 32 new 
residents 
65+ 

PUBSEC 
Index 3Q 2015 

£4,224 

 Administration and 
Monitoring of S106 

  £TBC 

 
In addition to the above a S278 Agreement, to cover a range of highway matters, is required 
as set out in the transport comments. 
 
A summary of the conditions sought in the transport, archaeology, economy and property 
comments is as follows: 
 

 Various highway and drainage conditions 

 Archaeological watching brief 

 Archaeologist on site 

 A Community Employment Plan 

 Fire hydrants 
 
Officer’s Name: Lynette Hughes 
Officer’s Title: Senior Planning Officer                                                                            
Date: 01 June 2016 

 
  

Page 117



Page 4 of 26 
 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 

 
 

Transport 

 
 

Recommendation: 
 

No objection subject to conditions 
 

 

Key issues: 
 
This submission is a formal amendment to the application P16/V0246/FUL which was 
responded to by the highway authority on 7 April 2016.  In that response, the highway 
authority objected to the application because it considered that there were a number of 
aspects that raised sufficient concern as to require changes to be made to the proposals. 
 
The aspects of the proposals to be re-addressed related to the provision of impact mitigation, 
and can be summarised as follows – 
 
 Site access from West Way 

Traffic impact at local junctions 
 Location of Toucan Crossing on West Way 
 Enhancement of bus stops on West Way 
 Management of on-site car parking 
 Control of car-free student accommodation 
 Servicing and deliveries 
 
 
Subsequently a meeting between the Applicant and the highway authority was held on 19 
May 2016 during which the revised proposals and the various concerns were discussed. 
 
The accompanying agent’s letter dated 10 May 2016 confirms that the Key Changes to the 
application relate to non-transport matters.  This response has regard to the revised 
submitted proposals in terms of highways and transport and to the agreements reached at 
the meeting.  However, the planning authority is requested to have due regard to the 
previous comments made by the highway authority. 
 
Notably, in response to concerns raised, a number of technical Notes have now been 
submitted in support of the application – 
 

Page 118



Page 5 of 26 
 

 TN1 – Transport Modelling 
TN2 – Parking Management 
TN3 – Student Management 
TN4 – Delivery Management 
TN5 - Response to WWCC transport comments 

 
 

Legal agreement required to secure: 
 
A s.106 Agreement would be required to secure financial contributions – 
 

towards the ongoing monitoring of a Framework Travel Plan for a period of five years 
of £1,240.00.  A further £5,760.00 would be sought for the monitoring of 
supplementary travel plans;   

 
towards the cost of amending/revoking (if required) a Traffic Regulation Order of 
£1,000.00;   
 
towards the installation costs and commuted maintenance of four bus shelters and the 
erection of four Premium Route pole/flag/information case units of £52,000.00;  - 
(BCIS Index, base Apr 2016) 

 
towards the cost of designing, promoting and implementing a Controlled Parking Zone 
of £87,000.00;  - (BCIS Index, base Apr 2016) 

 
the maintenance cost of a signalised crossing of £36,305.66 (the new crossing to be 
installed by the developer as a S278 agreement) ; - (BCIS Index, base Apr 2016) 

 
towards the cost of delivering cycle safety improvements along A420 West Way and 
Botley Road of £180,000.00  - (BCIS Index, base Apr 2016) 

 
These financial contributions would be subject to appropriate index linking, as 
indicated. 

 
A s.278 Agreement would be required to secure all necessary off-site access and 
mitigation/improvement works.  As identified, these would include – 

 
 Layout improvements to the West Way/Westminster Way junction 
 Provision of improved pedestrian/cyclist lighting beneath A34 overbridge 
 Service vehicle layby on Westminster Way for retail units 
 Access works to residential car parking on Westminster Way 
 Carriageway markings and signing on Westminster Way associated with car 

park accesses and service vehicle laybys 
 Access/egress works to main car park on Westminster Way 
 Alteration and renewal of traffic calming measures on Westminster Way to 

accommodate new access arrangements 
 Service vehicle layby for foodstore and hotel on Westminster Way 
 Layout improvements to the existing site access on West Way 
 Provision of new paving areas, including the service vehicle access, along the 

south side of West Way 
 Provision of a new Toucan Type Crossing and associated works on West Way 

to replace the existing signalised crossing 

Page 119



Page 6 of 26 
 

 Alteration and improvement to bus stop provisions on West Way and 
Westminster Way 

 Improved uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facility on West Way in the vicinity of 
the bus stops 

 
A s.38 Agreement would be required for the adoption of new roads. 
 
 

Conditions: 
 
The Planning Authority is recommended to impose upon any planning permission they may 
grant the CONDITION(S) set out below: 
 

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted the means of site access 
are to be formed and laid out to the approval of the Local Planning Authority, 
constructed in accordance with the local authority’s specifications and all ancillary 
works specified shall be undertaken. 
 
Visibility splays shall be formed, laid out and constructed in accordance with detailed 
plans, which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the first occupation of the development. 
 
Prior to the first occupation or operational use of any part of the site a Framework 
Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning 
Authority.  Thereafter and prior to the first occupation or operational use of any 
individual use element of the site a Supplementary Travel Plan or Travel Plan 
Statement shall be produced.  Each Supplementary Travel Plan shall link back to the 
targets and objectives in the main Framework Travel Plan. 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development, a fully detailed foul and surface water 
drainage scheme of the development shall be developed in accordance with the Flood 
Risk Assessment in Accordance with NPPF & Drainage Strategy ref. 10/4452 dated 
January 2016 prepared by Ward Cole Consulting Engineers and submitted to, and 
approved in writing by the District Planning Authority, in consultation with the water 
authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the occupation of any 
dwelling to which the scheme relates and shall include a fully detailed management 
and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development. Reason: To ensure the 
effective drainage of the site and to avoid sewer flooding. 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development the developer should submit a plan 
showing improved infrastructure at the pair of Elms Parade bus stops, comprising 
high-specification shelters at least 6 metres long for passenger comfort and containing 
electronic real time information and seating.  This plan must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the District Planning Authority in consultation with the County 
Council. 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development the developer should identify a new 
location for the existing northbound Westminster Way bus stop and provide a new site 
plan, showing how this relocated stop integrates into the overall scheme design.  This 
plan must be submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning Authority in 
consultation with the County Council. 
 
The developer to agree bus stop locations and layouts with the County Council (and 
other interested parties) and these to be marked on all relevant master-plan and 

Page 120



Page 7 of 26 
 

junction design drawings prior to the submission of any Reserved Matters planning 
application. 
 
The developer to agree a written maintenance arrangement for the four bus shelters 
adjacent to the development to be approved in writing by the District Planning 
Authority. 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction Traffic Management 
Plan complying with OCCs standards and guidelines must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the District Planning Authority in consultation with the County 
Council. The construction works must be carried out in accordance with the details 
approved in the construction traffic management plan. 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development a comprehensive Parking 
Management Strategy for the whole site substantially in accordance with the Technical 
Note 2 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning Authority 
and thereafter the car parking within the site shall be provided and managed in 
accordance with the approved Strategy. 
 
Prior to commencement of the development, a comprehensive Servicing Strategy 
which will incorporate a Delivery Management System for the whole site broadly in 
accordance with the Technical Note 4 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the District Planning Authority and thereafter all servicing and commercial deliveries to 
the site shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved Strategy. 
 
Prior to commencement of the development full details of the service vehicle access 
point on West Way between Elms Parade and Block A shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the District Planning Authority in consultation with the highway 
authority.  Thereafter, the access point shall be formed and constructed in accordance 
with the approved details.  

 
 
 

Informatives: 
 
The highway authority has expressed concern regarding the suggested period of four years 
for construction and a shorter duration would have been expected.  The Applicant has 
provided some explanation of the need to phase the development construction so that retail 
functions are allowed to continue.  Nevertheless, the highway authority would expect there to 
be a robust construction delivery plan to ensure that disruption was kept to a minimum.  The 
highway authority would expect that, subject only to other routes being demonstrated as 
being essential, all construction related traffic would approach and leave the site via West 
Way and A420 Botley Interchange junction.  The highway authority would seek to secure a 
commitment to this within a legal agreement. 
 
The Applicant should note that the exact positioning of the bus stops would need to be 
determined and agreed by all key stakeholders, those to include the Police, Highway 
Authority, Bus Company, local County Councillor and Parish representative.  To ensure full 
engagement, the Applicant should facilitate an early site meeting to discuss the proposed 
locations of the required stops. 

 
Advice regarding bus shelter styles and the protocol for bus stop site meetings can be 
obtained from David Bellchamber at Oxfordshire County Council.  (01865-810405). 
 

Page 121



Page 8 of 26 
 

 

Detailed comments:  
 
From the agent’s letter dated 10 May 2016 the following changes are identified – 
 

The number of car parking spaces has been reduced from 324 to 321 

The number of cycle spaces has been increased from 535 to 536 

The number of Student rooms has been reduced from 262 to 261 

The number of new dwellings has been reduced from 149 to 140 

The number of hotel rooms has been increased from 122 to 123 

The retail floor area has increased from 4756 m2 to 4798 m2 

 
The highway authority confirms that none of these changes is considered to be significant in 
transport terms. 
 
Technical Note 1 (TN1) has been submitted as an update on the transport assessment.  This 
has been done in response to the highway authority’s request for more detail to be provided 
to explain unexpected outcomes from the LINSIG modelling. 
 
In order to obtain a more detailed and accurate assessment of the local priority junctions, 
further evaluation has been carried out using independent PICADY assessments.  These 
have demonstrated that the junctions would operate satisfactorily.  It is concluded that the 
proposed development would not result in a severe traffic impact at any of the junctions other 
that West Way/Westminster Way which will be mitigated.  
 
Technical Note 2 (TN2) has been submitted in support of the proposals for car parking 
management.  This follows the highway authority’s request for more information about how 
the on-site parking would be managed. 
 
TN2 confirms that the overall number of parking spaces proposed to be provided is now 321, 
a reduction of three.  None of the parking would be allocated to specific buildings or uses, but 
the location of the parking would be distributed as follows – 
 

Elms Parade (front)       40 spaces 
Elms Parade (rear)       21 spaces 
Westminster Way (below Block A)    34 spaces 
Westminster Way (decked car park)  193 spaces 
Community area       33 spaces 
 

Electric charging points would be provided in accordance with the planning authority’s 
requirements. 
 
The car parks would not be controlled by physical barriers at the entries and exits but would 
be managed by the operation of an ANPR (Automatic Number Plate Recognition) system.  
Prior to leaving the car park a driver would be required to enter their registration number into 
a pay station machine which would determine the charge to be paid based upon the recorded 
entry time and length of stay.  The system would check vehicles leaving the car park and 
identify that the correct fee had been paid. 
 

Page 122



Page 9 of 26 
 

The system would be able to identify at any time the amount of parking being utilised and 
variable message signing would be provided at the car park accesses advising the number of 
spaces available or whether the car parking was full. 
 
TN2 states that the car parks would be controlled by a car park operator (being a member of 
the British Parking Association) and the management process would include visual 
observation and reporting.  The Applicant has confirmed that this would be a daily operation 
and warden patrols would be used to identify any poor parking including the misuse of aisles 
and disabled spaces.  It is assumed, therefore, that there would be a full-time presence 
based on or close to the site, although this has not been made clear. 
 
It is proposed that one occupier of each of the residential units would be exempt from car 
parking charges by being identified within the system as being ‘authorised users’.  It is further 
proposed that the hotel would notify the car park operator in advance of any guest requiring 
parking on the site.  These guest vehicles would be recorded as ‘authorised users’ only on 
the specifically required dates and between the hours of 9.30pm and 9.00am.  Any parking 
outside of these times and on other dates would be subject to the applied charging rates.   
 
Occupiers of the student rooms would not be identified as ‘authorised users’. 
 
The highway authority considers that the proposals for car park management are acceptable 
and would provide a suitable level of control. 
 
The submitted Technical Note 3 has been prepared to give additional information regarding 
the proposed car-free student accommodation.  TN3 confirms that an experienced Student 
Management Company would be employed to manage all aspects of the student 
accommodation and would have a full time presence on the site.  This would include the 
control of student car ownership by means of Tenancy Agreements to ensure that student car 
parking within the site did not occur. 
 
The only exception to this would be to allow limited access for operational parking associated 
with the arrival and departure of students at the start and end of college terms. An example of 
a standard tenancy agreement has been included as an appendix to TN3. 
 
The highway authority considers that the proposals for the management of the car-free 
student accommodation are acceptable and would provide a suitable level of control in 
respect of car parking.  However, the highway authority has expressed concern and the 
Applicant has acknowledged that some pressure for on-street car parking within the vicinity of 
the site could occur as a result of the on-site car-free policy and this could lead to the need to 
implement a Controlled Parking Zone within the neighbourhood.  Accordingly the highway 
authority has required that a financial contribution of £87,000.00 should be made towards the 
cost of designing, promoting and implementing a Controlled Parking Zone.  The Applicant 
has indicated a willingness to enter into such an obligation.  
 
A Technical Note 4 has been submitted to provide additional information regarding the 
operational servicing of the site and the control of deliveries.  The highway authority has 
previously expressed concern about the potential for conflicts on the service route through 
the site and its possible misuse by rat-running vehicles. 
 
Servicing to most of the site (Blocks A, B, C, D and F) would require vehicles to pass through 
the pedestrian concourse area which is immediately to the east of the Community building.  
As such it would be essential to minimise the potential for pedestrian/vehicle conflict.  
Revised drawings have been submitted to demonstrate enhanced features within the 
concourse area to emphasise its predominance as a pedestrianised area.  It has been 

Page 123



Page 10 of 26 
 

confirmed that a delivery management system would be developed and integrated with the 
ANPR parking management strategy.  Servicing and deliveries would be allowed only during 
restricted time periods.  
 
The highway authority has also expressed concern about the second access that is proposed 
to be taken from West Way to the west of Block A. 
 
The Applicant has confirmed that it would be essential for a service access to be provided 
from West Way at the rear of Block A in order to allow vehicles to reach the rear of Elms 
Parade and the retail units 16-22 with the residential accommodation above.  The highway 
authority acknowledges this need and therefore does not object in principle to the creation of 
a service access at this point.  However, it does consider that this access should be as 
limited as possible, given the importance of West Way as a busy strategic route and the 
proximity to Elms Road and the proposed signalised crossing. 
 
The highway authority requires that the access would be provided only as a cross-over point 
and not be constructed as a discernible junction.  Pedestrian movements would remain 
predominant and the access point would be used solely for service and delivery vehicles 
turning left into the site from West Way.  The eastern end of the car parking at the front of 
Elms Parade must be enclosed and all cars using that parking area must be required to enter 
and leave by the main West Way access point at Church Way. 
 
The form of junction as shown on the submitted drawings does not suitably depict the above 
requirements and the highway authority would require that detailed layout drawings of the 
access point are submitted for approval. 
 
In association with this proposed access point and the wider needs for measures to be taken 
along West Way to accommodate the development, the highway authority further discussed 
its requirements at the meeting held with the Applicant and the District Planning Authority on 
19 May 2016.  These measures are itemised as follows - 

The junction of West Way/Westminster Way would be modified to include a separate 
left turn lane on the westbound approach and enhanced uncontrolled pedestrian 
crossing facility.  The Transport Assessment has demonstrated that this modification 
would be required to mitigate the traffic impact at the junction. 
 
The junction modification above would require that the footway beneath and to the 
west of the A34 overbridge would be lost to carriageway widening and pedestrians 
would be required to pass under the bridge between the abutment and the pier.  To 
facilitate this as a safe route, lighting beneath the structure would be required. 

  
A service vehicle access point would be provided as described in detail above.  It is 
proposed that new surfacing would be provided across this access point and more 
generally along the south side of West Way, including the footway and bus layby. 

  
A straight-across Toucan crossing would be provided at a location to the west of the 
service access point.  This would be broadly in the same position as the existing 
crossing on the westbound carriageway. 

  
The existing access into the site at Church Way would be improved with modified kerb 
lines and incorporating a raised table. 
 
The westbound bus stop would be improved and enhanced by the provision of new 
surfacing to the layby, new pole, flag and information case, and a new double length 
shelter. 

Page 124



Page 11 of 26 
 

 
The eastbound bus stop would be improved and enhanced by the provision of a new 
pole, flag and information case, and a new double length shelter. 
 
An improved uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facility (including dropped kerbs and 
tactile paving) would be provided on West Way in the vicinity of the bus stops. 
 
The highway authority has expressed concern regarding the high incidence of road 
traffic accidents on West Way involving cyclists and requires that consideration is 
given to the provision of improvement measures to enhance cyclist safety.  It is 
proposed that 536 cycle parking spaces would be provided within the site and it is 
clear, with limited car parking to be provided on site and a major element of the 
development being car-free, that the development would be expected to substantially 
increase the number of cycle movements along West Way.  The Applicant has 
acknowledged this and has indicated a willingness to make an appropriate financial 
contribution towards the delivery of such safety improvement measures that are 
identified in the soon to be published A420 Botley Road corridor study. 
 

 
Further measures are required to be taken along Westminster Way to accommodate the 
development, in particular the access points to the car parks.  These measures are itemised 
as follows - 

 
A service vehicle layby would be provided on the west side of the carriageway in front 
of the residential Block A. 
 
The existing traffic calming (speed humps) features between West Way and Arthray 
Road would be removed 
 
A junction raised table would be provided across the access to the car park to Block A 
and extending southwards.  The exact length and positioning of the table would be 
agreed with the highway authority. 
 
The southbound bus stop would be improved and enhanced by the provision of a new 
pole, flag and information case, and a new shelter. 
 
The northbound bus stop would be removed from its existing location further south 
and be replaced adjacent to the development, improved and enhanced by the 
provision of a new pole, flag and information case, and a new shelter. 
 
A service vehicle layby would be provided on the west side of the carriageway in front 
of the hotel Block B. 
 
A junction raised table would be provided across the access to the decked car park 
access.  The exact length and positioning of the table would be agreed with the 
highway authority. 

 
It is proposed that new carriageway and footway surfacing would be provided along 
the length of the road from West Way to a point at the southern boundary of the site 

 
 
A Technical Note 5 has been submitted as a response to a number of comments raised by 
the West Way Community Concern group. 
 

Page 125



Page 12 of 26 
 

Many of the issues, such as the car parking provisions for residents and hotel users, the car-
free accommodation for students, the use of Church Way as a route through the site and 
servicing of the site, have been addressed in the highway authority’s own response. 
 
It is noted that the location of the proposed Toucan crossing was a concern and in response 
the Applicant had proposed that the crossing should be moved 20-30 metres to the east.  
However, the highway authority has commented about this and has considered that moving 
the crossing so close to the Elms Road junction and the proposed site service access point 
would not be desirable. 
 
Officer’s Name: John M Patey 
Officer’s Title: Temporary Development Control (Transport) Consultant 
Date: 01 June 2016 

  

Page 126



Page 13 of 26 
 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 

 
 

Archaeology 

 

Recommendation: 
 

No objection subject to conditions 
 

 

Key issues: 
 
The current land use of the application area makes any predetermination evaluation very 
difficult. 
There has been considerable truncation of the application area. 
Some elements of the original Elms Farm may survive in situ and any features relating to it 
will therefore require recording. 
We would recommend that should consent be granted that conditions be attached that will 
require an archaeological watching brief to be maintained during the period of groundworks in 
the area of the former Elms Farm.  
 

Legal agreement required to secure: 
 
None 
 

Conditions: 
 
 
1) The applicant, or their agents or successors in title, shall be responsible for organising and 
implementing an archaeological watching brief, to be maintained during the period of 
construction/during any groundworks taking place on the site. The watching brief shall be 
carried out by a professional archaeological organisation in accordance with a Written 
Scheme of Investigation that has first been approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason - To safeguard the recording of archaeological matters within the site in 
accordance with the NPPF (2012) 
 
2) Following the approval of the Written Scheme of Investigation referred to in condition 1, no 
development shall commence on site without the appointed archaeologist being present. 
Once the watching brief has been completed its findings shall be reported to the Local 
Planning Authority, as agreed in the Written Scheme of Investigation, including all 

Page 127



Page 14 of 26 
 

processing, research and analysis necessary to produce an accessible and useable archive 
and a full report for publication. 
 
Reason - To safeguard the recording of archaeological matters within the site in 
accordance with the NPPF (2012) 
 

Informatives: 
 
None 
 

Detailed comments:  
 
The current land use of the application area makes any predetermination evaluation very 
difficult. 
 
There has been considerable truncation of the application area. 
 
Some elements of the original Elms Farm may survive in situ and any features relating to it 
will therefore require recording. 
 
We would, therefore, recommend that, should planning permission be granted, the applicant 
should be responsible for ensuring the implementation of an archaeological monitoring and 
recording action (watching brief) to be maintained during the period of construction. This can 
be ensured through the attachment of suitable negative conditions. 
 
If the applicant makes contact with us we shall be pleased to outline the procedures involved 
and provide a brief upon which a costed specification can be based. 
 
Officer’s Name: Hugh Coddington                 
Officer’s Title: Archaeology Team Leader                 
Date: 16 May 2016 

  

Page 128



Page 15 of 26 
 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 

 
 

Economy and Skills 

 

Recommendation: 
 

No objection subject to conditions 
 

 

Key issues: 
 
Please see response provided 8th April 2016 – these amendments don’t alter the position. 

 The construction of the proposed development will create approximately 55 new jobs 
over a four year period (Non-technical EIA) 

 A further 248 new jobs will be created at end user stage in the retail and service 
sectors (Non-technical EIA). 

 The level of employment generated on this strategic development site will require the 
developers to prepare and implement a Community Employment Plan 

 
 

Legal agreement required to secure: 
 
N/A 

 

Conditions: 
 

 The developers will be required to prepare and implement, with local agencies and 
providers, a Community Employment Plan that will ensure, as far as possible, that 
local people have access to training (including apprenticeships) and employment 
opportunities available at the construction and end user phases of this proposed 
development. 

 
 

Informatives: 
 
N/A 
 
  

Page 129



Page 16 of 26 
 

 

Detailed comments:  
 
The Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP) and partners have agreed, through 
the City Deal and Strategic Economic Plan to deliver significant levels of economic growth 
 
Oxfordshire has made progress through programmes including Oxfordshire Business 
Support1, the Oxfordshire Apprenticeship programme2, O2i3 and Invest in Oxfordshire4.  
 
Recent policy initiatives relating to skills development are contained in: 
 

 The Oxfordshire City Deal 

 Oxfordshire European Structural Investment Fund (ESIF) Strategy 

 Strategic Economic Plan – the refresh of which is currently underway  
 
The Oxfordshire Skills Strategy has the following key strategic priorities to 2020:  
 

 To meet the needs of local employers through a more integrated and responsive 
approach to education and training 

 Creating the ‘skills continuum’ to support young people through their learning journey 

 Up-skilling and improving the chances of young people and adults marginalised or 
disadvantaged from work 

 To increase the number of apprenticeship opportunities  

 To explore how we can better retain graduates within Oxfordshire to meet the demand 
for the higher level skills our businesses need 

 
Employment and skills planning justification 
 
Oxfordshire has a ‘tight labour market’, comprising of one of the lowest national claimant 
counts for Job Seekers Allowance5, alongside ‘pockets of deprivation’ in which there are 
relatively high levels of unemployment. Improving local skills and employment outcomes will 
not only drive forward the local economy, but will have far reaching effects in improving the 
social and economic outcomes of individuals currently marginalised from the workforce.  
 
The Government advice on planning policy set out in the National Planning Policy Framework 
states that ‘significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth 
through the planning system’.  
 
Seeking commitments to the development of skills and the provision of job opportunities 
through Community Employment Plans (CEP’s) can help to achieve this vision and to ensure 
that developments contribute to economic growth.  
 
Through CEP’s, Local Planning Authorities can work together with the Local Enterprise 
Partnership, the Skills Board and partners to ensure the maximum benefits in terms of new 

                                            
1
 Oxfordshire Business Support is the Growth Hub for Oxfordshire, providing business support, specialist advice 

and guidance  
2
 The Oxfordshire Apprenticeship programme promotes apprenticeships to employers and potential apprentices. 

It supports employers through the process of taking on an apprentice.  
3
 O2i Opportunities to Inspire builds links between employers and education across Oxfordshire in order to 

inspire the future workforce. It offers an online platform so that volunteers from any sector can discover 
opportunities to inspire and inform young people  
4
 Invest in Oxfordshire provides tailored assistance to place and grow businesses in Oxfordshire  

5
 JSA claimant count in February 2016 for Oxfordshire was 2,695 (rate of 0.6) 

Page 130

http://www.oxfordshirelep.org.uk/
http://www.oxfordshirebusinesssupport.co.uk/
http://www.oxfordshirebusinesssupport.co.uk/
http://www.oxfordshireapprenticeships.co.uk/
http://www.o2i.org/
http://www.oxfordshirelep.org.uk/content/invest-in-oxfordshire


Page 17 of 26 
 

jobs.  Thereby fully utilising the potential within the planning system to support and drive 
sustainable local economic growth.  
 
As well as supporting sustainable economic growth, CEP’s provide the opportunity to more 
closely align the new jobs created from a major development, the local labour market and 
skills providers. Thus ensuring maximum benefits in terms of new jobs, apprenticeships, 
traineeships, work experience and local supply chains.  
 
Officer’s Name: Sarah Beal           
Officer’s Title: Economic Development and Skills Officer              
Date: 23 May 2016 

 
  

Page 131



Page 18 of 26 
 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 

 
 

Education Schedule 

 
 

Recommendation: 
 
Approval subject to s106 agreement to mitigate the impact of the development on 
infrastructure as detailed below. 
 
 
Impact assessed as: 
 
The number of children/pupils generated is based on: 
 

Age group Pupils generated 

1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ bed 

0 to 4 year olds (EY&C) 0.03 0.18 0.25 0.38 

Primary  0.00 0.23 0.33 0.41 

Secondary 0.00 0.13 0.21 0.41 

Sixth Form 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.08 

SEN – Across Oxfordshire 1.11% of pupils are taught in special schools 

 
Contributions sought should be Index-linked from 3rd Quarter 2015 using PUBSEC Tender 
Price Index 
 
 
On the basis of the unit mix stated in the Summary to this Response it is therefore 
estimated that the development will generate the demand for: 

18 primary school places (age 4-10),  
10 secondary school places (age 11-15)  
  1 sixth form school place 
  0.32 SEN pupil places. 
 

Diane Cameron’s response of the 15th March 2016 explains the need to expand primary and 
secondary school capacity to meet the needs of the proposed development.  On the basis of 
the pupil generation stated above and the cost per pupil places stated in the earlier response 
the revised contributions sought are: 
 
£228,384 towards expanding Botley Primary School 

Page 132



Page 19 of 26 
 

 
£212,424 towards expanding Matthew Arnold School. 
 
The above amounts are based on values as at 3rd quarter 2015 and would be index linked 
using the PUBSEC Tender Price Index. 
 
Officer’s Name: Diane Cameron 
Officer’s Title: School Organisation Officer                     
Date: 20 May 2016  

 
  

Page 133



Page 20 of 26 
 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 

 
 

Property 

 
Recommendation: 
 

No objection subject to conditions 
 

 

Key issues: 
 

• The County Council considers that the impacts of the development proposal (if 
permitted) will place additional strain on its existing community infrastructure. 

• The following housing development mix has been used: 
 

313 x One Bed Dwellings 
                    (261 academic units + 52 residential (55 proposed - 3 existing residential) 

                                    71 x Two Bed Dwellings (80 proposed - 9 existing) 

5 x Three Bed Dwellings 

0 x Four Bed Dwellings 
 

• It is calculated that this development would generate a net 
increase of: 

 

191 additional residents including: 

32 resident/s aged 65+ 

173 residents aged 20+ 
 
 

Legal Agreement required to secure: 
 

 Library Mitigated by delivery of new library facility 
 Provision of the existing library in temporary accommodation until re-

provided in the new library.   

 Adult Day Care £4,224.00  Index-linked from 3Q15 using 
PUBSEC Tender Price Index     

 Administration & Monitoring £TBC 

 

The County Councils legal fees in drawing up and/or completing a legal agreement will 

need to be secured. 

 

 

Page 134



Page 21 of 26 
 

Administration 
 

Oxfordshire County Council requires an administrative payment for the purposes of 

administration and monitoring of the proposed S106 agreement. The amount of the 

fee will be dependent on the number and value of contribution and the complexity of 

the s106 agreement.   

 

 Conditions:  
 

•  The County Council as Fire Authority has a duty to ensure that an adequate 

supply of water is available for fire-fighting purposes. There will probably be a 

requirement to affix fire hydrants within the development site. Exact numbers 

and locations cannot be given until detailed consultation plans are provided 

showing highway, water main layout and size. We would therefore ask you to 

add the requirement for provision of hydrants in accordance with the 

requirements of the Fire & Rescue Service as a condition to the grant of any 

planning permission 

 

Informatives: 
 

•  Fire & Rescue Service recommends that new dwellings should be 
constructed with sprinkler systems. 

 

Detailed comments:  

 

Local Library 

This development is served by Botley Library. 

 
The county council is supportive of expansion and relocation of the library as proposed 
within the application subject to no increase in consequential revenue implications due to 
costs of occupation. 
The new library will need to be fitted out and fully operational from ‘day 1’ at the developers 
cost including works, fit-out, furniture, ICT, professional fees and legal costs. 
The county council will also require the provision of a temporary library facility of a floor area 
equivalent to that of the existing library from when the existing library has to close until the 
relocated one has opened. 
All of the above would be at no cost to Oxfordshire County Council beyond that which it 
incurs in operation of the existing library. 
 
Social & Health Care - Day Care Facilities 

 

This development is served by Oxford Options and this development will place additional 

pressures on this adult day care facility. To meet the additional pressures on day care 

provision the County Council is looking to expand and improve the adult day care facility in 

Oxford Options 
 
 

Contributions are based upon a new Day Care centre offering 40 places per day 

(optimum) and open 5 days per week; leading to an equivalent costing of £13,163 per 

place at 3rd Quarter 2015 price base (this in non-revenue).  Based on current and 

predicted usage figures we estimate that 1% of the over 65 population use day care 

facilities. Therefore the cost per person aged 65 years or older is £132. 
 

Page 135



Page 22 of 26 
 

•  The contribution for the provision of adult day care infrastructure in respect 

of this application would therefore be based on the following formula: 

£132 x 32 (the forecast number of new residents aged 65+) = £4,224.00 
 
Indexation 

 

Financial contributions have to be indexed-linked to maintain the real values of the 

contributions (so that they can in future years deliver the same level of infrastructure 

provision currently envisaged). The price bases of the various contributions are covered in 

the relevant sections above. 
 

General 

The contributions requested have been calculated where possible using details of the 

development mix from the application submitted or if no details are available then the 

County Council has used the best information available. Should the application be 

amended or the development mixed changed at a later date, the Council reserves the right 

to seek a higher contribution according to the nature of the amendment. 

The contributions which are being sought are necessary to protect the existing levels 

of infrastructure for local residents. They are relevant to planning the incorporation of 

this major development within the local community, if it is implemented. They are 

directly related to this proposed development and to the scale and kind of the 

proposal. 

 

Oxfordshire County Council is not seeking a contribution towards central library, waste 
management or museum resource centre infrastructure from this application due to the 
pooling restrictions contained within Regulation 123 of the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) which took effect from the 6th April 2015. The property 
response ‘No objection subject to conditions’ relies upon funding for infrastructure as critical 
mitigation being delivered through CIL where there is no opportunity to gain contributions 
through Section 106 due to current legislation. OCC hold a statutory obligation to deliver 
services such as education through schools. 
Details of these contribution rates for sustainable capital development are set out below. 
 

Contributions required to mitigate the impact of the development on infrastructure but 
which due to Regulation 123 of the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) OCC does not require a s106 obligation in respect of: 

 

•  Central Library £8,916.27 

•  Waste Management £34,727.00 

•  Museum Resource Centre £2,706.00 

Total* £46,349.27 
 
Detailed comments for contributions not sought solely due to S106 pooling 

restrictions 
 

Central Library 
 

Central Library in Oxford serves the whole county and requires remodelling to support 

service delivery that includes provision of library resources across the county. 

Remodelling of the library at 3rd Quarter 2015 base prices leaves a funding requirement 

still to be secured is £4,620,635. 60% of this funding is collected from development in the 

Oxford area. The remainder 40% is spread across the four other Districts. 40% of 

£4.620,635 = £1,848,254. 

Page 136



Page 23 of 26 
 

Population across Oxfordshire outside of Oxford City District is forecast to grow by 
93,529 to year 

2026. £1,848,254 ÷ 93,529 people = £19.77 per 
person 

•  The contribution for the provision of central library infrastructure in respect 

of this application would therefore be based on the following formula: 

£19.77 x 451 (the forecast number of new residents) = £8,916.27 
 

Strategic Waste Management 
 

Under Section 51 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, County Councils, as waste 

disposal authorities, have a duty to arrange for places to be provided at which persons 

resident in its area may deposit their household waste and for the disposal of that waste. 

To meet the additional pressures on the various Household Waste and Recycling Centre 

provision in Oxfordshire enhancements to these centres are either already taking place or 

are planned, and, to this end, contributions are now required from developers towards 

their redesign and redevelopment. 

A new site serving 20,000 households costs in the region of £3,589,888 at 3rd Quarter 

2015 price base; this equates to £77 per resident. 

•  The contribution for the provision of strategic waste management 

infrastructure in respect of this application would therefore be based on 

the following formula: 

£77 x 451 (the forecast number of new residents) = £34,727.00 
 

County Museum Resource Centre 
 

Oxfordshire County Council’s museum service provides a central Museum Resource 

Centre (MRC). The MRC is the principal store for the Oxfordshire Museum, Cogges Manor 

Farm Museum, Abingdon Museum, Banbury Museum, the Museum of Oxford and the Vale 

and Downland Museum. It provides support to theses museums and schools throughout 

the county for educational, research and leisure activities. 

The MRC is operating at capacity and needs an extension to meet the demands arising 

from further development throughout the county. An extended facility will provide additional 

storage space and allow for increased public access to the facility. 

An extension to the MRC to mitigate the impact of new development up to 2026 has been 
costed at 

£550,449 at 3rd Quarter 2015 price base; this equates to £6 per person 

•  The contribution for the extension of the Museum Resource Centre in 

respect of this application would therefore be based on the following formula: 

£6 x 451 (the forecast number of new residents) = £2,706.00 
 
 

 

Officer’s Name: Will Madgwick 

Officer’s Title: Planning Liaison Officer 

Date: 20 May 2016 
  

Page 137



Page 24 of 26 
 

District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL-2 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1- A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road.(as amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 

 
 

Ecology 

 

Recommendation: 
 

Comments 
 

 

Key issues: 
 
The District Council should be seeking the advice of their in-house ecologist who can advise 
them on this application.  My comments on the Draft West Way SPD included: 

At a more detailed design stage, consideration should be given to the type, level and 
direction of lighting and its impact on biodiversity, also on designing windows to 
reduce the risk of injury/death of birds due to collision and incorporating bat roosting 
and bird nesting sites within the design of the buildings.   

From the elevation plans it appears that there would be large areas of glazing on some 
elevations.  I assume that the District Council have consulted their in-house Ecologist who 
may have comments on this design and whether there is likely to be a detrimental impact on 
birds from injury/mortality resulting from collision with the panes.   
 
I welcome the incorporation of green roofs and roof gardens in the designs.   

 
The following guidance document on Biodiversity & Planning in Oxfordshire combines 
planning policy with information about wildlife sites, habitats and species to help identify 
where biodiversity should be protected.  The guidance also gives advice on opportunities for 
enhancing biodiversity:  
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/planning-and-biodiversity 
  
 

Legal agreement required to secure: 
 
N/A - For the District Council to comment 
 

Conditions: 
 
N/A - For the District Council to comment 
  

Page 138

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/planning-and-biodiversity


Page 25 of 26 
 

 

Informatives: 
 
N/A - For the District Council to comment 
 

Detailed comments:  
 
 
 
Officer’s Name: Tamsin Atley                 
Officer’s Title: Ecologist Planner                  
Date: 01 June 2016 

 
  

Page 139



Page 26 of 26 
 

 
 
 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION ON THE FOLLOWING DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
 
District: Vale of White Horse 
Application no: P16/V0246/FUL 

Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent buildings 
(but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes A1-A5) at ground floor 
level, with development above comprising 149 residential units (C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) 
and 262 units of academic residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui 
generis). New community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church 
(D1), small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and altered 
vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road. 
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 
 

 
LOCAL MEMBER VIEWS 

 

 
Cllr: Janet Godden                                                                Division: North Hinksey                      
 
Comments: I concur with all the above comments.   
 
In addition, the small reductions in height, and the alterations in the accommodation mix 
shown in the revised plans do not cause me to alter my comments of 13 April, which still 
stand. 
 
In sum, I still consider this to be gross overdevelopment that breaches many of the district 
council’s own policies and should not be permitted. 
 
JG 
 

                                                                        Date: 02 June 2016 

 
 

Page 140



 URBAN DESIGN COMMENTS

To: Stuart Walker 

From: Clare Golden 
REF: P16/V0246/FUL 

Site Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford 

Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre 
and adjacent buildings (but excluding Elms Parade) for new 
retail development (Use Classes A1-A5) at ground floor level, 
with development above comprising 149 residential units 
(C3), 122 bedroom hotel (C1) and 262 units of academic 
residential accommodation for university staff and students 
(sui generis). New community building (incorporating library) 
and replacement Baptist church (D1), small flexible office 
space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and 
altered vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way 
and Arthray Road.(as amended by drawings and information 
accompanying agents letter dated 10 May 2016) 

Date: 27.05.16 

Relevant legislation, planning guidance, policies and SPDs: 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) - paragraphs 56 to 68
 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 - policies DC1 – DC12, DC16 and DC20
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1: Strategic Sites and Policies – Core

Policies 37-38, 40 and 43-45

 Building for Life 12

Botley Centre SPD Adopted January 2016 

The purpose of this document is to guide development that supports the existing and 
future local community and attracts investment to serve the wider district and meet 
local regeneration aspirations.  

Vale Design Guide 2015 adopted 10 March 2015 

This is a material consideration in determining planning applications. Reference to this 

guide is made throughout this response.  

North Hinksey Neighbourhood Plan: The neighbourhood area for the North Hinksey 

Neighbourhood Plan was designated on 19th June 2015. While the application site is 
located within the neighbourhood area, the emerging Neighbourhood Plan is yet to 

reach a stage where any significant weight can be afforded to it in planning decisions. 

Appendix 11

Page 141



Documents and drawings reviewed:   
 

All as originally submitted and amended. 
 

Summary: 
 
This is a full planning application which follows an earlier proposal which was refused in 
December 2014. Of the four reasons for refusal, the following reason relates to the 
design of the scheme and can be summarised below: 

 
- Not sustainable development as it would result in a visually harmful and 

unneighbourly scheme which is not compatible with or sympathetic to the 
character of the surrounding residential area by reason of the size, bulk, scale, 

height and massing. The proposed development would adversely impact on 
views into and out of Oxford City by reason of its size, bulk, scale, height and 

massing. As such, the proposal is contrary to policies DC1, DC9, NE8 and S1 of 
the adopted Vale of white Horse Local Plan 2011 and to core policies 11, 28, 
32, 37 and 44 of the emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and to advice contained 

in the NPPF. 
 

It is my professional opinion that this scheme as amended has sought to address the 
earlier reasons for refusal. This is a unique site in terms of context within the vale, being 

at the edge and so close visually and physically to the city of Oxford. This results in the 
site having quite an urban character despite its close proximity to suburban 
development. Taking this into account and the need to justify development of this 

scale, it is my opinion that the proposal meets the core principles of the Vale Design 
Guide, the Botley SPD, Building for Life 12, the existing and emerging policies of the 

Local Plan and the NPPF and guidance within the NPPG.  
 

I do believe that there is scope however, for further amendments to the buildings and 
the public spaces which should be made to fully realise and satisfy the expectation for 
high quality design. My comments have identified such outstanding issues and 

provided suggestions for resolving them. 
 

It is unfortunate that a 3D model was not produced by the applicants and the 
supporting information has been helpful but not comprehensive in terms of detail. My 

comments refer to additional detail required which could be dealt with by condition 
but which is necessary to secure the quality of parts of the scheme. 

 
Conclusion:  
 
Recommendation: Support the proposal subject to conditions relating to: 
 

- Public space strategy to include: paving, street furniture, signage and lighting 
strategy 

- Soft landscaping strategy to include: street trees along Westminster Way 
- Details of the ground floor door openings on the west elevation of Blocks A and 

B 

- Details of the number and location of electric car charging points 
- Further details of the pattern of railings for the balconies and car parking screen 

- Further details of the fenestration on the east elevation of Block B 
- Removal of raised tables unless these are used to tie together a single piece of 

public space in the street 
- Details of all exterior materials 

 

 

Page 142



Comments: 
 

The Site and its surroundings: 
 

Section 2 of the Vale Design Guide requires new development to respond to the site 
and its setting by assessing the context  and character of the site to ensure that new 

development will respect, respond to and enhance the unique characteristics of the 
vale. 
 

The site is located on the edge of Oxford City but also adjacent to the 1930s residential 
suburb of Botley known as Elms Rise and surrounded by other predominantly 19th and 

20th Century residential development. Elms Parade is a local landmark building and 
presents the frontage to the shopping centre and setting for the suburb directly behind.  

 
The centre is well used and valued by the community and is a highly sustainable 

location on a main route into Oxford City and excellent access onto the A34 and A420. 
It is also a sensitive site in the context of the important views of the city. 
 

The proposal has been informed by a brief character study which includes the historical 
development of Botley and an assessment of the opportunities and constraints of the 

site. This has been used to inform the design rationale for the proposals.  
 

The local centre has expanded in size and scale over time and its close visual and 
physical proximity to Oxford and bounded by the major A34 gives it quite an urban 
character although it lies equally close to a much lower density suburban character 

which presents an interesting transition of character areas. The proposed scheme has 
recognised this and has sought to focus density, scale and height further to the east to 

create landmark buildings, in the setting of the A34 and gateway to Botley. The lower 
height buildings have been located where they are closest to the residential 

development to the south.  
 
The Botley SPD has a vision that is underpinned by nine overarching objectives whicfh 

seek to address issues, embrace opportunities and deliver the vision for Botley Centre.  
These are: 

 
- Deliverable improvements  

- Respect the character and identify of Botley 
- Create a distinctive place 

- Appropriate scale and massing 
- Strengthen the retail centre 
- Transform the public realm 

- Improve access, permeability and parking 
- Enhance community facilities 

- Provide a vibrant mix of use 
 

Connections: 

 
Sections 2 and 3 of the Vale Design Guide: This outlines the principles of place making 

and creating a robust layout for development that considers the street pattern and 
connectivity, land uses, landscape and building in a holistic manner. 

 
The Botley SPD seeks new development to improve pedestrian permeability with clearly 

defined north/south and east/west routes enhancing connections between West Way, 
Westminster Way and Arthray Road. It should also improve pedestrian crossings, 
improve bus stops and remove street clutter. 

 

Page 143



The proposed street network is well connected and integrated into the wider network 
of streets and linkages. Overall, the streets are not just for the movement of vehicles 

and servicing but also have a social function as public spaces.  
 

Westminster Way is a well-used street that connects the local centre with residential 
properties to the south. It is also a route home for many people and therefore remains 

visually prominent and influential to the character of the area. I am concerned that 
the west elevation of Block A will present a mostly blank and inactive edge on the 
ground floor. This will result in a lack of visual interest at the most noticeable human 

scale but also reduce the amount of natural surveillance along this route which could 
lead to issues such as anti-social behaviour and people feeling unsafe as they walk 

along this route. The amended plans do show two ground floor entrances into the 
refuse area of the building which will help create some activity at the ground floor as 

will the vehicular entrance and exit to the car park. Ideally however, an entrance into 
a reception area from Westminster Way would help create a strong active frontage. 

 
At the least, I think there is further potential to increase the visual prominence of the 
two refuse store openings. Whilst these are effectively service entrances, they do not 

necessarily need to appear as such. For example, perhaps glazing could be used or 
even part glazing to allow for some perception of activity behind. Or even a door 

surround to increase the scale and status of the entrance. I would suggest that further 
details of these door details are submitted. These points about the entrances are also 

relevant to the openings to the east elevation of Block B. 
 
Patterned railings are proposed to act as a screen to the car park which is better than 

the previously proposed brick wall because this will allow some visibility through to the 
car park and some visual interest. I support the use of the same pattern on the 

balconies as this adds to the visual richness of the building.  
 

Taking this part of Westminster Way as a complete street scene therefore, the main 
challenge in my view is how to avoid this part of the street  being dominated by the 
character of being a service street. The reality is that the buildings do need to be 

serviced from one side of their perimeter block but I think more could be done to 
reduce the visual impact of the blank edges and delivery layby’s onto this street.  

 
I would suggest that the landscaping is amended slightly to allow for larger trees to sit 

firmly within the street which will help soften and add more character to it. I would 
suggest at least two more street trees – perhaps one either side of the entrance into 

the central square to frame it. This has the advantage of creating interesting views out 
from the central square of the trees but also pushes them further into the street scene 
of Westminster Way. 

 
I note that raised tables are proposed along Westminster Way and Church Way. Raised 

tables should only be used where they tie a key public space together and not as 
separate, intermittent traffic calming features which often look like retrospective 

additions and are not well integrated into the street scene. They can also result in issues 
such as noise generation and cause problems for cyclists and buses. The surface 
treatment for the raised tables must be in-keeping and of the same quality as that used 

for the rest of the streets. 
 

Facilities and Services: 
 

Section 3 of the Vale Design Guide requires new development to provide a mix of uses 
and the community infrastructure to encourage a legacy of community and cultural 
activities as well as for play, social interaction and recreation. 

 

Page 144



The Botley SPD recognises the need to retain and encourage commerce to support 
local economic growth, and improve facilities and services to meet the needs of the 

existing and future community.  
 

This is a mixed use scheme. The new facilities include 20 retail units and a food store, 
140 general market dwellings, 261 student rooms, cafes and a 123 bed hotel along with 

a new community centre and library, outdoor public space and office space. This will 
make a great contribution to the facilities on offer to local residents and help reduce 
the need for traveling further afield. It will also give people a further reason to visit the 

centre and stay to enjoy the facilities and public space.  
 

The retention of Elms Parade is very positive because this keeps the original 1930s 
shopping arcade which forms the frontage to Elm’s Rise and is iconic in terms of place 

identity with its relationship to the 1930s suburb of Botley which lies directly to the rear, 
south. The combination of keeping the best of the existing and providing more up to 

date and mixed uses and facilities will ensure that the centre remains an attractive, 
accessible and vibrant place to visit. 
 

Care has been taken to provide places where people can meet with the inclusion of 
outdoor public spaces, community buildings, cafes and restaurants. In addition to this, 

I would suggest that a children’s play area could be provided as part of the community 
roof top garden to increase the options and attractiveness to more users. 

 

Community and Church Hall (Building F): 
 
Both the community and church hall have their own entrances which front onto 
Church Way ensuring that both have a strong visual presence but also that Church 

Way, another key route, has an active frontage. Both uses have their own gardens and 
the location of the building, terminating the view from the central public space helps 

these uses assert their presence. They also have the potential to spill out into the central 
space. The inclusion of public toilets in this building is positive. 
 

Central Public Space and Community Square: 
 

These two pieces of public space connect physically and visually but they have 
different characters because of their size and the surrounding uses. Both present 

opportunities for gathering and enjoying the space. The central public space has been 
designed so that as well as providing café spill out space and informal gathering 

opportunities, it can be flexible to accommodate special events such as markets and 
exhibitions, helping it to be multi-functional. 
 

A key consideration is how this square will feel at all times of the day and to help with 
this, a Shadow Study was requested. Please see my comments under ‘Scale Height 

and Massing below which relate to the results of the Shadow Study and impact on the 
central public space. 

 
Public Transport: 
 

The site is in a very sustainable location with good access to public transport. Bus stops 
are located in logical and accessible positions. 

 
Electric charging points will be provided across the site which is supported because this 

provides further options for residents and visitors but I note that the exact number hasn’t 
been defined at this stage. 124 publicly available cycle parking spaces will be 
provided in addition to the secure cycle storage facilities proposed for new residents 

and cyclists.  

Page 145



 
Meeting local housing requirements: 

 
The proposal offers a wide range of accommodation options which will create a 

broad-based community. I am content that the higher density development proposed 
and the scale that comes with it is appropriate for this area. The site presents a unique 

opportunity to develop in a highly sustainable location and whilst the densities will not 
match those of the surrounding residential areas, they are in my view appropriate for 
a local centre this well connected to Oxford city. 

 
Character: 

 
The Vale Design Guide requires new development to respect, respond to and enhance 

the unique characteristics of the Vale. It also requests that a Character Study is 
undertaken to understand the character of the site and its surrounding and to use this 

to inform the design of new development. It also requires new development to provide 
an appropriate sense of enclosure which is appropriate to meet the street hierarchy 
and achieve a human scale.  

 
The Botley SPD requires new development to recognise and reflect the existing 

character of Botley, and where possible better integrate buildings which contribute to 
the area’s identity, such as Elms Parade and St. Peter and St. Paul Church. The 

character and appearance of new development should reference the existing local 
vernacular, whilst not limiting high quality contemporary design. 

 
The National Planning Policy Guidance on Design recommends that permission should 
be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available 

for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 

 
The Design and Access Statement briefly explains how the historical development of 
Botley has been the inspiration behind the design of the new buildings and spaces. The 

development of the area as a rural, farming community to a 1930s suburb and then 
into a larger shopping centre has inspired the design team to design a proposal that 

further develops that evolution with contemporary references to the original 
landscape (in the form of green roofs and gardens) and subtle detailing reflecting the 

angles of roof and buildings lines from the 1930s development. 
 

Such detailing now includes: 
 

- bespoke railings and screens on Building A with a pattern reflective of the 

pitched roof buildings in the area 
- curved balconies on buildings C, D and E adjacent to the central public space, 

reflective of the large bay windows found on dwellings in the area. 
- Taller elements appearing to ‘pop up’ over the eaves line – Buildings E, F, B. 

- A brick distinctive to Botley will be used on the community building (Building F) 
 
The decision to incorporate more visual references to the existing context of Botley has 

been made following the submission of the present scheme. I consider it to be a shame 
that this approach wasn’t considered earlier on in the design process because having 

a stronger design inspiration could have enriched and tied the scheme together more 
successfully and I think has been a missed opportunity to improve the overall visual 

interest of the buildings. Nevertheless, these amendments are welcome and have 
strengthened the local distinctiveness of the proposed development in accordance 
with the requirements of Policy DC1, the Vale Design Guide and Botley SPD. 

 

Page 146



The east elevation of the hotel has windows that are angled to face north east. I am 
concerned that this will create the appearance of a blank elevation along the A34 

when travelling from the south. I have not been convinced in the latest amendments 
that this will be successful and would suggest that this still needs addressing to ensure 

that even if it is obscure glazing, there is some visual interest and perception of 
overlooking when viewing the building from the south. In addition to this, the windows 

above still create quite a bland appearance and would in my view, benefit from some 
further activity of visual interest. I would suggest that balconies or enclosed balconies 
or bay windows are added to this east facing elevation to enliven it. 

 
I would suggest that a Lighting Strategy is produced to fully understand how the centre 

will look and feel after daylight. Again, a simple, consistent and robust approach to the 
detail should be used. 

 
Height, Scale and Massing: 

 
Section 3 of the Vale Design Guide recommends that densities are focused around key 
movement intersections, along strategic routes and overlooking public spaces within 

neighbourhood centres. It also recommends that the density of the scheme should be 
appropriate to the location and character of the existing settlement. It also requires 

the scale of new buildings to relate to their context (rural or urban), their location within 
the hierarchy of routes and whether they act as a focal point, landmark or corner 

building. It also advises that ‘the height of buildings within a local centre should be 
appropriate to its context and aid legibility’. The Guide requires the scale of new 
development to generally reflect the scale of the existing settlement unless a strong 

justification is provided. 
 

The Botley SPD requires new development to relate to the scale and massing of the 
area and create a varied and integrated roof scape, which contributes positively to 

the visual amenity. Public open spaces should be proportioned to be human in scale 
and take into consideration solar orientation to avoid overshadowing of spaces. Scale 
and massing of development should consider effects on surrounding development, 

specifically overshadowing of public spaces, sunlight and daylight impacts, wind 
micro-climate and residential amenity. A framework for heights was produced in a 

Scale and Massing Diagram. This indicated that the north eastern corner could provide 
the opportunity for a visual landmark that signals arrival, invites people into the area 

and creates a positive first impression. Heights are then reduced further west and south.  
 

Saved Policy DC1 Design seeks to ensure proposals are of an appropriate layout, scale, 
mass, height, detailing and materials that do not adversely impact the character and 
local distinctiveness of the surrounding area. Policy DC1 of the Local Plan seeks to 

ensure buildings are of an appropriate height and scale to the site and surrounding 
area.   

 
The National Planning Policy Framework advises that when considering edge of centre 

and out of centre proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites that are 
well connected to the town centre. Applicants and local planning authorities should 
demonstrate flexibility on issues such as format and scale (para 24). 

 
The tallest buildings are still proposed to be on the eastern side but not on the north 

eastern corner. I think there is a missed opportunity to create a landmark building on 
this prominent corner but I understand that this height is more sensitive to the 

neighbouring properties to the north. Nevertheless, the taller buildings behind this 
corner will still help define and act as gateway to the development, marking this corner 
and creating a landmark building. Furthermore, the taller buildings directly opposite 

the A34 will be helpful in providing a noise barrier from this major road. 

Page 147



 
From my perspective, I am content with the height of the development. This is an edge 

of city location, adjacent to a busy main road and in the back drop of some tall 
buildings within Oxford and the Seacourt Tower close by. This is also previously 

developed land and the NPPF requires new development to make efficient use of 
land. This is also a highly sustainable location and ideal for higher density development 

providing that this does not lead to significant harm to the amenity of surrounding 
properties and the character of the area. I am comfortable with the taller buildings 
being located to the east with a decrease in height towards the residential suburb to 

the south and adjacent to Elm’s Parade. 
 

I am satisfied that the proposal won’t lead to significant harm to neighbouring 
properties and whilst I have made previous suggestions relating to character and the 

design of buildings above, in respect of height – my main concern is the character of 
the roof scape and how this will be viewed in long distant views and the views from 

and towards Oxford. I am satisfied that the roof scape is varied by the use of different 
building heights and pitches. The latest amendment to reduce the overall height of the 
buildings has resulted in a better distribution of the overall height across the 

development. 
 

There are points within the layout where the buildings are much taller than the width of 
the street between them. This is what is often referred to as the ‘height to width’ ratio 

and Section 5 of the Vale Design guide makes reference to. Examples in the scheme 
include the relationship between Block E and C and D to the south, the passageway 
through to Westminster Way between Blocks A and B and the heights of Blocks A and 

B in relation to Westminster Way. 
 

The ‘height to width’ ratio is a useful guide to ensure that spaces have the right sense 
of enclosure, so that they do not feel sparse and exposed nor do they feel over-

dominated by buildings and so there are not issues with privacy and overlooking. There 
are however, many examples where streets and public spaces are successful despite 
the height being much greater than the width in defiance of the prescribed ratio. Such 

examples include: The Shambles, York and conversely, St Peter’s Square in the Vatican.  
 

A shadow study has been carried out and submitted with the latest amendments and 
the results of that study show that the main public square will be in the shade for most 

of the day and for most of the year. This is because of the height of the buildings directly 
to the south which will cast a shadow across the space. This could have a negative 

impact on the usability of the space within the square and how attractive it is to 
potential users of it. It could also undermine the aspiration to create a vibrant space 
where people will want to stay and congregate. The situation will improve however, 

over the summer months, with the space benefiting from the afternoon and early 
evening sun.  

 
When comparing the shadow study results of the existing situation and the proposed 

scheme, it is clear that there will be less sunshine in the central public space as a result 
of this proposal. This is because blocks C and D will be taller which is required to achieve 
the amount of floor space necessary to ensure that the scheme is viable and can be 

delivered. To reduce the impact of the shading, the height of buildings C and D could 
be reduced but the loss of floor space may need to be redistributed across the site. 

 
It is my view that the vitality of the public square will be undermined by the amount of 

shading that it will receive and this may affect the success of it and the attractiveness 
to people visiting the centre and seeking to enjoy the public spaces. There will be 
however, be other locations within the site that will not be in the shade at the time that 

the central square is and these include part of the community square to the west, part 

Page 148



of the passageway between Blocks A and B adjacent to Westminster Way and part of 
the front of Elm’s Parade. The site will therefore offer choice of spaces in and out of the 

shade. To address the issue of shading in the central public square, I would suggest 
that some of the height of these buildings should be relocated to the north eastern 

corner in accordance with the SPD.  
 

The short passageway between Blocks A and B won’t always be in the shade and the 
sense of arrival into an open square will create visual and atmospheric interest. I am 
satisfied that the close proximity of buildings and their heights will not result in an 

unacceptable sense of overbearing impact. 
 

The proposed development has been broken up into a series of blocks of varying 
heights which helps reduce the overall impact of the development and creates a 

more varied and interesting roof scape and building lines. The buildings have a simple 
form with rectangular/square floor plans and flat and pitched roofs. The buildings are 

in themselves large but they have been broken down to create a number of simple 
geometric forms. Whilst taller than the majority of the surrounding dwellings, in 
accordance with the guidance in the Vale Design Guide, there is strong justification 

for this, namely, the aspirations to create sustainable development, making an efficient 
use of the land and creating land mark buildings. 

 
Creating well defined streets and spaces: 

 
Section 4 of the Vale Design Guide requires new streets to be designed as social spaces 
accommodating the needs of all users with appropriate enclosure, limited street clutter 

and high quality hard and soft landscaping. Section 5 focuses on mixed use centres 
and requires these to be designed around the principles of streets, blocks and nodes.  

 
The Botley SPD advises that public open space should relate well to context including 

building height in order to form a sense of enclosure whilst retaining permeability. 
 
Please see my comments above in ‘Connections’ in relation to Westminster Way.  

 
Overall, I am content with the quality of the streets and spaces. Perimeter blocks are 

used and the majority of the streets and spaces are well overlooked with active 
frontages on the ground floor and well enclosed with buildings defining the street. 

Some areas will be shaded for parts of the day but the Shadow study shows that 
different parts of the public space will receive sunlight at different times. I do not 

consider that the distance between buildings will lead to an oppressive public realm. 
Rather, the narrowing and widening of the public space at different points can create 
interesting variation in the character of the space, helping to reinforce a place identity 

and creating and framing vistas.  
 

I would like to see further details of the proposed paving strategy because this will have 
a significant influence on the character and appearance and quality of the 

development. A simple and robust pallete of materials should be used which tie the 
different spaces together. Street clutter must be minimised by the use of multi-
functional street furniture. Please find some examples below. 

 
Easy to find your way around: 

 
Section 3 of the Vale Design Guide requires new developments to be legible.  

 
The scale and height and variation of height of some of the buildings and the clear 
layout and connection of public spaces will help create the legibility for users to 

understand and navigate the space.  

Page 149



 
Landscape Structure 

 
There is a clear and fairly well connected landscape structure with variations in types 

of public and private space through the use of roof top gardens, green roofs and 
surface level squares, streets and gardens. Sustainable Urban Drainage systems have 

been incorporated into the street paving and roof top gardens. I would suggest that 
more street trees are introduced along Westminster Way and the option for a children’s 
play area, possibly as part of the community garden.  

 
Car Parking  

 
Parking is well screened and designed into the public realm as well as in car parks 

which are well overlooked. 
 

Public and Private spaces: 
 
These are well defined. Each residential unit either has a balcony or winter garden and 

access to communal gardens. Students have access to communal gardens. 
 

Please let me know if you would like to discuss this scheme or my comments further. 
 

Clare Golden BSc (hons), MA, MRTPI 
Urban Design Officer 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 150



Design Review

Botley Centre 
Redevelopment

3 May 2016

Appendix 12

Page 151



1/4

Botley Centre Redevelopment
Reference: 465.2-857

Report of Design Review Meeting 
Date: 11 April 2016
Location: Botley Baptist Church, Westminster Way, Oxford

Panel

Richard Portchmouth (Chair), Architect
Corinna Dean, Architect/Urban Designer
Oliver Goodhall, Public Spaces/Urban Designer
Richard Simmons, Planner
Philip Cave, Landscape Architect
Richard Wilson, Planner/Urban Designer

Presenting team

Neil Rowley, Savills
Cara Bamford, Make
Chinmay Potbhare, Make

Other attendees

David Tittle, Design South East
Samantha Allen, Vale of White Horse District Council
Clare Golden, Vale of White Horse District Council
Stuart Walker, Vale of White Horse District Council
Hanna Zembrzycka-Kisiel, Vale of White Horse District Council
Cllr Debby Hallet, Vale of White Horse District Council
Cllr Emily Smith, Vale of White Horse District Council
Huw Griffiths, Mace
Seamus Kane, Mace
Del Testor, Origin Transport Consultants
Justin Thompson, MacGregor Smith
David McFarlane, SP Broadway

Site visit

A full site visit was conducted by the Panel ahead of the review.

465.2-857 Botley Centre Redevelopment
Page 152



2/4

Summary

In general, we are supportive of this proposal.  The existing centre seems tired and there is the 
potential to invigorate it and provide a more successful retail and community heart for Botley.  
The general mix of uses within the scheme are appropriate to the location which is well 
connected to Oxford and will help to reinforce its success.  We appreciate that a lot of work 
has been undertaken on public and stakeholder consultation in an environment where views 
have sometimes been passionately expressed and the development of the design has been 
very positive.  In particular, the commitment to retain and enhance Elms Parade is important.  
Since the first review the design team have moved away from a monolithic scheme to create a 
proposal that is at the same time more broken up and more integrated with the public realm 
at its heart.

There are some aspects of the design which could benefit from further work and testing.  
These include parts of the public realm within the scheme, the architectural character and 
its relationship to suburban Botley, and the height and massing in places where it creates 
awkward relationships between buildings. 
 
Our comments are as follows:

Background

This is a proposal for the demolition and redevelopment of the shopping centre and adjacent 
buildings in Botley.  Botley is a community separated from Oxford by a flood plain.  This 
means that to an extent it is economically and socially integrated with its city neighbour but 
has its own identity as a village and sits within Vale of White Horse District.  This proposal is 
for Botley’s principle village centre and its redevelopment has long been an aspiration of the 
local authority. The new development will provide new retail space, 149 residential units, 
262 student accommodation units, a hotel, community buildings and office space.  A previous 
iteration of this proposal was reviewed by Design South East in June 2014.  That proposal was 
refused planning permission.  Since that time there has been extensive public and stakeholder 
consultation and the scheme has changed considerably.

Public realm

We support the overall strategy for the public realm which creates a well connected network 
of walking routes through the development which open up to some degree into more 
generous public spaces where they need to.  This network works well in taking people 
through the development but greater attention should be paid to the nodes and places where 
people might linger.  

The long space running east-west needs to be assessed as to its overshadowing from the 
south in order to establish that it is a suitable place to sit and for trees to flourish.  A study 
with some clear cross sections is needed to prove or disprove this. 

Further attention is needed to the space in front of Elms Parade as it fronts West Way.  We 
appreciate that this may not be totally in the control of the developer but collaboration is 
required to ensure that Elms Parade is seamlessly integrated within the new development.  
Having committed to the retention of Elms Parade its commercial success is paramount. 

 Page 153



Further collaboration may also be required with the highways authority to ensure that 
junctions, pedestrian connections across major roads, footways and cycle routes are as good 
as they could be.  The strategy for cyclists throughout the development, not just with regards 
to segregated cycle-ways, should be considered.  This would include cycle parking/storage 
arrangements and understanding what pedestrian areas could be shared with cycles.  

The animation of the Church Way cross route should be examined. Where there is a decision 
to be made about position of entrances, perhaps Church Way should be favoured to maximise 
its active edge.  The east-west route works well but connection to Westminster Way seems 
pinched and might not seem very welcoming. 

Architecture and materials

While on the whole the architecture is polite and respects its context we feel as though it 
could be anywhere.  There is scope for further analysis of the suburban character of Botley to 
see if there is more that could be done with the detailed design of the buildings without being 
over fussy to provide a better sense of place.  As a relatively low density suburban area it may 
be difficult to grasp what can be learnt from in Botley’s character but there are aspects of its 
urban form – wide streets, curves, big steep hipped roofs, 45 degree corners and generous 
tree planting that can perhaps be responded to.  The architecture has a contemporary urban 
feel and could perhaps relax a little for this suburban setting. 

It would be worth exploring whether greater equality of heights of the buildings either side 
of the east-west route might feel more comfortable and allow more sunlight from the south 
while still delivering the scheme’s accommodation requirements. 

The numbers of non-student apartments serviced from each street door gives cause for 
concern.  10 or 12 should be the maximum. Beyond that the block becomes anonymous and 
needs quite active management to ensure it stays safe and clean. 

Scale, height and massing

This location in a district centre is appropriate for a higher density development with the 
scale that comes with it.  Indeed the scale can act to make this more legibly the centre of 
Botley.  However, we understand that the scale of this proposal has been a major issue in the 
public consultation and we would urge further careful consideration.  Scale and massing were 
a concern at the last review but our advice from then (to concentrate heights in the centre) is 
no longer appropriate with the retention of Elms Parade.  The heights at the corner of West 
Way and Westminster Way work well but the Westminster Way frontage still appears too 
high. 
 
The breaking up of the built forms from those in the earlier designs has helped but there 
are still some awkward relationships between buildings.  For example the relationship 
between the parallel blocks, the potential blocking out of morning light to the raised 
courtyard in block B and the overshadowing of public space by block C.  The height of block 
E, although respectful of Elms Parade, in relation to blocks D and C, with which it forms the 
main pedestrian route through the site, is out of scale with the building heights of D and C. 
More investigations and ‘shuffling’ of blocks to find an optimal form and position could reap 
rewards.

The absence of a model made it difficult to assess the impact of the buildings on the 
3/4

Page 154



surrounding public space and longer views and we would urge one to be commissioned.  A 
greater selection of sections through the proposed development would also help.

Landscape, boundaries and edges

We were not convinced that the pergola over the exposed surface car park area would work 
to shield this element.  It is likely that the creepers will be difficult to maintain and might drop 
foliage onto the cars leading to pressure for their removal, an alternative strategy should be 
developed. 

On a more general level the tree and other planting at the periphery of the scheme could 
benefit from further examination to ensure it is creating an attractive and safe-feeling 
streetscape. Could more of the trees on Westminster Way, or indeed within the site, be 
retained? It will take a long time for trees of this size to re-establish themselves.  The edges 
of the scheme seem to be dominated by car parking and service areas, which are necessary 
evils, but more could be done to improve them.   This is especially prevalent on Westminster 
Way where the service area/hotel drop off and current bus stop all appear to overlap, thereby 
compromising one of the principal pedestrian access points to the east west pedestrian axis.  
The Westminster Way frontage, with a car park behind a grille will not be very attractive. 

This review was commissioned by Vale of Whitehorse District Council with the knowledge of Savills.

4/4
Page 155



© Design South East 2015

T: +44 (0)1634 401166   
E: info@designsoutheast.org 
www.designsoutheast.org

Page 156


	Agenda
	8 P16/V0246/FUL - Botley Centre, West Way, Botley, Oxford
	P16/V0246/FUL - Botley Centre, West Way, Botley, Oxford - Appendices 1 and 2
	P16/V0246/FUL - Botley Centre, West Way, Botley, Oxford - Appendices 3 - 12
	Appendix 3 - North Hinksey Parish Council Latest  Comments 
	Appendix 4 - West Way Concern Group Comments
	Appendix 5 - Cllr Hallet's Latest comments 
	Appendix 7 - Cllr Hoddinott's latest comments 
	Appendix 9 - Oxford City Council latest comments 
	Appendix 10 - Oxfordshire County Council Lates Comments 
	Appendix 11.0 - Urban Design Officer's  Comments 
	Appendix 12 -  South East Design Rewiev Panel  





